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1          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Welcome.  My name is John

2 Foreman.  I am Chairman of the Arizona Power Plant and

3 Transmission Line Siting Committee.  We are resuming the

4 hearing in Application No. 144 which is an application

5 of UNS Electric, Incorporated, for a certificate of

6 environmental compatibility for the upgrading of a line

7 and modification of a line from the Vail substation to

8 the Valencia substation.

9          I would like to ask those of you who are here

10 representing the parties to identify yourselves for the

11 record, please.

12          MR. DERSTINE:  Good morning, Chairman, members

13 of the Committee.  Matt Derstine, Jason Gellman, on

14 behalf of the applicant, UNS Electric.

15          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.

16          MR. MAGRUDER:  Good morning, Chairman.  My name

17 is Marshall Magruder.  I am representing myself.

18          MS. WEBB:  Elizabeth Buchroeder-Webb, good

19 morning, Chairman, members, on behalf of myself.

20          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Now, we have some

21 housekeeping matters that I think we need to attend to

22 here first.

23          I had asked the court reporters to provide us

24 with an updated list of exhibits or provide me with an

25 updated list of exhibits, and those exhibits that were
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1 admitted and those that were not.  I have also asked

2 each of the parties to take a look at that.  And I am

3 assuming that you folks have done that and are

4 comfortable with where we are on the admission,

5 nonadmission situation, as far as exhibits are

6 concerned?

7          MR. MAGRUDER:  Chairman, I am comfortable.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Ms. Webb, as I understand

9 it, you intend to offer most of your exhibits during

10 your presentation this morning, is that correct?

11          MS. WEBB:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  And the applicant.

13          MR. GELLMAN:  Mr. Chairman, we are in agreement

14 with the court reporter.

15          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Very good.

16          MEMBER NOLAND:  Mr. Chairman.

17          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Yes, Member Noland.

18          MS. NOLAND:  Ms. Webb, could you pull that

19 microphone closer to you?  I am having trouble hearing.

20 Thank you.

21          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Now let's see.  I

22 have been approached this morning by Ron Campana who is

23 a person who has previously made comment to the

24 Committee.

25          And I understand, Mr. Campana, that you would
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1 like to have an additional letter placed in the record

2 as a part of your public comment.  Is that correct, sir?

3          MR. CAMPANA:  Yes, sir.

4          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And that letter is a letter

5 that's dated July 7, and you have provided the members

6 of the Committee with copies and I hope all of the

7 parties with copies, is that correct?

8          MR. CAMPANA:  I have done that, yes.

9          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Very good.  What we

10 will do then is have this letter marked as Committee

11 Exhibit No. 7.  And we will put it in the record in this

12 matter.

13          Is there any objection to placement of this

14 exhibit in the record by any parties?

15          MR. GELLMAN:  None.

16          MS. WEBB:  No objection.

17          MR. MAGRUDER:  No objection.

18          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Very good.  Thank

19 you folks.

20          Is there anyone else here who had wished to make

21 public comment?  Sorry, Mrs. Campana.

22          MS. CAMPANA:  Yes, I have some additional

23 information.

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Why don't you come

25 forward then.  And again, just for the record, tell us
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1 your name and what it is in addition you would like to

2 provide to discuss.

3          MS. CAMPANA:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  My name is

4 Kathi Campana and I live in Rio Rico right along the

5 current distribution line.  I am also a vice president

6 of Rio Rico Property Owners Association, co-chair of the

7 Baca Float Coalition, and director with the Santa Cruz

8 Board of Realtors, all of whom have expressed the

9 opinion that the distribution line should be moved

10 particularly to the west side because of public safety,

11 access, aesthetics, property values and reduced

12 liability on the part of the utility.

13          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And you are -- sorry, because I

14 want to clarify your testimony.  First of all -- I am

15 sorry, your statement.  You are the same person who has

16 made public comment before?

17          MS. CAMPANA:  Yes.

18          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  And the location of

19 the line to which you referred in your comments just

20 past is the location that is on what we have called

21 Segment 2 that is along Pendleton Drive just north of

22 the Cañez substation, is that correct?

23          MS. CAMPANA:  Correct.  Cañez is north on

24 approximately Avenida Ostion.

25          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  So we have got that
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1 fixed in the record.

2          MS. CAMPANA:  I believe that is Segment 2.

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.

4          MS. CAMPANA:  Last time it was brought up that

5 there was no access road, and on the west side of the

6 railroad there is an access from north -- from south of

7 Rio Rico Drive at approximately Avenida Grande Mundo, is

8 where is the other substation, all the way up to where

9 the river comes relatively close to the railroad grade.

10 That ranch road is large enough for large dual-wheeled

11 trucks, because the rancher uses it to bring in cattle

12 and the trailers are quite large.

13          In addition, there was some concern about

14 building in a floodway.  And we checked.  And utilities

15 are exempt both from county ordinance and from Arizona

16 Revised Statutes.

17          The west side of the railroad does not run in

18 the same manner that the east side does because that

19 railroad grade itself acts as a dike so that all of the

20 water coming off of the plateaus hits the railroad grade

21 and backs up and then starts flowing north until it hits

22 one of the culverts.  On the west side, whatever is

23 there continues to run toward the river.  It doesn't

24 back up, it doesn't create the same type of flow that

25 the east side does.
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1          In addition, there are no residents now or in

2 the future that could encroach on the west side because

3 the developer needs that as ag land to maintain the

4 water rights, and they already assured me that they are

5 not giving up their water rights.

6          So those are things that would definitely

7 provide an advantage to putting these lines on the west

8 side.

9          Yesterday we developed a petition and went to

10 all of the neighbors from the Cañez substation going

11 north and called everyone who was at home.  Basically it

12 says we, the undersigned residents of Rio Rico, support

13 the upgrade project and relocation of the transmission

14 line within Rio Rico on the west side of the Union

15 Pacific Railroad right-of-way.  The line would then be

16 on agriculture land, away from and not being impacted by

17 residents or encroachments by property owners.

18          May I give you the petition?

19          CHMN. FOREMAN:  You have only one copy of it?

20          MS. CAMPANA:  I have actually four.  I didn't

21 have time to make a whole bunch.

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  What I would like

23 for you to do then is provide that to the court

24 reporter.  We will mark it as Committee's Exhibit 8,

25 COM-8.  And if you could, I would like for you to either
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1 make copies of it or talk to the applicant, one of the

2 other parties about getting copies of it so that

3 everybody can see and have a copy of the exhibit.

4          MS. CAMPANA:  Okay, I will do that.

5          In addition, I have a letter from Marty Jakle

6 also supporting the west alignment.  Unfortunately we

7 walked off at 6:00 this morning without it.  So as soon

8 as we get access to a computer, we will get on the

9 e-mail and download that, if I may enter it when we get

10 that one downloaded.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  If you be sure and make copies

12 of it and talk to us this afternoon, maybe we can get it

13 done then.

14          MS. CAMPANA:  I will do that.  Do you want the

15 original to the court reporter or a copy?

16          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I would like the original to go

17 to the court reporter.

18          MS. CAMPANA:  Okay.

19          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Thank you.

20          All right.  Is there any other public comment?

21          MR. MAGRUDER:  May I ask how many names are on

22 the petition?  I didn't hear that.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Good question.

24          MS. CAMPANA:  There are 17 names on it.  And

25 most of them are multiple property owners or multiple
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1 resident owners all within that particular area.

2          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And by that particular area, you

3 mean the bosque area that's north of Cañez substation

4 from where you folks live up to the --

5          MS. CAMPANA:  From Cañez north to Vino, I think

6 it is Vino, that that takes in all of the residences on

7 the west side of Pendleton.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  West side of Pendleton and east

9 of the railroad track?

10          MS. CAMPANA:  Correct.  And most of them I asked

11 to put all of their multiple lot numbers down so you can

12 see how many parcels are actually represented.

13          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Do you have any sense of what

14 percentage of the parcel owners have signed that

15 petition?

16          MS. CAMPANA:  Those who actually live there?

17 100 percent minus one.  We had one that nobody was home.

18          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  And that would be how

19 many?  You said 17 people, so --

20          MS. CAMPANA:  Yes.

21          CHMN. FOREMAN:  -- so eight --

22          MS. CAMPANA:  And it is not 17 residents, some

23 of them own multiple residences that they rent out.

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.

25          MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Chairman.
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1          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Yes, sir.

2          MR. DERSTINE:  Could I inquire of Ms. Campana

3 whether or not Rio Rico Properties was a signatore to

4 your petition?

5          MS. CAMPANA:  No.  I had to work yesterday, and

6 I went out last night and got all these.

7          MR. DERSTINE:  Okay.  And Rio Rico Properties is

8 the largest landowner in that particular area?

9          MS. CAMPANA:  Actually they are.  I spoke with

10 her verbally and they supported putting it on the west

11 side.  But as I said, I worked yesterday and when I got

12 off work they were closed.

13          MR. DERSTINE:  Thank you.

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Very good.  All right.

15          Now, again, is there any other public comment?

16          (No response.)

17          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Let's then -- are

18 there any housekeeping things that we need to address

19 before we proceed and return to testimony?

20          (No response.)

21          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Now, as I remember

22 where we left, we left it with Ms. Webb being in a

23 position to make her presentation.

24          So, Ms. Webb, you may proceed.  Do you wish an

25 oath or affirmation?
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1          MS. WEBB  affirmation.

2          (Elizabeth Buchroeder-Webb was duly affirmed.)

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Now please proceed.

4

5                ELIZABETH BUCHROEDER-WEBB,

6 a witness herein, having been first duly affirmed by the

7 Chairman to speak the truth and nothing but the truth,

8 testified as follows:

9

10                     DIRECT TESTIMONY

11

12          MS. WEBB:  Good morning, Mr. Chairman, members

13 of the Committee.  My name is Elizabeth Buchroeder-Webb.

14 I am not going to go read the -- if you actually go

15 ahead and open the new binder I provided to you today,

16 go ahead and you will see an updated witness summary.

17 And I do have a correction to make on it.

18          It is on the pocket on the left-hand side as you

19 open it.  I will give you just a moment.  It should be

20 the first.  And I might have corrected it.  It used to

21 say Exhibit EW-3.  And that's what will be docketed.

22 And I will correct that on the docket.  It should be

23 EW-1.

24          Due to compelling evidence that has subsequently

25 come to light, I am submitting a revision of my witness
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1 summary.  I am going to testify about my concerns about

2 this project and my general conditions that I would like

3 to see applied to the certificate of environmental

4 compatibility.

5          What I would really like to talk about today are

6 solutions.  We cannot change the past and we can all say

7 there are things we could have done better.  And I think

8 this is a learning process.  Things were done

9 differently in the past with the utilities.  I think we

10 have shown, especially in a case I intervened

11 previously, 137, that things are being done differently.

12          But in this case specifically I will discuss

13 concerns about repetitive impacts and other proposed

14 developments in the vicinity of the Vail/Corona/Cienega

15 corridor associated with this project and other agency

16 approval related to this project.

17          I will also discuss the lack of active,

18 aggressive, and upfront outreach to the communities of

19 Vail, Corona de Tucson, and Rita Ranch in this project.

20          I will briefly touch on appropriate monopole

21 color choices.

22          I took the Chairman's direction regarding the

23 pleadings in all segments very seriously.  And I was not

24 sure about the legality of using exhibits in the

25 pleading without including them in my testimony, so I
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1 did include a brief description of my exhibits in my

2 testimony as well, although I was predominantly

3 concerned about the northern portion of this project in

4 Pima County.

5          My name is Elizabeth Buchroeder-Webb and I am a

6 registered voter and taxpayer in the State of Arizona.

7 I think it is very important to remember that we are

8 taxpayers and therefore we are paying for a portion of

9 what happens with the Committee.  We are also registered

10 voters and we are very concerned about what happens -- I

11 am very concerned -- sorry, excuse me.  It takes takes

12 me awhile to switch back and forth.  I am very concerned

13 about what happens in my community as a registered

14 voter.

15          I have also watched -- and this has been very,

16 very exciting to me.  This is something I have observed

17 in this hearing.  It has been very, very exciting to me

18 how the concerns of a small group of residents who will

19 be very impacted by this project have been taken into

20 consideration.  And that has been very important to me.

21 And that's why I am really looking forward to seeing

22 what is going to happen on the northern end, because

23 this has the potential -- and I will show that through

24 my exhibits -- to impact a large, very large number of

25 people in Pima County.
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1          My family lives in the Empire Mountains

2 southeast of Vail, Arizona.  As this area is within

3 unincorporated Pima County, I tend to use the boundaries

4 of the Vail Unified School District with its approximate

5 population of 45,000 people to define my community,

6 although my community is not limited to that.  My

7 daughter catches the school bus four miles from our

8 home, rides it, and then attends school in the City of

9 Tucson approximately three miles from the proposed

10 project.  Both the school and the proposed project are

11 in the City of Tucson.  My in-laws have a home in

12 Civano, which is just located northeast of the proposed

13 project.  That is also within the boundaries of the Vail

14 School District.

15          My experience with energy infrastructure issues

16 include acting as a civilian intervenor in Line Siting

17 Case 137, which was also a case in front of the City of

18 Tucson.  I have advocated on behalf of the Vail/Cienega

19 corridor in Pima County bond issues.  I am also the

20 civilian representative on the TEP Rosemont stakeholders

21 group, which I am not sure if it was something you might

22 be aware, that is an extremely controversial issue.  And

23 I was very honored to be asked to be a part of that

24 group as a civilian intervenor, or not intervenor, but a

25 civilian stakeholder.
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1          I have also worked with Reta LaFord who is the

2 deputy forest supervisor for the Coronado National

3 Forest on public outreach in the Vail/Cienega corridor,

4 and also on NEPA issues.

5          I have worked with the Vail School District to

6 implement state policy in their governing board policy

7 manual, and I have approached Pima County in regard to

8 this project and asked them to consider including a

9 recommendation in the review comments on the utility's

10 infrastructure development that would expand the

11 utility's obligations to notice members of the public in

12 those rural unincorporated areas of Pima County.  There

13 are areas west of Tucson that are even more low income

14 and unrepresented than Vail and it is very important.

15          Well, I am just going to read this.  To show

16 that I am not a one trick pony led by one topic, a

17 resumé of my community service is available in your

18 binder and that would be Exhibit 4.

19          Another interest in this project is as a TEP

20 customer.  We are TEP customers at our home.

21 Additionally, we belong to two well co-ops in central

22 Vail.  This means we pay towards three TEP accounts.

23          As I mentioned earlier, it is important to me

24 that I am considered a registered voter and a taxpayer

25 in the State of Arizona.  It is also important to me
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1 that people understand that I pay as a customer.  And

2 when I owned my business, I can't imagine sometimes that

3 the way I perceive that I am treated I would be treated

4 as a customer.

5          Although my concerns for this project lie in the

6 northern end, it does not mean that I do not have

7 interest in southern Arizona.  My home is located very

8 close to Santa Cruz County on the east side of the Santa

9 Rita Mountains.  And I grew up all over southern Arizona

10 and Santa Cruz County, because that's where our natural

11 resources lie for Pima County quite a bit.  We have a

12 lot of historic cultural.  A lot of our lakes, our

13 parks, our fishing are in that area.  And I have a

14 strong regard for Mr. Magruder and his ability to do

15 intervening and public outreach in that area.

16          I don't really need to go into this.  This is

17 really, really expensive to intervene.  The amount of

18 money we expend on paperwork is just incredible.  This

19 just, just -- I am just not a rich person with -- I am

20 just not.

21          I am not opposed to transmission lines.  And I

22 am not opposed to aboveground distribution lines, as I

23 stated in my witness summary.  I have a three, a very

24 strong three-phase line that runs along my property

25 boundaries because we have the NEXRAD, which is one
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1 parcel over from my house.

2          I just feel that appropriate, forthright public

3 outreach with reasonable alternatives, restoration, and

4 mitigation are absolutely vital.  As I stated, I was

5 expressing my concerns on repetitive impacts to the area

6 associated with this property and other agency approval.

7          I will discuss and give the Committee the

8 ability to consider cumulative impacts under the siting

9 statutes with the assistance of Exhibit EW-18, which is

10 in your new binder, and Exhibit UNS-14.

11          I will also discuss how the applicant's

12 predecessor did not comply with its previous CEC, which

13 was the decision in 1988 if you are looking for UNS-14,

14 and how the applicant did not hold a legal right-of-way

15 on BLM for the existing line granted in Decision 56097,

16 when it applied for this CEC.  I will also discuss other

17 proposed developments in the area by private entities

18 using exhibits from data requests provided by the

19 applicant, items from my own personal research and from

20 the applicant's exhibits.

21          Second, with the assistance of several docketed

22 items, or disclosed items, to include photographs and

23 maps, charts, previous witness testimony, public

24 comments, data request responses, and my own research, I

25 will show there was a severe lack of aggressive upfront
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1 outreach to the community in this line siting case.

2 This is related to Commissioner Mayes' directive at the

3 special open hearing on August 18, 2008.  I have asked

4 and asked and asked to not have to do this because I

5 just want to work on a solution.

6          Third, I will discuss how appropriate monopole

7 color choices can mitigate the impact of towering

8 structures against an open viewshed in the Sonoran

9 Desert.  Our blue sky with voluminous close and soaring

10 Santa Rita, Rincon, and Santa Catalina Mountains in the

11 background are prized by residents and visitors alike.

12 In the stretch from Rita Road, which is the exit to the

13 Vail substation, to State Route 83, each exit has a Pima

14 County sign proclaiming a recreational, cultural,

15 historic, or ecological treasure of our area.  Each exit

16 is already blighted by an existing high voltage

17 transmission line.  It is imperative that decisions made

18 now are given forethought.  This speaks to the total

19 environment of our area.

20          Fourth, I will speak to the justification for

21 the creation of a citizens advisory committee related to

22 this project as a condition of this CEC.  And I have

23 struggled with that, although I think I found something

24 that will work in the statutes.  However, I have come up

25 with an alternative in my pleading which will work
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1 inform a citizens oversight Committee which would work

2 directly to this project.  And I will talk about that

3 when we get to our pleadings.

4          I am almost done here.  Lastly, I will briefly

5 show you, which I just sort of said, and discuss with

6 you more than one exhibit related to my preferences

7 related to the segments, routes, and conditions for the

8 entire project.  My area of focus in Santa Cruz County

9 will center on the area more commonly known now as the

10 mesquite bosque in Segment 2 as a result of my meeting

11 with John Hays, floodplain coordinator, Santa Cruz

12 County Flood Control District.

13          There has been a different view amongst parties

14 of the meeting of the Chairman's direction at the end of

15 the last hearing, but I believe I was asked to give my

16 opinion on the different segments.  I will do so with

17 justification for each with a very short pleading after

18 entering my exhibits during my testimony.

19          Mr. Chairman, if I may I ask, would it be okay

20 just to go -- excuse me.  Would it be okay just to go

21 through my exhibits and go one by one and do that that

22 way?  Would that be more effective?

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  However you would like to

24 proceed.

25          And for the benefit of the Committee members and
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1 others, Ms. Webb approached me before our testimony and

2 indicated she wasn't feeling well.

3          So, again, if you would feel like you need to

4 take a break at any time, please let me know.

5          MS. WEBB:  Thank you.

6          I will go ahead and start with our first binder,

7 which was the original exhibit binder.  I would like to

8 ask that EW-1 be replaced by the witness summary that I

9 just entered into, or I just gave.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Is there any objection from the

11 other parties?

12          MR. GELLMAN:  No objection.

13          MR. MAGRUDER:  No objection.

14          MS. WEBB:  Exhibit 2 --

15          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Wait.  I am getting older and I

16 get slower, so let me make sure.

17          Exhibit 1 was not entered into evidence, so what

18 we will do is we will replace and I will ask you to

19 provide the court reporter with the new EW-1.  So we

20 will replace old EW-1 with new EW-1.

21          MS. WEBB:  Okay, thank you.

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Now, you have basically cited it

23 into the record, so are you offering it as an exhibit

24 into evidence also?

25          MS. WEBB:  I would like to offer it because I
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1 didn't read the entire -- I know it sounded like I did,

2 but I didn't read the whole thing.

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Is there any objection

4 then to admitting Exhibit EW-1, the revised Exhibit

5 EW-1?

6          MR. GELLMAN:  None Mr. Chairman.

7          MR. MAGRUDER:  No objection.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  EW-1 is admitted.

9          (Exhibit No. EW-1 was admitted into evidence.)

10          MS. WEBB:  Okay.  On EW-2 and 3, I have entered

11 or I have asked to enter a revised redline and revised

12 clean CEC which are in your second binder.  Or should we

13 just wait until the end for that one?

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Actually, I don't think that

15 those are appropriately considered as evidence.  They

16 are basically legal documents that we are going to work

17 on later on.  So I am not going to enter those into

18 evidence.  But we can make reference to them, and when

19 we get to that point you can make reference to them.

20          MS. WEBB:  Okay.  Exhibit EW-4 is just what I

21 called my resumé.  It is just newspaper articles and

22 then one character reference letter from my supervisor

23 in District 4.

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Any objection to EW-4?

25          MR. GELLMAN:  I think, Mr. Chairman, the letter
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1 from the supervisor is appropriately considered public

2 comment rather than evidence, so I would oppose its

3 admission as evidence.  I don't oppose obviously its

4 introduction into the docket as public comment.

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Mr. Magruder.

6          MR. MAGRUDER:  I don't mind it being entered as

7 an exhibit, Your Honor, Mr. Chairman.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  The copies that I have,

9 Ms. Webb, only contained newspaper articles.  I do not

10 have a copy of a letter.

11          MS. WEBB:  I put it on top of lots of paper.

12          MEMBER NOLAND:  The letter came separately.

13          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Oh, okay.

14          The objection is overruled.  I take the point of

15 the objection, but in this, I also anticipate that the

16 reason for offering this is to -- it is relevant to the

17 credibility of the witness.  As such, I am going to

18 consider it as evidence rather than just public comment,

19 and of course the Committee will give it the weight that

20 is appropriate.  So that objection is overruled; EW-4 is

21 admitted.

22          (Exhibit No. EW-4 was admitted into evidence.)

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Proceed.

24          MS. WEBB:  Thank you.

25          EW-5 was the reference to the population in the
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1 boundaries of the, of what I considered to be my

2 community.  This was given to me by the senior research

3 statistical analyst of the Pima Association of

4 Governments, and this leads to historical boundaries of

5 the community.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Now, you say that the -- does

7 the Vail Unified School District contain any portion or

8 is any portion of the Vail Unified School District in

9 the study area for this project?

10          MS. WEBB:  All of Segment 1A, and I believe, I

11 am not sure where the delineation mark is for 1B, but

12 all of 1A down to -- it is difficult without the line,

13 the street names, but all the way on to Wilmot Road,

14 east to Wilmot Road, south of Sahuarita Road,

15 essentially there where that little crook is at the

16 bottom.

17          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  So all of the

18 alternative route.

19          MS. WEBB:  And preferred route.

20          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And preferred route?

21          MS. WEBB:  Yes.

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Both in -- okay.

23          MS. WEBB:  Yes.

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Is there an

25 objection, then, to EW-5?
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1          MR. GELLMAN:  May I ask Ms. Webb one clarifying

2 question?

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Sure.

4          MR. GELLMAN:  Ms. Webb, was this document that

5 you provided to us, to us meaning the company, marked as

6 a set, EW-17?

7          MS. WEBB:  I think we are on 6.

8          MR. GELLMAN:  That's the purpose of my question.

9 You provided us documents that you described.  I am just

10 trying to clarify what you are moving to introduce.

11 EW-5 was provided to us as set EW-17.  We do not have a

12 binder, so I am trying to clarify exactly what you are

13 trying to introduce.

14          MS. WEBB:  I gave you have the binder previously

15 at the last hearing.

16          MR. GELLMAN:  But I understand you handed out a

17 new binder.  I am just trying to figure out what this

18 exhibit is.

19          MS. WEBB:  I will give you a copy.  I am sorry,

20 I didn't understand your question.  Let me just give you

21 my copy.

22          MR. MAGRUDER:  I will give you mine.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Mr. Magruder, do you have an

24 objection?

25          MR. MAGRUDER:  No, I have no objection.
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1          MR. GELLMAN:  I have no objection to that, Your

2 Honor.  Thank you.

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Admit EW-5.

4          (Exhibit No. EW-5 was admitted into evidence.)

5          MS. WEBB:  Okay, thank you.

6          EW-6, essentially what this is -- I was just

7 trying to save time.  I can go over it very quickly.

8          I have been asking for a long time to be

9 included in transmission planning with the company in

10 our area.  And this was a meeting at the Pima

11 Association of Governments where they did a -- Ron

12 Belval, who was an engineer for TEP, did the

13 presentation in front of the Pima Association of

14 Governments and with PES Consulting Mark Etherton.

15          I realize now I did not put a link to a website

16 on here or any other information.  So if the parties

17 have an objection, or the Chairman, I would understand

18 that.  And that's only specifically to the first piece.

19 And if -- I understood from downloading the information

20 at Superior Court I can pick out the parts that are bad.

21 Is that correct?

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I am sorry?

23          MS. WEBB:  If an exhibit in total, if there are

24 bad parts, I can pick out the bad parts.

25          CHMN. FOREMAN:  If you would like to take a
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1 portion of the exhibit that you are offering and remove

2 it and offer only a portion of what you have previously

3 offered, yes, that's permitted.

4          The other direction is, in other words, if you

5 have previously disclosed A and you want to admit B, and

6 B is smaller than A, that's fine.  If it is bigger than

7 A, then there is a problem.  So if you want to take part

8 of this out, that's fine.  What would you like to take

9 out?

10          MS. WEBB:  You know what?  I think because we

11 have so much, and I think I heard a comment the other

12 hearing that the tiny font was kind of hard to read, and

13 as I said before, I am really working on solutions, and

14 this, what this says is -- I have asked and asked and

15 asked to be involved in the bulk transmission planning

16 with FERC.  And even though that's not really what I

17 want because it is in the neighborhood planning, it is a

18 start.  And that's what solution is about, it is

19 starting.  So I am going to go ahead and just ask to

20 withdraw this exhibit, which is Exhibit --

21          CHMN. FOREMAN:  EW-6.

22          MS. WEBB:  -- 6.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  All right.  We will show

24 that Exhibit EW-6 is withdrawn.

25          All right.  EW-7.
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1          MS. WEBB:  Okay.  EW-7, this one is a challenge.

2 I submitted my first data request for projects in the

3 vicinity related to the Vail substation.  And this was

4 the one where we -- this was my second answer.  The

5 first answer the answers did not match up, so I had to

6 submit a second data request.  And this was my second

7 answer.

8          Now, in the BTA, which is TEP Exhibit -- and

9 Mr. Chairman, may I have just one moment to organize?

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.

11          MS. WEBB:  In the BTA, which is UNS-20 in the

12 list of exhibits, there is another extra high voltage

13 substation which is the -- or another line which is the

14 Tortolita to Vail substation which is not included in

15 this exhibit.  And I am not saying that to continue

16 to -- and I don't know, I don't know the lawyer words.

17 I am not saying it to constantly get mean on

18 UNS Electric or TEP.  But that would make it the third

19 time that I would have had to have re-requested this

20 data request for clarification on how many projects

21 would be related to the vicinity of this project.

22          Anyhow, this was just to say how many private

23 projects related to this particular data request are in

24 the area of this proposed project, the Vail to Valencia

25 line.  In response to this second data request, which is
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1 Exhibit 7, on this data request there are 16 proposed

2 projects in the vicinity of this Vail to Valencia line

3 in the next 25 years.

4          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.

5          MS. WEBB:  I would like to ask for that to be

6 admitted.

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Any objection?

8          MR. GELLMAN:  No objection to its admissibility.

9          MR. MAGRUDER:  No objection.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Exhibit EW-7 is admitted.

11          (Exhibit No. EW-7 was admitted into evidence.)

12          MS. WEBB:  I think we have beat this one just

13 about to death on Exhibit 8.  This was just a little

14 montage to show you examples of dull dull, not shiny

15 dull, gray, galvanized poles against the skyline and

16 mountains that are in the distance.  The one that says

17 no standing or parking at any time in red and white are

18 the existing Robert Bills and Irvington, I believe it is

19 Irvington, to Vail substation 138 line.  I know it is

20 the Robert Bills.  That would be the old Vail connection

21 road where we parallel in the preferred alignment.

22          The one with the really dark -- oh, sorry.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Go ahead.

24          MS. WEBB:  The really dark turning structure

25 next to the steel lattice structure in the H-frame in
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1 the background, that's at the Los Reales substation.

2 And that is also in the Vail School District boundaries.

3          Yes, sir.  Oh, you are looking at me.

4          Okay.  That's it.

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Any objection to Exhibit EW-8?

6          MR. GELLMAN:  None.

7          MR. MAGRUDER:  None.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Exhibit EW-8 is admitted.

9          (Exhibit No. EW-8 was admitted into evidence.)

10          MS. WEBB:  Okay.  Now, this one we are going to

11 need both your old binder and updated binder.  It is

12 EW-9.  And because of the small font, I did update some

13 of the --

14          MEMBER NOLAND:  Thank you.

15          MS. WEBB:  I couldn't find it in the transcript

16 so I didn't want to say it officially.  It is just

17 updated public comment.

18          MEMBER NOLAND:  So is it replacing,

19 Mr. Chairman?

20          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So --

21          MS. WEBB:  I put the old one next to the

22 reformatted, so it is --

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So you have taken material that

24 was in EW-9 in the original packet of materials, you

25 printed it in a larger font, and it is now behind the
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1 Tab EW-9 in your new binder, is that correct?

2          MS. WEBB:  Yes.  And I don't want to mislead

3 anyone, as well as updating it with continual public

4 comment that had been added to the docket.  That's why

5 it is updated as well.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Is there any

7 objection?

8          MR. GELLMAN:  Same objection as before,

9 Mr. Chairman.  Public comment should be treated as

10 public comment.  I don't think Ms. Webb can testify as

11 to the foundations of these exhibits if they are going

12 to be admitted as exhibits.

13          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Mr. Magruder, do you have a

14 position on EW-9?

15          MR. MAGRUDER:  I do agree with the previous

16 comment.  However, I think that the public comment

17 sometimes have unique facts.  And I think because they

18 have facts or additional evidence, I think they can

19 support somebody's testimony.  And I believe that the

20 Committee understands that it is public testimony, it is

21 not entered as -- it is public comment, it is not

22 testimony, not a sworn testimony.  And assuming that it

23 is not a sworn testimony, I would not mind having it

24 entered.

25          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Well, without getting into a
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1 long discourse on the puzzling legal rules that relate

2 to what the Committee may and may not consider, the

3 statute indicates that the Committee is to make its

4 decision based upon testimony that is sworn and provided

5 before a court reporter in a hearing.  The statute

6 equivocally refers to and historically the Committee has

7 considered public comment in addition.

8          Now, it is not clear to what extent the

9 Committee can base a decision on public comment, but

10 public comment becomes a part of the record.  And one of

11 our jobs is to develop a record for the Commission.  And

12 the Commission may wish to take that into consideration.

13          If the public comment is being offered for the

14 truth of the material contained therein, then without

15 some reason to consider the public comment as reliable,

16 I am uncomfortable placing into evidence public comment,

17 because that basically overrules the statute.  And I

18 don't think that I can overrule the legislature on this.

19          I have no problem keeping it in the record as

20 public comment that can be considered by the Commission,

21 as every other public comment, and I have no problem if

22 public comment is used by Committee members to inform

23 their questioning of other witnesses or inform their

24 consideration of other testimony.  But I am going to

25 sustain the objection because, as I understand it, this



UNS / Vail to Valencia 7/8/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 Case No. 144   Vol. IV

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

645

1 is just basic public comment, and public comment by

2 statute is to be considered different than testimony.

3          Member Eberhart.

4          MEMBER EBERHART:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman, just

5 a quick question regarding this.  Much of EW-9, these

6 letters, have already been docketed.  Does that make a

7 difference in our consideration, or even the need for

8 this to be a part of the record?

9          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And that's a very good point.

10 It is my understanding after having reviewed, not

11 completely, but partially anyway, the materials that

12 have been presented and as I understand what you have

13 said, Ms. Webb, a significant amount of what you have

14 offered in EW-9 is already a part of the record that we

15 have made, part of the Committee's exhibits that have

16 been marked, placed in the record but not admitted into

17 evidence, is that correct?

18          MS. WEBB:  I don't believe -- I think it was

19 when I was talking about something else.  And the reason

20 why I did enter this is because, again, I don't mean to

21 always go back to my other case, because that was my

22 only experience what they did with letters, but those

23 were from supervisors -- I don't know if that counts --

24 is that the Chairman took those and entered those as

25 Committee exhibits.
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1          And also the reason why I did this is because a

2 lot of this corroborates what I had to say and so it

3 doesn't make me seem like the Lone Ranger out here just

4 doing this.

5          And then also, and then I do -- I guess now I am

6 seeing that the things that are in the line siting

7 statutes supersede what the Superior Court rules say, so

8 I was -- I had looked at a lot of other rules that I

9 thought I would be able to use, but I see now the line

10 siting statute, at least in my understanding, would

11 supersede the other.  So I get that, yes.

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  The line siting statute is a

13 place where we have to start all our discussions about

14 what is admissible and not admissible and how we should

15 weigh the evidence.

16          MS. WEBB:  Right.  And then the other part is I

17 read on the front of the Line Siting Committee page on

18 the website, it says that there is a lot of latitude by

19 the Committee to determine what it is that you will

20 accept as far as --

21          And then if these are not going to be accepted

22 as evidence, there are a few things that I did not

23 include in my testimony that I would like to ask, if it

24 is not going to be entered as my exhibit, I would like

25 to ask, since the letters are written to the Chairman
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1 and the Committee, that they be entered as Committee

2 exhibits like the call to the public was of the people

3 that were in front of you.  I worked it out with my

4 court rules, but then I -- see, it is so confusing to

5 me.  I am sorry.  I will be quiet now.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  The materials that you have put

7 together, EW-9, are in the record, some of them more

8 than once.  And so the Committee members are free to

9 view those.  And more importantly, the Commission is

10 free to view it later on as it goes along.

11          The Committee is supposed to make its decision

12 based, however, on sworn testimony, testimony under oath

13 before a court reporter.  It is beyond my present

14 ability and it is beyond the scope of this hearing to

15 figure out exactly how those two propositions interact

16 with each other.  All I can try and do is to the best of

17 my ability follow the dictates of the statute first and

18 the rules of evidence and rules of procedure that have

19 been put down in doing that.

20          So, again, you have put them in the record.

21 They are in the record.  They are going to stay in the

22 record.  And my understanding is that's consistent with

23 what was done in the past, even in the case that you

24 made reference to.  But it is not going to be formally

25 made a part of the evidence.  Do you understand?
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1          MS. WEBB:  Okay.  Then I only want to ask one

2 more question so I understand.  So if I have to write a

3 request for review, would it be something I could use in

4 that?

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  If you would like to make that a

6 part of your request for review, that would, assuming

7 that you wish to request a review, that would be great.

8 And if you could get the Corporation Commission to

9 articulate on the record what it wants done with those

10 things, that would be even better.

11          MS. WEBB:  Okay.  That's all.  I guess that was

12 my end question for that.

13          Okay.  All right.  Let's move on.  I mean --

14 sorry.

15          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  So everybody understands

16 what the ruling then is on EW-9?

17          All right.  Let's move to EW-10 then.  I don't

18 have anything for EW-10 in the --

19          MS. WEBB:  That's in your old binder.

20          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I am sorry?

21          MS. WEBB:  Old binder.

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Yes, that is true.  So what

23 would you like to offer next?

24          MS. WEBB:  This is, again, I -- maybe it is just

25 because I don't know how to talk the right way when I
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1 ask my data request.  I am having a difficult time

2 phrasing them to get the answers that I guess maybe in

3 my mind I am not asking the right way.  But I asked

4 about renewables in the vicinity of the project.  And

5 then through my own private research, I found other

6 renewable projects in the vicinity of the area.  And so

7 this was just a data request to show that I had asked

8 previously so that when we get to my other examples --

9 and if I am talking the wrong way, please tell me.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I don't have EW-10.

11          MS. WEBB:  Oh, sorry.

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  None of the other members of the

13 Committee does either.  So is there anybody on the

14 Committee who has an EW-10?

15          MS. WEBB:  In your old binder?

16          MEMBER NOLAND:  No.

17          MEMBER YOULE:  Not me.

18          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Does the applicant have a copy

19 of EW-10?

20          MR. GELLMAN:  If I could just have the data

21 request number.

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  It says Data Request E. Webb 5,

23 5a, 5b.  It is dated May 21, 2009.

24          MS. WEBB:  That's correct.

25          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I tell you, why don't we have
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1 you make copies of this at the break and bring it back

2 and consider it later.  That way everybody will have an

3 opportunity to look at it.

4          Mr. Magruder, do you have a copy of EW-10?

5          MR. MAGRUDER:  Mr. Chairman, I can't find it.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  So let's just defer

7 consideration of EW-10.

8          Now, EW-11, as I understand it, has already been

9 admitted?

10          MS. WEBB:  Correct.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So that brings us to EW-12.

12          MS. WEBB:  This is just to show another private

13 project in the vicinity of the proposed project.  If you

14 look at the southern end of the paper, it is sort of a

15 greenish speckling thing and it says New Tucson, 2010.

16          This would be in your new binder.  And for the

17 record, I gave UNS Electric their own binder at the last

18 hearing.  I gave it to Mr. Gellman.

19          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So the copy of EW-12 that I have

20 has a notice of filing additional potential exhibits

21 that's two pages long and then a map of SWTC current and

22 planned system western area 2009 to 2018, a 10-year

23 project planned by SWTC.

24          MS. WEBB:  Correct.

25          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.
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1          MEMBER YOULE:  Mr. Chairman, which I think is

2 the same map we got as EW-13.

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Is it the same map as

4 EW-13?

5          MS. WEBB:  No.  That's what my daughter said

6 last night.  They look similar.  One is SWTC and one is

7 TEP.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.

9          MEMBER YOULE:  Thank you.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So let's go back to EW-12.  Is

11 there an objection to EW-12?

12          MR. GELLMAN:  Mr. Chairman, no objection to

13 EW-12.  I understand that to be Southwest's 10-year

14 planning map from 2009 to 2018.

15          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Mr. Magruder.

16          MR. MAGRUDER:  No, sir.

17          MS. WEBB:  That's 17.

18          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I'm sorry?

19          MS. WEBB:  That's another, to add to 16.  It is

20 now up to 17 in the year of the proposed project, the

21 private entities.

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  EW-12 is admitted.

23          (Exhibit No. EW-12 was admitted into evidence.)

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So EW-13 now.  And this is the

25 one sheet that says TEP 10-year plan.
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1          MR. MAGRUDER:  Correct.

2          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Any objection?

3          MR. GELLMAN:  None.

4          MS. WEBB:  This is to speak towards the

5 confusion, or me anyhow -- I am sorry.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Let Mr. Magruder --

7          MR. MAGRUDER:  I have an objection on one of the

8 lines I am just noticing here, and that's the one that

9 goes through CFE Mexico to South station.  That doesn't

10 look like it is going to happen.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So you object to the line but

12 not the exhibit?

13          MR. MAGRUDER:  Not to the exhibit.

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Well, I am not in a

15 position to admit the line.  So I am just trying to

16 admit the exhibit.  So we will admit --

17          MR. MAGRUDER:  I won't object to the exhibit.

18          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Very good.  Exhibit

19 EW-13 is admitted.

20          (Exhibit No. EW-13 was admitted into evidence.)

21          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Let's go to 14.

22          MS. WEBB:  This just speaks for me to the

23 general confusion on this project, because when I

24 started this out and I got the, got the application

25 which was in the middle of May, I knew about the
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1 northern end.  I had been to the open houses and I

2 focused on the northern end in Pima County.  So when I

3 went on this tour and it says Sonoita substation and

4 there is a TEP sign, it is confusing.  It is confusing.

5 The pictures are confusing.  And this is just another

6 example to me of why this project is confusing.

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Is there an objection?

8          MR. GELLMAN:  No objection to the photo, Your

9 Honor.

10          MR. MAGRUDER:  No objection.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Exhibit EW-14 is admitted.

12          (Exhibit No. EW-14 was admitted into evidence.)

13          MS. WEBB:  EW-15 was the first meeting I

14 attended in regards to this project.  It was in Tubac at

15 the Santa Cruz Valley Citizens Council meeting on

16 April 21st, 2008, and the new business was the UES

17 upgrade of the 115kV power line.

18          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Am I correct in my understanding

19 that this exhibit is already a part of the application

20 that we have received in evidence?

21          MS. WEBB:  This one is not in the application.

22          MR. GELLMAN:  I don't believe this is in the

23 application, Your Honor.

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Is there an objection to

25 the admission of EW-15?
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1          MR. GELLMAN:  There is not.

2          MR. MAGRUDER:  There is not, but it is

3 interesting to know that Mr. Magruder discussed that --

4 oh, I am sorry.  Excuse me.  Take back my comments.

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  You do not take back your

6 nonobjection?

7          MR. MAGRUDER:  I do not object.  It is fine.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  There is no

9 objection.  EW-15 will be admitted.

10          (Exhibit No. EW-15 was admitted into evidence.)

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Let's go to EW-16.

12          MS. WEBB:  This was a -- this is the second

13 renewables interconnection process workshop held by

14 Mr. Ron Belval.  This one was docketed so you can see

15 where it came from.  It is the Docket E-00000D-07-0376.

16          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.

17          MS. WEBB:  And it shows a view for renewables in

18 the vicinity of the project.  And there is the solar

19 one.  Mr. Beck testified that there will be a renewable

20 project somewhere in the vicinity of South and Vail

21 substation in his testimony, between the two somewhere.

22          And then there is in, this is in my private

23 research again -- I am just frustrated.  I am frustrated

24 because I asked specifically in my data request if there

25 were any renewable projects in the vicinity of the
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1 project twice.  The first time I didn't speak the right

2 language because I said, I don't know what I said, it

3 was Vail substation.  The second time I said the

4 vicinity of the project.

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Is there any objection to

6 Exhibit EW-16?

7          MR. GELLMAN:  I guess the relevance would be

8 questionable, but in light of the fact of some other

9 exhibits that are admitted, no objection.

10          MR. MAGRUDER:  No objection.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  There is no objection.

12          MEMBER MUNDELL:  Mr. Chairman, just a general

13 comment if I could.

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Mundell.

15          MEMBER MUNDELL:  Thank you.

16          Ms. Webb, I have heard a couple times that you

17 haven't been happy with the answers that the utility has

18 provided to you pursuant to your data request.  And I

19 would just say in the future, you know -- and I

20 understand you are not a lawyer and you are doing the

21 best you can -- in the future if you are not happy or

22 satisfied with the answers that the utility provides,

23 you should file a motion for the Chairman to review to

24 determine whether or not the Chairman and ultimately the

25 Committee believe that the responses are not adequate or
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1 they are not responsive to the question.

2          So I mean I understand your frustration dealing

3 with lawyers on the other side that have been to law

4 school that have passed the bar and are trained, but I

5 would just make that suggestion in the future because I

6 assume that you will be participating in future

7 proceedings because of your concern for your community

8 and the residents of your community.  So I just want to

9 give that a little suggestion to help you in the future.

10          MS. WEBB:  Okay.  Thank you.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  EW-16 is admitted.

12          (Exhibit No. EW-16 was admitted into evidence.)

13          CHMN. FOREMAN:  EW-17.

14          MS. WEBB:  Okay.  This is a grouping.  I thought

15 maybe it would be more efficient to do a grouping

16 instead of all these separate ones, like they did in the

17 application.

18          The first one is a map.  17A is a listing of the

19 registered neighborhood associations in the vicinity of

20 the proposed project.  You can see -- I think yours is

21 in color, mine is in black and white.  I get the poor

22 version.  And it shows that there are two that are in

23 the direct vicinity of the proposed project.  And then

24 there will be a chart that shows, and I have included

25 the reference of where the chart came from, so that you
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1 can see that there were neighborhood and are

2 neighborhood associations in the direct vicinity of the

3 proposed project at a very minimum before the

4 December 2008 open house.

5          The second one is the mailing labels for the

6 second and third -- the second newsletters.

7 Unfortunately, and this -- should I stop talking about

8 data requests or am I allowed to stop talking about them

9 or should I just stop?

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Well, we went over data requests

11 at the prehearing conference we had a few days before

12 the original hearings, and at that time I asked if you

13 had concerns.  And as I -- we did discuss a few of the

14 concerns that were raised at that point and I made

15 rulings on them.  And I indicated at that time that if

16 you had other problems that you should let me know and

17 we would deal with them as they came up.

18          If you want to raise them now and there is

19 additional information you feel like you need, then we

20 can address that.  If you are raising them now just as a

21 way of indicating you don't believe that the applicant

22 has been cooperative with you, that's something else

23 again and it is something I think you probably can

24 address in your closing comments.

25          MS. WEBB:  See, I don't -- and I think I
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1 understood what you said.  This particular one came up

2 as a result of testimony that occurred in the last

3 hearing.  And part of it is if I don't have the

4 information to begin with, I don't know that it has not

5 come through on a data request.  Because I think

6 inherently, as long as I have been doing activism, I am

7 still a little lame until I get the first answer, I

8 believe, until I start doing research and then something

9 pops up.

10          So I didn't understand in the previous one

11 something was missing in this particular case.  I

12 thought I had received all of the answers.  And then

13 later on you will see at the end of 17 that there is a

14 map that came in, the first newsletter that came in

15 later, that I never even knew existed.  So I docketed

16 the one for the Newsletter 2 and 3.  But I was never

17 told that there was going to be another newsletter

18 mailing coming in.

19          And I guess I just felt kind of stupid because I

20 just never even knew.  I just assumed maybe for some

21 reason the northern end, there was never a letter sent

22 out for No. 1 for whatever reason.  So that was sort of

23 the situation.  There are always sort of a little

24 variation.  So I don't know exactly how to address that.

25          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Do you think that there is
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1 anything that you do not now know that would be helpful

2 to you, important to you in taking the position you want

3 to take before the Committee?

4          MS. WEBB:  No.  It is all related to the

5 solution.  So I guess we should just move on from that.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Is there any objection to

7 the admission of Exhibit EW-17?

8          MR. GELLMAN:  Mr. Chairman, there are several

9 parts to EW-17.  A couple of those were, quite frankly,

10 items we responded to Ms. Webb.  So to the extent those

11 are being introduced, we do not.

12          But there are additional exhibits where I think

13 there is lack of foundation, namely the, I believe the

14 map which she referred to showing, purporting to show

15 the boundaries of the community associations.  Quite

16 frankly, I think we need more foundation to indicate

17 where those boundaries came from, what information she

18 derived to come up with those boundaries, how that map

19 was drawn.  I think there is significant foundational

20 questions about, namely, the first, the third, and the

21 fourth portions of EW-17.  I would object to those

22 particular documents.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  And they have

24 been -- just so we understand what we are talking about

25 here, as I understand it, the applicant wishes to
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1 object, at least without further discussion, to Exhibit

2 EW-17 A, I have got a C 1, and, I am sorry, was there a

3 third part of it that you wished to object to, Counsel?

4          MR. GELLMAN:  Yes, A, C, and D.

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  A, C and D.

6          MR. GELLMAN:  Foundation.

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Mr. Magruder, do you have

8 any objections?

9          MR. MAGRUDER:  It doesn't bother me, these, the

10 foundational, so I don't object.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.

12          Ms. Webb, tell us where, let's start out with

13 Exhibit 17 A, where did that come from.

14          MS. WEBB:  If you look at the bottom right-hand

15 side of that map, it says that it is -- this one is in

16 black and white.  That actually has got quite a bit of

17 information.  It says from the Pima County GIS mapping

18 division.  I think it also has the engineer's name on

19 it, and it says that he is the head of that division.

20 It says it is compiled from various different sources

21 other than Pima County GIS system and is actually used

22 by quite a few different agencies.  It is on line --

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Stop there.

24          Counsel, do you have any questions you would

25 like to ask Ms. Webb about the foundation for EW-17 A?
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1          MR. GELLMAN:  Ms. Webb, when I go to that

2 website, on the lower right-hand corner, what would I

3 see?  Do I see this map?

4          MS. WEBB:  I don't know.

5          MR. GELLMAN:  So you don't know whether, if I

6 pulled up this website on the screen, this map would

7 appear?  You can't tell me that?

8          MS. WEBB:  No.  But what I can tell you is that

9 if you contact the gentleman who derived this map, and

10 if you go to the GIS website which I disclosed to you

11 several times that you can derive all of this

12 information the same way I did for my table.  This was

13 made by a professional at Pima County who derived the

14 information with the Vail neighborhood associations.  It

15 has got the date, it has got the web information.

16          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Let me back up and see if I

17 understand what you are saying.

18          There is a web address at the very bottom of the

19 legend in the lower right-hand corner.  So if you went

20 to that web address, would this map be on the page?

21          MS. WEBB:  I honestly do not know, so I cannot

22 answer that correctly.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  How did you obtain this map?

24          MS. WEBB:  From the Pima County, the gentleman

25 on -- I can't read it right now, so I can't say what his
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1 name was.  Mark.

2          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So you went to somebody at the

3 Pima County DOT, Geographic Information Services, and

4 you asked for a map concerning the Vail neighborhood

5 associations, and they gave you this, is that correct?

6          MS. WEBB:  Correct.

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Counsel, do you have

8 anything else that you would like to add?

9          MR. GELLMAN:  No, Mr. Chairman.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Noland.

11          MEMBER NOLAND:  Thank you.

12          Ms. Webb, I believe in Pima County, associations

13 are registered with the county for rezoning

14 notifications, other types of community notifications

15 for things that may be of impact to that area, is that

16 correct?

17          MS. WEBB:  Correct.

18          MEMBER NOLAND:  And so that is what you are

19 showing here, not only with this map but also with the

20 listing of associations?  Are you trying to lay a

21 foundation to show that Vail is registered with Pima

22 County as an association?

23          MS. WEBB:  What I am trying to lay foundation

24 for is when Mr. Miller testified that there was no NGOs

25 registered in the direct vicinity of the project.  And I
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1 can't say Vail, but what I can say is that there are

2 NGOs registered in the direct vicinity of the project.

3          MEMBER NOLAND:  Okay.  Thank you.

4          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  The objection as to

5 Exhibit 17, EW-17 A is overruled.  EW-17 A is admitted.

6          Now, with regard to Exhibit EW-17 C --

7          MR. GELLMAN:  Mr. Chairman, I will withdraw my

8 objection to C and D.

9          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  With the objections

10 withdrawn, Exhibit EW-17 in its entirety is admitted.

11          (Exhibit No. EW-17 was admitted into evidence.)

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Let's go to 18.

13          Now, Ms. Webb, you have filed a notice and you

14 filed some additional exhibits.  Is there anything --

15          MS. WEBB:  18 A through F.

16          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Yes.

17          MS. WEBB:  This was in regard to what I had

18 spoken of in my testimony about not having legal

19 authorization for the existing line in decision -- the

20 current decision at the location of the WAPA substation.

21 And that's in a letter.  And this is from Susan Bernal,

22 who is the head of the right-of-way division in the

23 Tucson right-of-way or Tucson regional office for the

24 BLM.

25          Also in TEP exhibits for agency outreach
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1 letters, there is no outreach letter to the BLM that was

2 sent in January of 2008 when they sent them to the other

3 agencies.  The agency outreach that's indicated to

4 Angela Mogel, if that's how you pronounce it, might be

5 Mogel, that is indicated, she is not the appropriate

6 agency contact for the BLM.  She is in the Phoenix

7 office for the State of Arizona.  The office that has to

8 be contacted for the BLM is the Tucson regional office.

9          And the relevancy in this is that a lot of

10 energy has been expended to agencies that have no

11 authority, permitting authority, applicable permitting

12 authority for this project, I have observed.  And this

13 agency is probably the number one agency above the ACC,

14 I mean or equal to, in regard to two of the preferred

15 alignments.  And I have grave concerns about that.

16          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Well, help me to understand

17 this.  Is there any BLM land that is impacted in any way

18 by any of the proposed or alternative alignments in this

19 application?

20          MS. WEBB:  Yes.  In Segment 1A approximately --

21 Marshall.  Sorry.

22          In Segment 1A, the preferred alignment, after

23 going east from the Vail substation where it intersects

24 with Wilmot Road -- tell me when you are ready -- it

25 would continue south and actually in the current CEC it
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1 says would interconnect in the Nogales tap, which is on

2 BLM land.  That might be a mistake.  Regardless, it

3 would go down BLM property, which would then trigger

4 NEPA in some form for the entire project.

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Mr. Gellman.

6          MR. GELLMAN:  No objection.

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Mr. Magruder.

8          MR. MAGRUDER:  Maybe it is my copy.

9          MS. WEBB:  There is another segment, too.

10 That's not the only one.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  We will get to it in just

12 a moment.

13          Mr. Magruder, do you have an objection?

14          MR. MAGRUDER:  On the copy I have for EW-18 I

15 have two copies of page 1 for the first two pages.  And

16 the second one is questions 1 and 2 --

17          THE REPORTER:  Mr. Magruder, could you talk into

18 the microphone.

19          MR. MAGRUDER:  In my copies of EW-18, the first

20 two pages are duplicated and I don't have the second

21 page of either of the first two pages the way it is put

22 together.  In particular, like looking on the e-mail

23 from Susan Bernal, she has four questions at the top and

24 starts out second e-mail response.  It only has one and

25 doesn't have the answer for 2, 3, and 4.
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1           And she is now handing me the page I am

2 currently missing.

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Good.

4          MR. MAGRUDER:  And therefore I have no

5 objection.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Member Mundell, any

7 questions?

8          MEMBER MUNDELL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  And I

9 don't know if it is premature because I know you are

10 going through exhibits, but I assume at some time the

11 applicant will address the BLM question, I mean the

12 issue.

13          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Well, yes, I am assuming at some

14 time we will get to that.  I would hope that we would be

15 able to conclude Ms. Webb's direct examination so that

16 we don't take a detour off and have to come back and

17 clean that up later on.  So, but yes, I think that this

18 would be something that would be appropriate to address.

19 And as I understand it, Mr. Beck will talk about that in

20 his upcoming rebuttal testimony.

21          MEMBER MUNDELL:  Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

22          MS. WEBB:  Then the second preferred

23 alignment --

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Wait.

25          MS. WEBB:  Sorry.
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1          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I was merely inquiring about

2 contact and order to establish relevancy.  You have

3 established one.  And so because there is no objection

4 and it appears relevant, EW-18 is admitted.

5          (Exhibit No. EW-18 was admitted into evidence.)

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Now let's go to EW-19.

7          MS. WEBB:  I think normally I can talk really

8 fast, but -- sorry.  Okay.  We can go through these

9 fairly quickly.

10          This is just my pleading.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Can you just generally describe

12 what is in EW-19.

13          MS. WEBB:  What is in EW-19 is just essentially

14 what is in my pleading, which is in the front of your

15 binder, my very short pleading.  And it just

16 corroborates my reasons for the things that I have

17 requested in my pleading.  The only thing it does not

18 discuss, which I would just like to spend a minute or

19 two, was my meeting with John Hays, who is the

20 floodplain coordinator with the Santa Cruz County Flood

21 Control District.

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  But this relates to

23 floodplain impact on homes that are in the area of the

24 project that has been described as the lower end of

25 Segment 2 and Segment 3, is that correct?
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1          MS. WEBB:  Correct.  Additionally, it also has

2 some other photo exhibits to corroborate my pleading for

3 the entire segment, each segment broken down into each

4 segment.

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Is there objection by the

6 applicant?

7          MR. GELLMAN:  None.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Mr. Magruder.

9          MR. MAGRUDER:  No objection.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  EW-19 is admitted.

11          (Exhibit No. EW-19 was admitted into evidence.)

12          MS. WEBB:  And I misunderstood the thing on the

13 exhibit, so I have a little note that my Exhibit 11 was

14 entered.

15          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Exhibit 11 was previously

16 admitted.

17          MS. WEBB:  I misunderstood what you said.

18          CHMN. FOREMAN:  You offered it and it had been

19 admitted last time.

20          MS. WEBB:  Yes.  And then at the end I redlined

21 it in my complete, clean CEC at the end of the binder.

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  So 20 and 21 are -- I

23 don't have.

24          MS. WEBB:  I was just going to, if anybody wants

25 information on, more concrete information on BLM NEPA
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1 requirements, I have that available, the entire binder,

2 and I can get applicable pieces copied if anyone is

3 interested.  And also counsel on the environmental

4 quality CEQ, and I did previously disclose it, and that

5 has also been docketed, I mean mailed up to Docket

6 Control, but at this point, probably too much.

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  As a matter of general

8 information, if somebody is interested they can talk to

9 you at the break or at the end of the hearing.

10          If it comes to pass that particular portions of

11 those rules become relevant to our discussions later on,

12 then I would ask you to refer to particular portions of

13 them and we will deal then with the question of whether

14 they should be made a part of the record, or if they are

15 in effect rules and regulations of the state or federal

16 government, then we can simply take notice of them

17 without making them a part of the evidence.

18          All right.  So we are finished now with the

19 evidence that you wish to present on your direct

20 examination, is that correct, Ms. Webb?

21          MS. WEBB:  Can I just clarify one point?

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.

23          MS. WEBB:  Real quick.  So then I am going to

24 have separate time to do my pleading discussions?

25          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I am sorry?
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1          MS. WEBB:  I will have a separate time to do my

2 preferred segments?

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  If you want to address those

4 now, that would be fine, or you can address them in your

5 closing remarks, in your final argument, whichever you

6 would prefer.

7          MS. WEBB:  Can I -- well, I will do it now.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  If you want to do it now,

9 why don't we take a brief recess and we will come back.

10 We will come back at 11:15.  It is now almost 11:00.  We

11 will come back at 11:15 and have your remarks then.

12          (A recess ensued from 10:57 a.m. to 11:18 a.m.)

13          CHMN. FOREMAN:  We are going to resume our

14 hearing, go back on the record.

15          Now, Ms. Webb, you had indicated that you had

16 some additional evidence that you wanted to present as a

17 part of your testimony.

18          MS. WEBB:  Yes.

19          CHMN. FOREMAN:  You may proceed.

20          MS. WEBB:  Mr. Chairman, I just received a phone

21 call from Mr. John Hays, the floodplain coordinator from

22 Santa Cruz County, while I was testifying, and I have

23 been given a copy of that letter.  And I would like to

24 represent my very short pleading, because I mean just

25 for facts.
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1          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.

2          MS. WEBB:  Or should I wait?

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And has the letter -- is the

4 letter in evidence?

5          MS. WEBB:  No.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Has the letter been

7 disclosed?

8          MR. GELLMAN:  Mr. Chairman, I think we are aware

9 of the letter that has just been issued by Santa Cruz

10 County.  I think that's the letter that Ms. Webb is

11 referring to.  But my understanding is this may have

12 been issued as recently as this morning.

13          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Really?  Okay.  So do you have

14 an objection to that letter being admitted into

15 evidence?

16          MR. GELLMAN:  If it is that letter, I do not

17 have an objection.

18          MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Chairman, our intention --

19 Mr. Gellman correctly stated that during Ms. Webb's

20 direct testimony we received a letter.  This letter is

21 referenced in Mr. Beck's rebuttal testimony, which has

22 been marked as UNS-24.  The letter had been anticipated

23 for some time.  We had hoped to have it before the

24 hearing.  Mr. Hays had indicated during his meeting with

25 representatives of the applicant that he would issue
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1 such a letter.

2          We have just received it this morning.  We are

3 making copies.  We will have copies to distribute to

4 members of the Committee, and we will mark it as an

5 exhibit and introduce it through Mr. Beck's rebuttal

6 testimony, which I assume will follow the conclusion of

7 Ms. Webb's direct.  But if she would like, I have

8 provided a copy of the letter that we just received, if

9 she wants to reference it or discuss it in some way, I

10 have no objection to that.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Well, Mr. Magruder,

12 are you the other dog in this fight?

13          MR. MAGRUDER:  I would like to have the letter

14 available when I ask Ms. Webb some questions in

15 cross-examination.

16          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  So we will make

17 this -- well, Ms. Webb, you are the one that wants to

18 offer it, so we will make it EW-20, or 22?

19          MS. WEBB:  22, EW --

20          CHMN. FOREMAN:  EW-20 and 21 --

21          MS. WEBB:  Let's leave those open just in case

22 somebody from the Committee has questions about NEPA

23 stuff.

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  We will leave 20 and

25 21 open, and we will make this 22.  This is the Santa
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1 Cruz County letter, and it is dated what date?

2          MR. DERSTINE:  July 8th.

3          MS. WEBB:  July 8th.

4          CHMN. FOREMAN:  July 8th.  And the person who is

5 sending the letter is?

6          MS. WEBB:  John E. Hays, E.I.T., CFM, floodplain

7 coordinator.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  All right.  And as I

9 understand it, there is no objection by anyone to the

10 admission of this letter.

11          MR. DERSTINE:  No objection, Mr. Chairman.  I do

12 want to note for the record, as I indicated, we have

13 just received this letter by e-mail.  After e-mailing us

14 the letter, Mr. Hays then sent two maps, or pages of the

15 same map that are referenced in this letter.  We are in

16 the process of copying it and stapling the maps and the

17 letter together.  So I think the document Ms. Webb has

18 is simply the letter itself without the maps.  If you

19 would like to defer this until we actually have all the

20 appropriate copies and you can mark the complete version

21 of this letter, that would be my suggestion.

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Why don't we just make this

23 EW-22 and indicate that it will be with the maps.

24          Ms. Webb, do you want to offer the maps also?

25          MS. WEBB:  I haven't seen them yet, so I
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1 probably, without seeing them --

2          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  We will just mark

3 this as EW-22.  You can go ahead and make reference to

4 it and we will -- I will confess that I have never

5 conducted an evidentiary hearing where evidence was

6 being created during a morning recess.  So I am somewhat

7 at a loss as to how to proceed.  But we will see if we

8 can't stagger through on this.  So, Ms. Webb, you may

9 proceed.

10          MS. WEBB:  All right.  With my very short

11 pleading, that's what I called it, at the very

12 beginning, because that will be very short, at the

13 beginning, for all segments, 1A, I support the preferred

14 alignment along the northern boundary with the following

15 modifications:

16          I would like to reduce right-of-way where it

17 would run along the northern portion.

18          I want dull, not shiny, dull galvanized steel

19 poles in the same alignment.  This is the front of your

20 new binder.

21          Three, Mr. Magruder's pole plan, I would like an

22 update of the environmental accountability on the

23 previous Decision 56097.

24          I would prefer to see the current legal

25 situation regarding BLM's existing right-of-way resolved
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1 prior to the issuance.

2          Segment 1B, I support the preferred alignment

3 with the following modifications:

4          I have the same concerns.  I wanted an upgrade

5 of the environmental compatibility as this is being put

6 together as an entire package.

7          In Segment 2 I support the alignment with the

8 following modifications:

9          I would like to see the existing wood H-frames

10 used in the uplands.  As it drops into the Santa Cruz

11 Valley, that's where the steel monopoles would be

12 replaced.  Then the uplands there are very few

13 residences and from this point forward, the utility can

14 keep people out of their right-of-ways.  I have shown in

15 my exhibits that in the upgraded line where the steel

16 monopoles exist that there are already new encroachments

17 in their right-of-way.

18          As the alignment drops into the Santa Cruz

19 Valley, that uses the existing alignment until it

20 reaches Pendleton Drive.  The alignment drops -- I wrote

21 that twice there.  When it reaches Pendleton Drive, it

22 will parallel the roadway until it reaches the Cañez

23 substation, where it will head west into the substation.

24 This is a deviation from any of the proposed alignments.

25 The alignment will then head east to the roadway and



UNS / Vail to Valencia 7/8/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 Case No. 144   Vol. IV

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

676

1 shift in a southerly manner to parallel Pendleton Drive.

2 Near the intersection of Pendleton Drive and Avenida

3 Coatimundi the alignment shifts and goes to the Sonoita

4 substation.

5          To simplify, based on my discussion with

6 Mr. Hays, the Santa Cruz County floodplain coordinator,

7 I am suggesting the Pendleton Road alignment for the

8 area known as the mesquite bosque.  And I would like to

9 note that I mailed this to Docket Control prior to

10 receiving this letter today -- whoops.  Sorry.  Pardon

11 me, facts.  Oh, that is a fact.  I did mail this prior

12 to receiving this letter today.

13          I chose this Pendleton alignment based on the

14 data that was provided to me from my discussion with

15 Mr. Hays.  I have now received a letter that talks about

16 that data, which has also been entered into my evidence.

17          The fact is this line is considered a critical

18 facility for the county of Santa Cruz.  Critical

19 facilities and services should not be located in

20 regulatory floodplains.

21          This is Exhibit EW-19 D.  If it is to be located

22 in a regulatory floodplain, there must be a rigorous

23 alternative site evaluation work performed by an Arizona

24 registered professional civil engineer stating that

25 there is no alternative site.  Any such facility or
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1 service located within a regulatory floodplain must be

2 protected from the 500-year flood event.  I have not

3 observed that there is any indication in this

4 application for cost to build these structures to

5 500-year floodplain requirements.

6          Okay.  Also I have entered 1 -- I mean 19 C 1

7 through 4, which are the maps in front of you here,

8 which show that some of these properties have not been

9 sold.  And these are representative of the mesquite

10 bosque and are very short shallow lots.  And I have not

11 observed any discussion proposal that has shown that the

12 100-foot easement is going to be abandoned.  Some of

13 these lots are very shallow.  If you were to put two

14 100-foot right-of-ways, it will almost completely narrow

15 those lots together.  And I have not observed that there

16 are agreements in place with these people.

17          And also I have observed that Mr. Jakle and

18 Mr. Campana both wrote to the company with differing

19 views at almost the same time at the beginning of this

20 project.  And I have not observed that there has been

21 reconciliation between those two landowners for either

22 the preferred or the existing alignment.

23          Okay.  Let's move on to the next segment.

24          Oh, also with my discussion with Mr. Hays, it

25 was disclosed to me that there is very little
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1 horizontal -- and I am not an engineer; I don't know the

2 name of these kind of washes.  Most of the washes run

3 downhill to the railroad tracks.  There are very little

4 of the kind of washes that run across to form what would

5 be called, I don't know, I would call it a T to stop

6 that flooding.  So everything that comes down that hill

7 goes right down to the railroad tracks.  So regardless

8 of whether it is on the east or the west side of the

9 railroad tracks, there is going to be quite a bit of

10 debris.  It is going to be in the 500-year floodplain.

11 And for the very few -- okay, I am testifying.

12          I also have a map in front of me that was given

13 to Mr. Hays with the number of poles that would be

14 placed along the railroad tracks on the west side.  The

15 number, I counted it at approximately nine to ten

16 between the Cañez and Sonoita substation.  And if the

17 Committee were to choose either one of the east or west

18 alignments, then you might as well go with one that's

19 going to be the best for the people who bought

20 their -- I am testifying again.  I am sorry.  Let's stop

21 that there.

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Actually you are testifying.

23          MS. WEBB:  I stopped.  I am sorry.

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Well, I would like for you to

25 conclude.  I would like for you to keep testifying and
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1 finish your testimony and later on you will be able to

2 make your argument.

3          MS. WEBB:  Okay.  All right.

4          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So do you have any other

5 testimony to present?

6          MS. WEBB:  Well, I guess my short point was, is

7 that if you are going to put that line right down by the

8 railroad tracks, it wouldn't make too much difference

9 because the floodplain maps show that the area in

10 question by those residences is in the 500-year

11 floodplain, it is not in the floodway.  And the map that

12 was given to Mr. Hays shows the alignment down at the

13 entire west side of the railroad tracks.  It does not

14 show just the area, I believe it was described as, the

15 tenth of a mile that's in question.  So you can look at

16 that on the maps that will be provided.

17          Okay, I am done with that piece.  There is only

18 one tiny segment left.

19          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.

20          MS. WEBB:  From the Sonoita substation I support

21 the rest of the proposed lines with the following

22 caveats.  All of the right-of-ways, particularly in

23 urban areas where there is a very small area for the

24 right-of-way, need to be evaluated to see if reduction

25 is possible to reduce costs, especially because we are
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1 asking for dull gray galvanized steel poles.

2          Underbuild, underbuild, underbuild.  Smaller,

3 poorer communities -- I might be testifying again.  I

4 have that Santa Cruz County is a smaller, poorer

5 community.  And smaller, poorer communities oftentimes

6 have a harder time having advocacy.  And -- well, I

7 might be testifying again.  And so I believe that they

8 deserve a higher level of advocacy.  And I observed that

9 there are distribution lines all over the place.  And if

10 there is going to be a transmission line there, as there

11 are projects up in Tucson and, City of Tucson and Pima

12 County, the projects are asking the utilities to

13 consolidate.  Anyplace that underbuilding can be done to

14 clean up the visual blight in those communities should

15 be done.

16          All right.  How the area and mesquite bosque can

17 occur legally.  I have a few ideas, but this is the one

18 that I thought that the Committee might like the best.

19 From what I understood, and I could not find a

20 definition of day in the Arizona Revised Statutes, so I

21 had to sort of go outside the line siting statutes, I

22 mean you have 180 days.  And even given the 20 days that

23 you have to notice the scheduled hearing to everyone, I

24 still think there is enough time to be able to do the

25 work that you need to do.
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1          I am going to go to John Hays.  He said you

2 would have to work with Santa Cruz County in order to

3 work on the road.  What you could then do is work with

4 Santa Cruz County on your right-of-way costs and your

5 maintenance costs, because that tree eating machine, it

6 is just an awful thing.  I have seen it in action.  So

7 you have got the tree eating machine or the five-year

8 trim.  And that's a lot of money for continued

9 maintenance into the next 50, 60, 100 years.  So you can

10 share the right-of-way costs with Santa Cruz County.  It

11 would be along the road.  And portions of that are in

12 the 500-year floodplain.  But you could, you would have

13 less cost and constructing them to the standards.

14          Okay.  So I think on the day thing, you could

15 still get in under the 180, especially if computation of

16 time means that Saturday, Sunday, and holidays are

17 considered to be not days.  Now, that's in the statute,

18 but I don't know if there is a special Commission day

19 statute that I couldn't find in my research.

20          Now, I have some secondary alternatives that I

21 was not able to include in here based on my time

22 constraints.  One is to toll the bell.  I have heard

23 that was done before, previously in Case 111.  I don't

24 know the legal argument behind that, but I know it has

25 been used.  Or the third one is to deny the CEC.
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1          So those are my preferences for each alignment.

2          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Very good.  Does that

3 conclude your testimony?

4          MS. WEBB:  I believe so.

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Very good.

6          Mr. Magruder, do you wish to cross-examine?

7          MR. MAGRUDER:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Proceed.

9

10                     CROSS-EXAMINATION

11 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

12    Q.    Ms. Webb, is one of your major concerns the

13 continual addition of transmission lines in the Vail

14 area?

15    A.    Yes.

16    Q.    And how many lines go to the Vail substation at

17 this time?  Approximately how many transmission lines go

18 to the Vail substation?

19    A.    Are you talking about the preferred alignment

20 or --

21    Q.    No, I am just talking about a substation as an

22 entity.

23    A.    Go to or come out of or total?

24    Q.    Either.

25    A.    Out of --
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1    Q.    How many --

2    A.    -- I would say --

3    Q.    -- lines start or stop?

4          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Whoa, whoa.

5          THE WITNESS:  Five or six.

6 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

7    Q.    Five or six.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Let me stop you here.  It is

9 important that only one of you speak at a time, because

10 the court reporter, while she has two ears, has only one

11 machine.  And so she can only take down one at a dime.

12          So, Mr. Magruder, you finish a question.

13 Ms. Webb, you respond to it.  Then, Mr. Magruder, you

14 start with a new question.  Let's try that again.

15 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

16    Q.    Ms. Webb, how many lines go to or from the Vail

17 substation?

18    A.    Without looking at my exhibit, offhand I would

19 say five, six or something like that.

20    Q.    And did your testimony say that you had had

21 counted up something like 16 additional lines going to

22 and from that?

23    A.    I think 17.

24    Q.    17.  So that means within the next 25 years you

25 are looking at maybe six plus maybe 17 or maybe over 20
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1 lines going to and from the Vail substation?

2    A.    Yes.

3    Q.    Okay.  Is that a concern of yours?

4    A.    Yes.

5    Q.    Is it a concern with people in your

6 neighborhood?

7    A.    Yes.

8    Q.    And is that one of the principal reasons why you

9 are here in these hearings?

10    A.    Absolutely.

11    Q.    Does it look to you like they are sort of

12 piecemealing it, doing it one at a time and not looking

13 at the big picture from your community's viewpoint?

14    A.    Yes.

15    Q.    And what is some of the solutions that you might

16 have to help your community work and solve the big

17 picture problem?

18    A.    Well, since I have been doing this in the last

19 almost two years, I have read about this Southern

20 Arizona Transmission Study group.  And I think it is a

21 great idea because it works with all the different

22 utilities.  And I just think, especially given this

23 transformer, which a very small portion is going to

24 Nogales and a very large portion is going to be in Vail,

25 it just makes sense because we can be the best advocates
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1 for the utility if we get to know what is going to

2 happen.

3    Q.    Do you see in the -- and I mean you are looking

4 in the present and the future conglomeration of

5 transmission lines going to Vail -- do you see them all

6 going to single circuit structures, or do you see some

7 of them using double or triple circuit structures in any

8 of your research?

9    A.    They all seem to be single.

10    Q.    Have you recommended that they possibly double

11 circuit some of these?

12    A.    Yes.

13    Q.    And if you have -- would you recommend that for

14 any parts of this line siting case?

15    A.    Yes.

16    Q.    And where would that be?

17    A.    I would like to see it, to be honest, up at the

18 northern portion, but I thought the compromise was

19 smaller right-of-way.

20    Q.    So are you talking in terms of Segment 1A?

21    A.    Yes.

22    Q.    And what line would you think could be a good

23 candidate for you to go double circuit on for this

24 project?

25    A.    The Robert Bills or I think it is the Vail to
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1 Irvington.

2    Q.    So there are two circuits, two lines that go

3 there.  Have you had any comments from the company

4 concerning that issue?

5    A.    I think that they are both used, but I know in

6 the plan that the Vail to Irvington is going to be

7 upgraded.

8    Q.    The one to Irvington can be upgraded.  Do you

9 know if TEP generally builds 138 kilovolt structures to

10 handle single or double circuit?

11    A.    I understand is to build double, even if they

12 are going to use the single.

13    Q.    So they have single circuits that might be built

14 that could possibly be upgraded to be a double circuit?

15    A.    In this case, I don't know particularly so I

16 can't say.

17    Q.    Well, would you, if that was -- if they had that

18 capability, would that be your preference?

19    A.    Absolutely, and/or triple.

20    Q.    Okay.  Have you visited the mesquite bosque

21 that's under discussion in this case?

22    A.    Yes.

23    Q.    Did you observe any historic sites that you sort

24 of found on your own in that area?

25    A.    Of course.
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1    Q.    And what was that site?

2    A.    I later found out it was the Otero Ranch.

3    Q.    And would that be in the path of one of the

4 possible lines?

5    A.    It is my understanding it would be approximately

6 where it turns to go -- I have a hard time with all

7 those trees with directions, but I believe it would be

8 where it would turn south off of Pendleton to go to the

9 Cañez substation --

10    Q.    Okay.

11    A.    -- I believe.

12    Q.    So you observed in the area to the east of the

13 railroad?

14    A.    Correct.

15    Q.    Okay.  Have you walked on the railroad to look

16 to see if the east or west side appears to be higher or

17 lower?

18    A.    Yes.

19    Q.    And what side appeared to be higher where you

20 were looking?

21    A.    From where I was at the Palo Parado crossing,

22 the left or the east side was, appeared to be lower.

23    Q.    Okay.  So the west side or the river side

24 appeared to be higher when looking from Palo Parado

25 crossing, is that correct?
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1    A.    At that particular location.  And I think it is

2 in one of my exhibits, actually.

3    Q.    Did you have photos of that in your exhibits?

4    A.    Yes.

5    Q.    Okay.  Did you request that Marshall Magruder

6 provide you copies of data requests sent and received by

7 that person?

8    A.    Absolutely.

9    Q.    And do you remember one that concerned the cost

10 of dull gray galvanized steel pole?

11    A.    Yes.

12    Q.    And do you remember what it said?

13    A.    I am not sure.  I think one was either 1500 or

14 was it 2,000.  It was either 1500 or 2,000, but, to be

15 honest, I don't remember which one it was.

16    Q.    If I show it to you, would that refresh your

17 memory?

18    A.    Probably.

19          MR. MAGRUDER:  Just a second.

20 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

21    Q.    Do you have a copy of Magruder data request 1-12

22 in front of you at this time?

23    A.    Yes.

24    Q.    Could you read what it says, the question and

25 the answer.
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1    A.    Please provide the cost per monopole for a lot

2 of 100 that has a Corten, accelerated rust, finish to

3 that of a monopole that has a dull galvanized steel

4 finish.  Also provide any company trade-off studies to

5 compare these monopole finishes, if any.

6          Response:  Based on Corten being the base price,

7 the cost of galvanizing will be 8 to 10 percent more.

8 To dull the galvanized finish will add another 5 percent

9 to this cost.  For a typical 138 kV pole the approximate

10 cost will be 11,000 per pole.  After galvanizing and

11 dulling the cost will be approximately, whoops, 12,500

12 per pole.  Responded Ed Beck.

13    Q.    So could I summarize and say it is about $1,500

14 more for galvanized pole from what the data request

15 says?

16    A.    I guess.  I am not good with numbers.  Yes.

17    Q.    So from that response there, it says about

18 $1,500 difference, is that correct?

19    A.    Correct.

20    Q.    Okay.  Do you remember the testimony from

21 Mr. Beck on that subject?

22    A.    I remember him testifying.  I don't remember

23 what he said.

24    Q.    You don't remember what he said.  Okay.  I won't

25 ask you then.
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1          Did I understand that you said you wanted

2 H-frame poles, wood H-frames poles to be installed on

3 the project?

4    A.    I don't want them to be installed.  I want them

5 to be kept in the uplands in Segment 2.

6    Q.    And in Segment 2 the uplands, so looking at the

7 map up on the screen over there, would that be most of

8 the yellow line from the Kantor to just north of the

9 Cañez substation?

10    A.    I believe when I did my pleading it was a little

11 bit north of Josephine Canyon, or that Josephine --

12 actually went through the Josephine substation, I mean

13 the Josephine subdivision, because they had left a big

14 easement open.  So I figured that would be an enough

15 room for them to go back later and fix them if they

16 needed to.

17    Q.    So we are then talking about --

18    A.    Approximately where that word says Josephine.

19    Q.    On the map where it says Josephine, the words,

20 that's at a right angle --

21    A.    And that's an approximation because I am not

22 looking at the same big colored one.

23    Q.    Okay.  So looking at that map that has the word

24 Josephine, so about Josephine to where would be the

25 southern end of the H-frame?
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1    A.    I have to be really honest.  I used the map that

2 was sent to us that had the colored corridors that we

3 got this past weekend.

4    Q.    Okay.  So, but you are interested in just that

5 small segment of the entire project?

6    A.    Correct.  It is where the uplands are and it is

7 away from most residential areas.

8    Q.    Okay.  I just wanted to know where you were

9 talking about.

10          And then after the line crosses Pendleton at

11 approximately Josephine, you then want the line to go on

12 the west of the railroad, east of the railroad, the

13 existing alignment, or did I understand that you said

14 Pendleton Road?

15    A.    Where it pokes into Pendleton, I don't want it

16 to go to the existing alignment.  I want it to parallel

17 Pendleton.

18    Q.    Parallel Pendleton.  So, in other words, to use

19 the road easement and add to the transportation road

20 easement?

21    A.    Correct, yes.

22    Q.    Not the railroad easement?

23    A.    Correct, because that's a county/city easement,

24 it is not ADOT.

25    Q.    Okay.  Have you driven that road?
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1    A.    Yes.

2    Q.    And from your observation did that appear to be

3 a reasonable place from your viewpoint to put the pole?

4    A.    Well --

5    Q.    Poles?

6    A.    -- from what I remember.  My husband and I drove

7 back down there, yes.

8    Q.    What are some of the benefits of putting the

9 road on the Pendleton Road alignment?

10    A.    Do you mean putting the line on the road?

11    Q.    Putting the -- let me rephrase that.  To put the

12 transmission right-of-way adjacent to Pendleton Road.

13    A.    Well, as a private property owner I think if you

14 even have one person who bought with something in mind,

15 I think it is not right.  But anyhow, I think that would

16 take, alleviate that problem with the people in the

17 bosque.

18          Number two, there is always going to be

19 maintenance in that area.  And species are always

20 evolving, so you are never going to have the same

21 species.  And in that kind of environment I believe that

22 there is also opportunity, and I think as long as you

23 are using the tree eating machine or five-year trim that

24 there is going to be opportunity to do damage.  And I

25 think this is the perfect opportunity.
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1          And number three, I think that we need to listen

2 to when a floodplain coordinator tells us this is not a

3 good area to put things, we need to listen to him, which

4 is along the road, at least, which is still not perfect,

5 but it is a compromise that I think is an affordable

6 compromise and I think you could share the costs.  I

7 observed Santa Cruz County is poor.  So I think that --

8 and also there has also been environmental damage along

9 the road and --

10    Q.    Did the company evaluate as one of its

11 alternatives use of Pendleton Road in this area?

12    A.    I have to be honest, I don't know.

13    Q.    No, okay.

14    A.    I said I don't know.

15    Q.    Okay.  We will ask the company that maybe later.

16          Have you looked at the Santa Cruz County flood

17 control ordinance?

18    A.    Yes.

19    Q.    And when you read the ordinance, did you observe

20 how it impacted a decision made in the CEC from this

21 Committee?  Could it impact it or not?

22    A.    No.

23    Q.    Is your answer then that there is no judicial or

24 no legal statutory authority for the Santa Cruz County

25 to add flood control restrictions to a transmission
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1 line?

2    A.    Yes.

3          MR. GELLMAN:  I would object to the extent it

4 calls for a legal conclusion.

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Sustained.

6 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

7    Q.    Did it say that a CEC was statutory exemption

8 from that ordinance?

9    A.    Yes.

10    Q.    Did it say that a distribution line did not need

11 a floodplain permit?

12    A.    Yes --

13    Q.    Okay.

14    A.    -- it did.

15    Q.    And did it have any other requirements for

16 transmission lines in that ordinance that you noticed?

17    A.    No.

18    Q.    Okay.  Do you have any experience, other than in

19 this case, involved with the Corps of Engineers'

20 influence with respect to washes?

21    A.    Yes.

22    Q.    And would that -- what type of experience do you

23 have involving washes and flood issues?

24    A.    Davidson Canyon, southeast of Vail.

25    Q.    And why is that important?



UNS / Vail to Valencia 7/8/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 Case No. 144   Vol. IV

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

695

1    A.    Well, it is important not just because the sandy

2 bottom that would be crossed, it is also important

3 because of the amount.  It is not just the big washes,

4 it is the small washes, and it is also -- if it is the

5 only federal agency, it also is the endangered species

6 that would be covered; although, with Santa Cruz County

7 it is a different person than it is in Pima County

8 because there are no pygmy owls in that area.

9          But the Corps of Engineers is often the lead

10 federal agency in cases, not just the -- not just

11 because of the sandy bottom.

12    Q.    Did you read Mr. Beck's rebuttal testimony

13 involving Clean Water Act and Section 404 permits?

14    A.    I have read it once briefly.

15    Q.    Okay.  From your experience, what are the

16 different types of Section 404 permits?

17    A.    There is an individual and a nationwide.

18    Q.    And I realize you can't make the determination

19 for the Corps of Engineers, but from your viewpoint,

20 which would be the most likely in this case?

21    A.    There are a lot of washes this would cross.  And

22 I would have to leave it up to the Corps of Engineers,

23 but I would really like to see a detailed analysis.

24    Q.    Did the company do any -- until the hearing

25 started in Rio Rico, had you seen any flood control
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1 analysis done by the -- in the company's application?

2    A.    Not for Santa Cruz County.

3    Q.    Okay.  Do you know what the Corps of Engineers

4 looks at when they decide to have a hearing, what type

5 of factors they consider?

6    A.    It is under a NEPA process.

7    Q.    They use the NEPA process.  Okay.  Is a NEPA

8 process also required for the BLM land that you are

9 talking about?

10    A.    Yes.

11    Q.    And you mentioned in your testimony that there

12 was a second place with BLM land besides the segment

13 along Wilmot Road.  Where was that segment placed?

14    A.    It is the preferred alignment along the Santa

15 Cruz County complex.

16    Q.    Okay.  So one in Segment 4 and another one in

17 Segment 1, is that correct?

18    A.    Correct.

19    Q.    Okay.  And do you know if the company has

20 contacted BLM and when did it contact BLM?

21    A.    Do I answer that in two parts?

22    Q.    Yes.  I asked you -- yes, you can.

23    A.    Sorry.  Yes, they did contact them.  The first

24 time, my understanding from the application, was Angela

25 Mogel.  That's in the application.  But they did not
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1 send an agency letter, according to the application, to

2 BLM.  That was in July of 2008.

3    Q.    So which, are you telling me they have not sent

4 a letter?

5    A.    I did not observe the letter.  And if I

6 missed --

7    Q.    So you didn't see the letter, okay.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Mr. Magruder, just as an

9 observation, the cross-examination is usually thought of

10 as a way to test the direct testimony.  You haven't

11 asked very many questions about Ms. Webb's direct

12 testimony.  You seem to be asking questions about what

13 the company has or has not done.  Would it make more

14 sense to you to ask those questions of a representative

15 of the company?

16          MR. MAGRUDER:  I probably will be doing that

17 during Mr. Beck's time also.  But she does have several

18 strong exhibits on the BLM issue.  That's why I was

19 asking her about that area.

20          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Well, if you want to ask her

21 about her exhibits, to the extent that she is

22 knowledgeable about them, that of course would be

23 appropriate.  But asking her about what the company is

24 doing or isn't doing doesn't seem to me to be a fruitful

25 use of your time.



UNS / Vail to Valencia 7/8/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 Case No. 144   Vol. IV

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

698

1 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

2    Q.    In your exhibits, did you include correspondence

3 between yourself and BLM?

4    A.    Yes.

5    Q.    And could you summarize that correspondence.

6    A.    I need a clarification on one of my earliest

7 data requests, which was whether or not -- well, I just

8 asked whether they had had, whether or not they had had

9 correspondence with the BLM.  And the response I got

10 from Mr. Ed Beck and Mr. Warner was that that would

11 involve a simple, may involve a simple categorical

12 exclusion or a simple environmental assessment.

13          But that's what kind of sends bells off in my

14 head.  Because, well, there really isn't such as a thing

15 as a simple environmental assessment.  I mean they are

16 simple relative to other processes that occur

17 afterwards, but if it stops the -- if it stops -- if the

18 alignment is stopped or can be potentially stopped by

19 BLM, then it triggers NEPA for the entire line, even if

20 the mitigation is only to occur on the very small

21 portion of federal land.  And so it just didn't make

22 sense to me.

23          And then the fact that there was no letter in

24 the book, unless I absolutely just missed it, there was

25 no letter that, no agency outreach letter sent to the
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1 BLM, so I contacted the Tucson office.  And since I have

2 done -- I am an activist, I have different contacts.  I

3 contacted the Tucson office.  First I thought it was

4 just like stated, where they do the right-of-ways in

5 Phoenix, so I just assumed it was there.  But then she

6 said no, we don't do that, Tucson office is the one who

7 does that.  So that's why I sent out these questions.

8          And she then told me that the -- she had spoken

9 with Mr. Warner briefly on the phone and told him it

10 would probably or might -- you can read the letter, it's

11 EW-8, yourself -- that it may involve an environmental

12 assessment.  But, and I can't speak for her so it is

13 probably hearsay, but she said she didn't realize the

14 line was so long.

15          So I don't know.  I don't know if that answers

16 your question or not.  I forgot what it was already.

17    Q.    Let me ask you a question.  Did you also look at

18 the Case No. 78, Line Siting Case No. 78, and did it

19 require lines to follow federal regulations and rules?

20    A.    Yes.

21    Q.    And in your discussions with the BLM, was there

22 a precedent for this particular line being applied for

23 and resolved in particular for the Segment 2 which they

24 already existed in 1998 -- 1988?

25    A.    Yes.  Now I am trying to figure out.  That is a
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1 problem with this, with the questions.

2          Essentially what they said is that UNS Electric

3 had contacted them in regard to their own authorized

4 line.  And so yes, they didn't follow what the

5 requirements were, which is to get applicable permits at

6 the time of the 1988 decision, which is to get the

7 right-of-way permit through.  And according to the

8 information that I have received is that they didn't

9 have to do it because it was a WAPA substation.

10          But my understanding is, to get any easement,

11 even an air easement for a line over somebody's

12 property, you have to get a right-of-way.  That's in the

13 letter, too.

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  It appears to me this would be

15 an appropriate time to take the lunch recess.

16          Help me to understand this.  What is the

17 relevance of whether or not the applicant or a

18 predecessor of the applicant acted appropriately with

19 regard to another CEC that was granted, permission for

20 which was granted sometime in the past?

21          MR. MAGRUDER:  And in looking at the CEC No. 78,

22 and I will generalize, but it says that the applicant

23 shall comply with all federal, state, and county

24 regulations, rules, and laws.  And that's sort of a

25 quote, not a quote but an interpretation of what it
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1 says.  And in 1988, the NEPA rules were in effect and

2 they constructed a line that did not go through that

3 process.

4          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And that is your conclusion

5 or --

6          MR. MAGRUDER:  That is what her evidence shows.

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.

8          MR. MAGRUDER:  And we are extending that Case 78

9 because it is Segment 2 in this case.  And there are

10 two, also, additional areas where BLM land is involved.

11 I am not trying to make a mountain of the molehill on

12 the federal nexus to this case, but it apparently

13 exists, and exists such that we might spend another day,

14 they may spend another six months going through the

15 federal process after they finish the CEC.

16          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Well, I guess I am struggling

17 with trying to -- have you brought to the attention of

18 the Corporation Commission that -- and I have a copy of

19 the CEC in Case No. 78 in front of me now, and Citizens

20 Utility Company was the applicant in that case.  Have

21 you brought to the attention of the Corporation

22 Commission your conclusion that Citizens or its assignee

23 has violated their CEC?

24          MR. MAGRUDER:  Chairman, I didn't know this

25 until about within the last week when I was reading
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1 e-mails from Ms. Webb, and she is the one who found that

2 information.

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Ms. Webb, did you bring this to

4 the attention of the Commission?

5          MS. WEBB:  Is it all right to say it on the

6 record?

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Well, yes, it is okay to say it.

8          MS. WEBB:  I was told to put it in my testimony

9 and bring it in front of the Committee.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  By whom?

11          MS. WEBB:  I don't want to say.

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Well, it is really hard for me

13 to credit your testimony if I don't, and it is hearsay,

14 but it is really hard for me to credit it without any

15 source.

16          MS. WEBB:  The legal department.

17          CHMN. FOREMAN:  The legal department of what?

18 Of the Commission?  So one of the lawyers in the

19 Commission told you to do this?

20          MS. WEBB:  But it wasn't legal advice.

21          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So you called up the legal

22 department and you talked to somebody in the legal

23 department of the Corporation Commission about your

24 concerns about Case No. 78, and they told you to come

25 and put it on the record?
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1          MS. WEBB:  Not that part, not on the record.  It

2 was just suggested that they couldn't give me legal

3 advice because they work for the Commissioners and that

4 I would want to bring it in front of the Committee, my

5 concerns about this.

6          I was just concerned that the Commissioners

7 would be making a decision based on a line.  As

8 Ms. Bernal quoted, I have recently been in contact by

9 UniSource and they have asked me to meet with our office

10 regarding the unauthorized line and their proposed Vail

11 project.  And that was dated June 26th, '09.

12          I don't want to mischaracterize what the legal

13 department said, but what they told me they don't work

14 for me, they work for the Commissioners.

15          CHMN. FOREMAN:  But -- well, I am just trying to

16 understand your testimony here.  And what you have just

17 testified to is what you were told, I understood your

18 testimony to be that you were told by somebody in the

19 legal department of the Corporation Commission that

20 there had been a violation of a previous Corporation

21 Commission order.  Now, that's not true?

22          MS. WEBB:  No.  I told them there was a

23 violation --

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  You told them.

25          MS. WEBB:  Of a previous decision.
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1          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And they told you the

2 appropriate thing to do for a violation in Case No. 78

3 was to testify concerning the violation in Case No. 78

4 in Case No. 144, is that correct?

5          MS. WEBB:  That might be still mischaracterizing

6 what -- because I don't want to get them in trouble.

7 What I am saying is I thought it was relevant to this

8 case.  And so I think what I perceived was that they

9 said that I might want to bring that up here if I

10 thought it was relevant to this case.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  All right.  Well --

12          MS. WEBB:  And I do believe it is relevant

13 because it is a line that they currently have and it is

14 in this case.

15          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Who currently has?

16          MS. WEBB:  UNS Electric.

17          CHMN. FOREMAN:  The copy of the CEC that I have

18 says that Citizens Utility Company is the applicant.

19 So, and you are suggesting that UNS then is responsible

20 for --

21          MS. WEBB:  I understand now.  I understand where

22 I confused you.

23          Okay.  When a right-of-way is transferred or

24 when somebody purchases another company, there is a

25 requirement in BLM that it is reassigned.  So therefore,
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1 when they purchased this company, and I can find that

2 information, there is something called a reassignment or

3 what have you, and I can find that information, that did

4 not occur.

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  All right.  Well --

6          MS. WEBB:  They have to give you an amendment.

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Now at least I understand your

8 testimony.

9          Member Mundell, you wanted to ask a question?

10          MEMBER MUNDELL:  Well, yes.  I mean I was just

11 going to try and put it in some context.  I mean

12 normally when, if a citizen calls the legal department

13 of the Corporation Commission, they will say if you

14 think it is an issue or if you think it is relevant, you

15 know, you can present evidence, as opposed to giving

16 legal advice.  Generically, that's sort of a generic

17 response.  So I think that's what we heard.

18          Is that what occurred?

19          MS. WEBB:  Yes.

20          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And Member Palmer.

21          MEMBER PALMER:  Mr. Chairman, I have two

22 questions for Mrs. Webb.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Do you want to ask them now?

24          MEMBER PALMER:  Do you want to after lunch?

25          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Let's wait until after lunch.
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1          MEMBER PALMER:  That is hunger talking.

2          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Let me do something I omitted to

3 do earlier, which is to call roll.  We have been coming

4 in and out and I think we are all here now.

5          So Member Eberhart.

6          MEMBER EBERHART:  Here.

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member McGuire.

8          MEMBER McGUIRE:  Here.

9          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Mundell.

10          MEMBER MUNDELL:  Here.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Noland.

12          MEMBER NOLAND:  Here.

13          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Palmer.

14          MEMBER PALMER:  Here.

15          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Rasmussen.

16          MEMBER RASMUSSEN:  Here.

17          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Whalen.

18          MEMBER WHALEN:  Here.

19          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Wong.

20          MEMBER WONG:  Here.

21          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Youle.

22          MEMBER YOULE:  Here.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Let's break again until 1:30.

24 We will resume again at 1:30.

25          (A recess ensued from 12:08 p.m. to 1:42 p.m.)
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1          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Let's go back on the record.  We

2 have a couple of housekeeping matters to address.

3          This morning, Ms. Campana made reference to a

4 letter that she said had been written by Marty Jakle, a

5 homeowner who had previously made comment in these

6 proceedings in the earlier proceedings, to Mr. Beck.

7          And Ms. Campana, you have provided me with a

8 copy of that letter and also the other members, and I

9 assume Ms. Webb and Mr. Magruder.  And this is the

10 letter dated July 6, is that correct, ma'am?

11          MS. CAMPANA:  Yes.

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Did you give a copy of that to

13 the court reporter?

14          MS. CAMPANA:  Oh, no.

15          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Would you do that, please.

16          We will mark that exhibit as Committee Exhibit 9

17 and indicate that that's in the record.

18          Now, Member Eberhart has brought an item to

19 place in the record.  Why don't I have him identify this

20 material.

21          MEMBER EBERHART:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I

22 don't know if we have to have this identified as an

23 exhibit or what the preference is.  After the last

24 couple hearings there seemed to be a little question

25 about what the difference between a floodplain and a
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1 floodway is, so I went on the internet and got a graphic

2 downloaded that graphically kind of shows the Committee

3 members what a floodway and a floodplain is.  I have

4 presented this to the applicant and the two intervenors,

5 and there was no objection.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  We will mark that as

7 Committee Exhibit 10.

8          MEMBER EBERHART:  And if I could explain this

9 just a little bit.  Members, when it rains, obviously

10 water flows in a wash.  When the wash is relatively deep

11 and the rain is relatively mild, all of the water is

12 contained within the banks of the wash.

13          When, as is typical in Arizona, when washes are

14 not nearly as deep and they are wider, and you get more

15 of a heavy rain like what is called a 100-year runoff

16 event, it is not all contained within the banks of the

17 channel and it spreads out.  Typically the banks of the

18 channel would be called the floodway and what spreads

19 out over that is called the floodplain, the whole thing.

20 So the energy within the floodway where most of the wash

21 that is contained is much higher velocity and so forth

22 than the floodplain area, which is just kind of the

23 spillover waters.

24          Being a graphical person that I am, I think this

25 helps understand what the difference or the distinction
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1 between the two things is.

2          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Very good.  Now, is

3 there any objection to this diagram, which I think

4 pictorially represents testimony that has previously

5 been represented in this matter, being admitted into

6 evidence?

7          MR. GELLMAN:  None.

8          MS. WEBB:  No objection.

9          MR. MAGRUDER:  No objection.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Very good then.  Then we will

11 admit Committee's Exhibit No. 10.

12          (Exhibit No. COM-10 was admitted into evidence.)

13          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Does the court reporter have a

14 copy of it?

15          All right.  Now, if I remember, we were in

16 Mr. Magruder's cross-examination of Ms. Webb.

17          I am sorry, Member Palmer.

18          MEMBER PALMER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I had

19 two questions for Mrs. Webb.

20          CHMN. FOREMAN:  You may proceed.

21          MEMBER PALMER:  Thank you.

22

23                        EXAMINATION

24 BY MEMBER PALMER:

25          Mrs. Webb, you expressed some concern about the
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1 number of lines that enter and exit the Vail substation,

2 and you had expressed a preference to have as many lines

3 consolidated either double circuit or triple circuit as

4 possible, is that correct?

5    A.    Or underbuilt.

6    Q.    Or underbuilt, using a distribution line

7 underbuilding a high voltage line.

8    A.    Can I clarify?

9    Q.    Sure.

10    A.    If they are both high voltage, then

11 underbuilding, because then, that area, it is all high

12 voltage or extra voltage, so it would be underbuilding

13 of high voltages, not distribution, in that particular

14 segment in that area where, if it would be the same

15 voltage, then the double or triple circuit I think,

16 unless I misunderstood how this stuff works.  I think I

17 understood, but I am not sure, but yes.

18    Q.    Are you an electrical engineer?

19    A.    No, but I talked to Staff before I testified.

20    Q.    My next question is specific to issues of

21 concern regarding underbuilding and also double

22 circuiting and triple circuiting.  Would you agree that

23 there are three factors to consider, one is aesthetics,

24 two is economics, and three is reliability, and that

25 they are not necessarily equally weighed in importance?
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1    A.    Yes.

2    Q.    And do you think that the utility companies

3 usually hire engineers that are competent enough to make

4 those decisions regarding the impact on reliability and

5 weighing that against the economics, the cost or the

6 cost savings, and then of course the aesthetics?

7    A.    I believe they do, but I would like to be able

8 to see the studies as well.

9    Q.    And secondly, you had referenced concern

10 regarding the construction of transmission lines and the

11 placement of poles in floodplain areas.  And I think you

12 referenced that several times.  Do you know of any case

13 in the history of Arizona where a transmission line

14 failed as a result of flooding?

15    A.    I have to write it down, otherwise I forget.  I

16 apologize.  Just I need to read it back.  It was

17 replacement of poles in floodways?

18    Q.    Do you know of any case, specific incident where

19 a transmission line failed as the result of being placed

20 in a floodplain?

21    A.    I believe -- and I am not going to, I am not

22 going to say it 100 percent without being able to

23 reference the material, that in the 1983 flood in the

24 Rillito that a transmission line or structure facility

25 may have been damaged.
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1    Q.    But that doesn't indicate whether it failed or

2 not, because the failure then becomes a reliability

3 issue.

4    A.    Right.  And I do know some transmission lines

5 had issues at Dodge -- this is in Tucson -- this is at

6 Dodge and River in my area in Tucson.  So I don't know

7 if you are familiar with that area.  And then they had

8 some flooding in storm related --

9    Q.    Was that a distribution line or was that a

10 voltage transmission line?

11    A.    It may have been voltage, because I believe it

12 was related to the substation that is on the south side

13 of the --  yes, it is the Sahuarita.  But, again, I

14 cannot say that 100 percent.  I have to do some

15 additional research on that.  I do recall seeing

16 something.

17          MEMBER PALMER:  Mr. Chairman, I will defer to

18 presentations by Mr. Beck and ask him specifically if

19 there has been an incident of failure as a result of

20 flooding.

21          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Very good.

22          All right, Mr. Magruder, you may proceed.  Or

23 let me ask this:  Do you have further questions of

24 Ms. Webb?

25          MR. MAGRUDER:  Your Honor, I do.
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1          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Then proceed.

2

3                CROSS-EXAMINATION CONTINUED

4 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

5    Q.    Have you read the letter from the flood control

6 district in Santa Cruz County that came in this morning?

7    A.    I read it over once.

8    Q.    Do you have a copy?

9    A.    Yes.

10    Q.    Did any parts of that letter elicit any changes

11 in your testimony?

12    A.    No.  Well, one piece did, but I think it could

13 be -- it was Section 5.8 of the ordinance, prohibits the

14 construction and placement of fill within the roadway,

15 but I think legally somebody could make the argument

16 that it is a road and fill issue versus a transmission

17 construction issue.  When you ask me about is there

18 anything in the ordinance that prohibits, I mean that

19 regulates transmission lines in Santa Cruz County.  And

20 if there is something else, I didn't see it.

21          They recommend the existing alignment.  And I

22 knew that from my discussion with Mr. Hays, but I wasn't

23 going to say it, because I knew he had to go to his

24 boss, and whenever you have to go to your boss, you

25 never know what the boss is going to say.  But I see
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1 that there are issues with the public in the existing

2 alignment also and that's why I chose the road.

3    Q.    So you just want to avoid the whole flood issue

4 and go to the road?

5    A.    The road is in the 500-year floodplain and some

6 portions as well.  I said that in my testimony.

7    Q.    Is it in the floodway?

8    A.    Floodplain.

9    Q.    But is it in the floodway?

10    A.    Not that I am aware of.

11          MR. MAGRUDER:  Okay.  That completes my

12 questions.

13          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Very good.

14          Does the applicant have questions?

15          MR. GELLMAN:  We have no questions.

16          MR. MAGRUDER:  Can I ask her one more question?

17 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

18    Q.    And that is, did we corroborate on these

19 questions at all?

20    A.    No.

21          MR. MAGRUDER:  And we have not talked about them

22 at all.  Okay, that's fine.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Are there questions from the

24 Committee members?

25          Member Mundell.
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1          MEMBER MUNDELL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

2

3                        EXAMINATION

4 BY MEMBER MUNDELL:

5    Q.    Just so I am clear in your testimony, you said

6 you would like at some point in time some part of the

7 line to have the existing wood poles remain.  Is that

8 what I heard you say?

9    A.    Yes.

10    Q.    And for how long a period or distance would that

11 be?

12    A.    I am going to use the names.  It would be easier

13 for me.  When the existing line exits the Kantor

14 substation and heads south, in the upland type area,

15 until it drops into the Santa Cruz County, I mean Santa

16 Cruz Valley area to a point that would be determined, it

17 is approximately where the Josephine subdivision is

18 located.

19          I don't know the name of that subdivision, but I

20 recall in testimony that that subdivision left a big

21 easement right-of-way open so that if those were to

22 fail.  And I just don't recall in testimony that anybody

23 had been able to show -- and I showed in my pictures

24 that the stumps are still remaining from the 1988 case.

25 And even with all the water and stuff with the cut
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1 stumps, they are still there.  And it was insulator

2 issue.

3          But I see an awful lot of those H-frames all

4 over in that exact same area, and even in the floodway

5 for SWTC and so forth.  And even TEP and Tucson has

6 hybrid lines with wooden, wood poles, and monopoles.

7          And so I really, if it is going to be replaced,

8 I would really like to see some study done on it,

9 because that is a relatively unpopulated area.  And in

10 the application Pima County talks about how that area

11 has not been surveyed very much and it is an extremely

12 high level of cultural stuff.  And until companies go in

13 and have the money to do the high level of survey that

14 needs to be done for archeological and cultural, I just

15 don't see, because I just didn't see a lot of indication

16 as to why the poles needed to be replaced from an

17 engineering standpoint.

18    Q.    And then other parts of the route would have as

19 you said, you suggested a dull as opposed to shiny?

20    A.    No shiny.

21    Q.    No shiny?

22    A.    No shiny.  Because when I went to the Vail

23 substation -- and I just want to say that the security

24 has really improved.  They have new security.  Boy, they

25 were right on me that time when I was there last week.
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1          But there was a shiny galvanized steel pole

2 lying in the yard.  And I took a picture of it.  And

3 they said no pictures.  And I said I am done.  But

4 anyhow, it was a shiny pole.  And the idea is to have

5 matching dull gray galvanized.  And if you have to have

6 a lot of corridors up there, I think if the dull

7 galvanized pole is against the steel lattice structures

8 which are dull, it would be better than having shiny

9 galvanized poles.

10    Q.    The security said no pictures of the shiny pole?

11    A.    Well, it was really weird, because the project

12 hearing sign was at the Vail substation, so if we are

13 not supposed to be there -- anyhow, diverging, and I see

14 the Chairman --

15    Q.    My question was --

16    A.    It wasn't just with the pole.  There were no

17 pictures, period.

18    Q.    So are -- strike that.

19          And then you talked about, and I wasn't clear,

20 there are six or seven lines that currently go into the

21 Vail substation?

22    A.    I believe from the north end there is the Robert

23 Bills, there is the Vail/Irvington.  Then you go from

24 the southern portion, there is the South extra high

25 voltage, then the WAPA line.  I believe that's the one
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1 coming in on the wood H-frame, comes in from the south.

2 So that would be four.  But then when you exit, that's

3 where you get a whole bunch.  There are four coming out,

4 coming out that direction.  So there is one, two, three

5 four, so we are up to eight.

6    Q.    And then did I understand your testimony when

7 Mr. Magruder was cross-examining you that at some point

8 in the future there may be up to as many as 20 lines

9 going into the substation?

10    A.    Well, from the data request I have received from

11 Mr. Beck, there are 16 including this one.  So that's

12 16.  But I believe some of them might share lines.  But

13 the thing is some of those substations are still in my

14 community.  So it wouldn't just be the line, it would be

15 the substation.

16          And then one of them -- well, there may be more

17 than one, is the, the 345 upgrade, but I am still not

18 real clear on what the upgrade is, but I know one of the

19 upgrades is actually another 345 line.  So that's in

20 addition to the other two 345 lines.  And with NEPA they

21 talk about how it is not usually the one, it is the

22 cumulative that actually many of the biggest impacts

23 from projects occur.  It is the small added up.

24    Q.    And then you indicated also, I don't remember if

25 it was during your direct testimony or
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1 cross-examination, that there is a historical site,

2 Otera Ranch?

3    A.    Otera.

4    Q.    Otera.

5    A.    And I don't know a lot about it, but there was a

6 bunch of dead cows there.  I think it was a feed lot.

7 And there are these huge concrete feeders that were

8 there.  And then apparently that's historical.  From

9 what I understand, during the '30s and '40s that's where

10 they used to load the cattle onto the train.

11    Q.    Okay.  But when you use the terminology

12 historical, are you talking about it being on, let's

13 say, the national register, or are you talking just, you

14 know, from an old perspective, it is pretty neat looking

15 and we might want to think about preserving it?

16    A.    Well, I know it is on -- I saw Otera on the USGS

17 map when I went down to the mapping place.  And I would

18 not, I wouldn't know without doing research.  And the

19 thing is, when we do stuff for Vail whether or not it is

20 eligible for inclusion, a lot of times, like us, we

21 can't afford to get it on the register.

22          MEMBER MUNDELL:  Okay.  I was just trying to

23 clarify what your previous answers were.  Okay.

24          Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I don't think I have

25 any other questions at this time.
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1          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Palmer.

2          MEMBER PALMER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  A

3 couple of questions for Mrs. Webb.

4

5                    FURTHER EXAMINATION

6 BY MEMBER PALMER:

7    Q.    You live approximately six or seven miles from

8 the Vail substation?

9    A.    No, I live further away.

10    Q.    I am sorry, how far?

11    A.    Probably 16 miles.

12    Q.    16 miles.  And you are 16 miles from that.  And

13 would you give us a priority or ranking of your concerns

14 from north to south, what is your greatest focus, for

15 example?  Is that the Vail substation and the potential

16 for viewscape interference with transmission lines?  Is

17 that your greatest concern?

18    A.    Related to this project?

19    Q.    Yes.

20    A.    Okay.  My greatest concern related to this

21 project, and I don't know if I am allowed to say it, is

22 the 80 percent of the 345 transformer, because of the

23 future and foreseeable projects that would be related to

24 that and the cumulative impact.

25          That said, with the UNS Electric, I have
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1 significant issues with another corridor being added

2 into another corridor.  And typically what I observed

3 and heard at the hearings is that they say -- I mean not

4 they.  I have heard that there is a corridor, an

5 existing corridor, and the preference is to use an

6 existing corridor.  And so viewscape issues are very

7 important to me.

8          This line down in the Santa Cruz County, part of

9 the ranch in Pima County was purchased with bond money,

10 but the other part of the ranch into Santa Cruz County

11 was not purchased.  There is not as much money in Santa

12 Cruz to do these archeological surveys.  The building

13 codes are different.  And that's how a lot of these

14 things are uncovered, is when people go into

15 developments and they have to have those surveys and so

16 forth done.  I am listening to what the county has to

17 say, people living in Pima County, but they also spoke

18 in Santa Cruz County.

19          Cumulative impacts are a huge, huge concern to

20 me, because we don't have a huge population.  Where we

21 are there is a lot of concentration in our area.  And

22 that's a lot of electricity, especially since TRICO --

23 or SWTC has actually been a big provider of that area as

24 well.

25    Q.    You are recognized in your community as an
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1 advocate for the public, is that a fair statement?

2    A.    Yes.  That's kind of embarrassing.

3    Q.    And you have an alternative to the Segment 1

4 proposed preferred route?  I may have missed that.  I am

5 sorry.

6    A.    Yes.  My biggest alternative, I just wanted us

7 to be able to be involved in regional transmission

8 planning.

9    Q.    Well, there are two issues here.

10    A.    Okay.

11    Q.    One is an issue of process and the other is an

12 issue of substance.  And what I would like to explore a

13 moment is the issue of substance --

14    A.    Okay.

15    Q.    -- of this proposed upgrade to the 138kV.  What

16 would you rank as your greatest concern and what

17 alternative do you propose for that?

18          Let's put all the processes aside for a minute,

19 because you can't fix the past.  We can certainly

20 develop maybe a better system for the future.  And that

21 was referenced by then Commissioner Mundell and current

22 Commissioner Mayes.  They both expressed an interest in

23 inclusion, in having a process of greater inclusion.

24 Put that aside for a minute and let's look at substance.

25          Can you take me from the north to the south and
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1 give me what your objection is specifically to the

2 preferred routes in that area --

3    A.    Okay.

4    Q.    -- and what your alternative would be.

5    A.    Unfortunately I lost my pleading.  Okay.  I am

6 going to try and do it from memory.  My biggest concern

7 from the northern end is I would like to see

8 consolidation, if possible, but my understanding is that

9 that is not really a possibility.

10    Q.    Now, you mean consolidation, you are talking

11 about double and triple circuiting.  And the engineers

12 have indicated or implied that there are reliability

13 concerns, because one of their past -- one of their

14 charges is to make sure that the system is reliable, and

15 so that may be jeopardized by consolidation.

16    A.    Actually what was indicated to me was that they

17 are used up right now.  So that was a little bit, that's

18 what my perception was, they were already taken, the

19 double circuits were taken.  That's what my

20 understanding from that was.  But there was a

21 possibility of looking at smaller right-of-ways.  So

22 that was a compromise that I was willing to talk about

23 on that.

24    Q.    What would your recommendation be for that

25 right-of-way that might be smaller?
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1    A.    I said 50 feet to just sort of go along with

2 what they asked for in the previous case, because it is

3 essentially the same sort of environmental conditions.

4 And it was indicated to me that that was -- because they

5 were going to share an existing right-of-way, so I had

6 asked if they would do some studies to see what would be

7 the preferred type width in that area.

8    Q.    So what we can do is condense, then, the

9 Segment 1 preferred route into a smaller right-of-way,

10 and that would be one of your objectives, is to achieve

11 that?

12    A.    Right, and then have it in the CEC as

13 paralleling the old Vail connection road so -- because

14 here is a concern with the 500-foot corridor.  If that's

15 to create flexibility with the 100-foot right-of-way, it

16 could theoretically go on the outside edge of the

17 500-foot corridor.  And then because that is a place

18 that's planned for an upgrade in the future, they could

19 come back, I mean the company could come back and say

20 well, we have this existing corridor between those two

21 lines and let's go ahead and use it.  And if it is fair

22 to say that we have to look at only this case in my

23 case, then in my case I think it should be fair for the

24 company.  And if we look at regional planning, which I

25 think we should, that may be a way to look at it also.
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1    Q.    Do you see a potential problem with well

2 intentioned citizens with lots of passionate energy

3 involving themselves in arenas with which they are

4 unfamiliar or untrained, for example, second guessing

5 the quality of the engineering project, knowing the

6 utility company is charged with doing it the most

7 efficient way and the safest way and the way that best

8 serves the public, and even though you have got people

9 that care a lot about those issues, they may not be

10 skilled in analyzing the proposed routes?

11    A.    Right.  You know, I agree with you on that.  And

12 I can see I would be overzealous and not necessarily

13 know.  But I think what happens with me, and I can't

14 speak for the rest of the public, is I don't always feel

15 like I am getting all of the information.  And then when

16 I get other information that is not -- that I might know

17 a little bit more about, but not everything, or I don't

18 know, that's why there is a planning group, because they

19 do have stakeholder groups now.  But if you were to

20 expand that stakeholder group on a regional level so you

21 could say, well, if this is going to go in now and then

22 later on this is going to go in and affect my community

23 later, we wouldn't have to micromanage it down to the

24 small level.

25          I mean I don't know if that makes any sense,
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1 because if you have a stakeholder group, it would just

2 be an expansion of the stakeholder group on a more

3 neighborhood regional level.  Because in my community, I

4 show them there are going to be several projects.

5          I don't know if that makes any sense.

6    Q.    Well, there would be subsequent line siting

7 hearings to site additional lines even within the same

8 right-of-way.

9    A.    Right.  And so, but then we get into the problem

10 of overzealous people like me coming in, trying to

11 maybe, and I don't consider myself second guessing, but

12 maybe that's how it is perceived because it is done

13 piece by piece by piece by piece, whereas if it was done

14 further back, then we wouldn't have to spend so much

15 time --

16    Q.    Well --

17    A.    -- doing this.

18    Q.    -- could you do the Committee a favor, and let's

19 begin with Segment 1 and look at the Nogales tap and the

20 preferred route versus the alternative route, the yellow

21 versus the blue.  Do you have a preference?

22    A.    I am for the preferred route, with the

23 recommendations that I had with the dull gray galvanized

24 and the narrow right-of-way.

25    Q.    And the narrow right-of-way.
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1          So we will go to Segment 2.  Give us your

2 specific recommendation or your concern about the

3 proposed preferred route.

4    A.    I had the same recommendation that I didn't

5 articulate, that I want the environmental protections

6 that are current in today's standards upgraded on the

7 old decision for this particular line.

8          And also down Wilmot Road, because there are

9 some flooding issues down that road, and there are two

10 poles in particular that have bad wires up already

11 because the flooding issues, the poles are starting

12 to -- and also there is some severe access road,

13 off-highway road issues there.

14    Q.    You are talking about old poles and not talking

15 about the new poles?  You are talking about old poles?

16    A.    I am talking, well, I mean for me, two years

17 after I graduated from high school, but it is 1988, the

18 steel monopoles.

19    Q.    Right.  Well, we are not dealing with

20 remediation of that at this juncture.

21    A.    Okay.  So then we would drop into the H-frames.

22 And I just haven't heard any testimony that or evidence

23 that -- I mean I heard testimony, but I haven't seen any

24 evidence that has shown failure, especially from reading

25 Mr. Magruder's data request responses from my data
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1 request, which was to give me everything that he asked

2 for, that indicated that the wood poles have failed.

3          And it is a lot of money, when I see in this

4 same area a lot of wood poles still being used.  And I

5 have seen hybrid TEP lines with 138 monopoles and wood

6 poles.  And that was just my only reason for that, it

7 was just to offset some of the costs in some of the

8 lower areas and with the dull galvanized.

9    Q.    Talking about probably the differential on that

10 galvanized pole, dull surface versus the bright surface,

11 is about $7500 a mile is what I calculated.  If you

12 figure the average span is around 800 feet, then you are

13 looking at roughly 7500 to $8,000 difference per mile.

14 And that's a concern of yours.  But in the scheme of

15 this hearing, would it be kind of a low priority or is

16 it a high priority?

17    A.    The appropriate monopole color?

18    Q.    The economic factor as you have discussed, the

19 $7500 additional cost per mile, how married are you to

20 that?

21    A.    The economic cost?  I am getting that cost

22 analysis issue from the company when we discuss the

23 monopole color.  Because I actually believe that the

24 aesthetics are what drive people to get involved in

25 these cases.  And we are not asking to underground.  And
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1 that has other environmental issues.  But what happens

2 and seems to drive a lot of people to get involved in

3 these are the poles.

4    Q.    You are aware of the cost differential in

5 underground?

6    A.    Oh, my gosh.  That has other environmental

7 issues in this area, yes, bad.  But what has been told

8 to me a lot of times when I ask for the monopole color,

9 it is that it costs more.

10    Q.    Well, so your answer to my question is that --

11    A.    I am not married to it, no.

12    Q.    Okay.  All right.  Segment 3, let's compare the

13 proposed route, the preferred route to the alternative

14 route.  And you have a preference.  And can you be

15 specific from north to south on that Segment 3 map?

16    A.    Are you referring to the inset 3-1, which I

17 think is still in Segment 2?

18    Q.    This one right here, yes, or we can do it the

19 other way.  The other one is awfully small.

20    A.    Yes, I know.  And so it is the one that we have

21 been referring to sort of as the mesquite bosque?

22    Q.    Right.

23    A.    Okay.  I propose the Pendleton Road alignment.

24    Q.    I am sorry, would you repeat that?

25    A.    The Pendleton Road alignment, which is my --
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1    Q.    You are talking about paralleling Pendleton

2 Road?

3    A.    Correct.

4    Q.    Okay.

5    A.    And that would use, to come in and out of the

6 Cañez substation, that would use that existing

7 right-of-way easement that they have there currently,

8 the big one that we walked down through the gate.

9    Q.    All right.

10    A.    And they probably have to double circuit that

11 pole.  But my understanding, this line is only supposed

12 to be a single circuit pole anyway, so it wouldn't be a

13 problem, I would think, from an engineering perspective.

14    Q.    And Segment 4.

15    A.    Segment 4, my understanding from conversations

16 with Mr. Beck was that if the Committee says that the

17 poles have to be underbuilt, that they will do it.

18          And also I have included photographs of the

19 Robert Bills substation transmission lines, and that's a

20 new substation from 2005.  And, well, it is an upgrade

21 from the Littleton substation.  And the transmission

22 lines and that is all underbuilt with transmission and

23 distribution.  And that was only, well, the sign that's

24 out front it says 2005, so that would be a relatively

25 new project.
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1          And I just believe in a community that is that

2 poor and is -- when -- you should just underbuild, and

3 when there is another project that is that new that has

4 got underbuild and distribution on that didn't just show

5 up and I think it really looks like it was really part

6 of the design, that I think this can be done in the

7 urban areas to clean up some of the visual blight.  And

8 that's why.

9    Q.    So you were concerned down in the greater

10 Nogales area that there is a significant visual blight

11 from the maze of transmission lines, mostly local

12 distribution lines, but they seem to be everywhere?

13    A.    And there are some really new poles that go from

14 east to west into the Valencia substation, you see in my

15 exhibit, that are literally -- one of them is leaning,

16 or maybe it is my perspective in the picture.  It is

17 very, very close to the wood H-frame.  And those poles

18 are very new.  Those are dull gray galvanized and they

19 are right up against the old distribution line going

20 into the Valencia substation.

21          And that location, if you look at one of the

22 exhibits in my pleading, to the, to the -- I get so

23 confused on that part, but it is going south, there is a

24 very substantial right-of-way.  And in that case you

25 could actually take out that distribution line and use
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1 those poles in a location that has got three or four

2 really old wood yucky distribution, and then you could

3 just underbuild going into the Valencia substation.

4 Because I mean that area, I mean they are trying to

5 rebuild and do nice things, and it seems like you could

6 take out some of the visual blight.

7          MEMBER PALMER:  Mr. Chairman, if I could defer

8 to you for a moment.  When we issue a CEC that has

9 conditions placed on it, it also provides for, in some

10 cases, underbuilding.  But we can't compel them to

11 underbuild.  They get certificated to do that.  But that

12 doesn't necessarily mean they have to do that, is that

13 correct?

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I don't know the answer to that

15 question.  It seems to me that that would involve or

16 could potentially involve modification of an earlier

17 issued CEC and might be something that would have to be

18 addressed either in the Commission level through a

19 request to modify a prior CEC --

20          MEMBER PALMER:  Well, I suspect that those local

21 distribution lines and that maze that we all witnessed

22 when we were down in Nogales predate the siting statute.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Right, could be.  And if the

24 local distribution line is below 100 kV, then it is not

25 something that would be involved in a CEC, too.  So I
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1 would think that --

2          MEMBER PALMER:  Well, 115kV, but the next one,

3 the big one, 69kV.

4          CHMN. FOREMAN:  If it was a 69kV line, I think

5 it would not be a problem; if it is a 115, then I think

6 it would.

7          MEMBER PALMER:  Right.  Okay.  Thank you.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I have a couple of questions.

9

10                        EXAMINATION

11 BY CHMN. FOREMAN:

12    Q.    You have talked about your preference for a dull

13 finished pole as opposed to a shiny galvanized pole.  Do

14 you also favor the use of or do you not object to the

15 use of the weathered metal poles?

16    A.    Well, the only place that I am adamant about the

17 dull, the dull grade galvanized finish is when they were

18 adjacent to steel lattice structures, because I can -- I

19 have shown pictures of what it looks like.

20    Q.    Could I move you back to --

21    A.    Move back to the question.

22    Q.    The question that I asked was:  Do you oppose

23 the weathered brown metal structures?

24    A.    In appropriate locations, no.

25    Q.    And appropriate locations would be when the
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1 poles are on land that's lower in elevation so that

2 people who would be looking at the poles or most of the

3 people who would be looking at the poles would be

4 looking at the poles against land below the horizon as

5 opposed to sky above the horizon?

6    A.    The only place I would say definitively that a

7 brown pole fits in is in trees.  So I am in support of

8 Mr. Magruder's condition for some sort of planning in

9 regard to location with pole color.

10    Q.    All right.  So you and Mr. Magruder agree on

11 that.  As I understand Mr. Magruder's position, it was

12 that the weathered brown poles be used in lower

13 elevations, the dull galvanized poles would be used in

14 higher elevations.

15          Am I correct in understanding your position,

16 sir?

17          MR. MAGRUDER:  Mr. Chairman, I would say that

18 the dulled galvanized steel with a light background, the

19 dark brown weathered poles with a dark brown, dark

20 background, which might generally occur as you said with

21 the mountain background or forest type background, but

22 it is really the background contrast.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  If you stand at the base of the

24 pole, all of them, and look up, all of them are going to

25 have a light background when the sun is shining.
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1          MR. MAGRUDER:  I understand.  I also caveated

2 where most of the people would be looking at the pole,

3 which might be an interstate.

4          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.

5          MR. MAGRUDER:  So I tried to move away.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So I am just trying to figure

7 out your positions.  And, as I understand it, you are

8 both pretty close on that.

9          MS. WEBB:  I don't so much agree.  I don't think

10 the lower elevation thing works unless you walk the line

11 in this particular case.  The only thing I am going to

12 say 100 percent without going out and walking the line

13 is when you see brown poles in trees.

14 BY CHMN. FOREMAN:

15    Q.    That would be --

16    A.    In the bosque.

17    Q.    Bosque area.  Okay, fair enough.

18          Now, you indicated that your home was 16 miles

19 from the Vail substation?

20    A.    Maybe 20.

21    Q.    Maybe 20?

22    A.    Uh-huh.

23    Q.    And what direction from the Vail substation?

24 East?

25    A.    See where that thing is to -- sorry, I won't say



UNS / Vail to Valencia 7/8/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 Case No. 144   Vol. IV

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

736

1 thing.  If you were at the Vail substation and you were

2 to head southeast on Interstate 10 and take -- oh, gosh,

3 I hate these things; I was trying to do it for the

4 transcriber -- State Route 83, and you go down to that

5 little crook and you go into all that conservation land,

6 right there.

7    Q.    All right.  And to the west of where you are at

8 is the Santa Rita Mountains.  And those Santa Rita

9 Mountains are between your home and the project proposed

10 line, is that correct?

11    A.    Yes.  And this is where the proposed Rosemont

12 copper project is, and then there is a road that goes

13 boink right over the mountains right there.  And that's

14 the Vail to Kantor line that was referenced several

15 times by people in those letters.  And that's why this

16 is a huge concern, because this is the proposed main

17 access road.

18    Q.    Okay.  Thank you.

19          You indicated that you would like to see wooden

20 poles retained in this area in Segment 1 on down into

21 Segment 2, is that correct, or just in Segment 2?

22    A.    Well, where is the Kantor substation on here?

23 Oh, there it is.

24          Okay.  That's the Kantor substation, I believe.

25 And then there is a Josephine-Kantor somewhere down
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1 around here.

2    Q.    Yes.

3    A.    And I believe that's where it drops into the

4 Santa Cruz Valley.

5    Q.    Okay.  So you want the wood poles retained in

6 that segment between Kantor and Josephine Creek area, is

7 that correct?

8    A.    Well, not the creek so much as that subdivision.

9 I don't know the name of it.

10    Q.    Okay.

11    A.    And this is more uplands when you are down in

12 the freeway.  I am not going to say 100 percent, but it

13 is more uplands.

14    Q.    All right.  During Mr. Beck's testimony he

15 testified that the wood poles -- and I understood his

16 testimony to include the wood poles in that area -- were

17 poles that were projected to have a 40-year useful life

18 and they are now 40 years old.  Do you disagree with

19 that testimony?

20    A.    I don't disagree with the statement.  What -- I

21 can't even say I disagree with anything.  Mr. Magruder

22 entered a data request, and there was no response to any

23 pole failures that could be pointed to those, and pole

24 replacement, if I remember correctly.  And we have --

25 and there is no study to show where that projected 40
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1 years is from, what kind of wood is used, where, in what

2 areas is that low land, higher incident.  And I think I

3 understand that anyplace where there is dirt, but I

4 just, I feel more comfortable seeing a study that shows

5 what their rate of failure is or where the data came

6 from with the projected 40-year span.  But as I said to

7 Member Palmer, I am not 100 percent ready to disagree,

8 but I would like to see some information to back that

9 data up.

10    Q.    You would like to see some data that would

11 contradict Mr. Beck's testimony?

12    A.    Or corroborate it.

13    Q.    Or corroborate it.  But I am trying to

14 understand your testimony.  Your testimony is so far you

15 haven't seen any, is that correct?

16    A.    Correct.

17    Q.    Mr. Beck also testified, I believe, that the

18 present insulators on those poles are inappropriate for

19 138 kilovolts.  Do you disagree with that testimony?

20    A.    I just don't know lawyer words to say these

21 things.

22    Q.    Actually I am not asking for a legal conclusion

23 here.  I am asking whether you disagree with his

24 testimony that the insulators on those wooden poles now

25 are inappropriate, insufficient, of insufficient length,
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1 as I understood his testimony, for a 138 kilovolt line?

2    A.    I would like to see data to support that

3 statement.

4    Q.    Okay.  May I infer from that answer that you

5 aren't aware of any data that would contradict it now?

6    A.    I don't know where to get that.

7    Q.    Okay.  The Pendleton Road alignment that you

8 have proposed here today, do you know legally whether

9 this Committee could place the line on the Pendleton

10 Road alignment without having this hearing renoticed and

11 going back and starting again?

12    A.    I preface to say I am not a lawyer, but my

13 understanding, no, it could not be done legally without

14 a 500-foot corridor.

15    Q.    So effectively adopting the Pendleton Road

16 alignment would require us to order the company to go

17 back, renotice that alignment, and then we would have to

18 hold a new set of hearings on it, is that correct, or is

19 that your understanding?

20    A.    Yes, but I chose that option given the other

21 things that they have to do first anyhow.

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Very good.  Those are all

23 the questions that I have.  Do you have anything that

24 you would like to say in redirect?

25          MS. WEBB:  Yes, but if I say it wrong, will you
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1 just tell me?

2          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I will, I promise.

3

4                    REDIRECT TESTIMONY

5

6          MS. WEBB:  Okay.  Given the response that I

7 received in the data request for the BLM at the

8 beginning of May regarding the categorical exclusion in

9 the environmental assessment that was answered by

10 Mr. Warner and Mr. Beck that was not forthright, it is

11 difficult for me to believe some other statements in

12 fact that I hear without data to support that.

13          And that's all I am going to say and I don't

14 mean to be rude.  Thank you.

15          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Very good.  All right.

16 That concludes, as I -- Ms. Webb, you did not have any

17 other witnesses to call, is that correct?

18          MS. WEBB:  No.

19          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Very good.  We now

20 go to the applicant, and it is the applicant's

21 opportunity to present rebuttal testimony.  Do you have

22 any to present?

23          MR. DERSTINE:  We do, Mr. Chairman.

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Let's move into

25 that, at least get started before we break.
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1          MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Chairman, we have marked as

2 UNS Exhibit 23 prefiled rebuttal testimony of Mr. Beck,

3 who previously testified before the Committee back in

4 Rio Rico.  Mr. Beck's prefiled rebuttal testimony,

5 UNS-23, responds to the series of questions that came

6 from members of the Committee and you, Mr. Chairman,

7 regarding primarily focused on the bosque area, the

8 possibility of moving the line west of the railroad in

9 the area of the bosque in Segment 2, and other issues

10 that came to mind to various Committee members

11 associated with that.

12          Before I move into that, I thought it would make

13 sense, just given that it is topical, that I would have

14 Mr. Beck first address the BLM questions and issues that

15 came up in Ms. Webb's testimony, and then move directly,

16 in kind of a summary fashion, cover the prefiled direct

17 testimony in response to the various questions from the

18 Committee.  And then there are a few other side issues.

19 And that would complete our rebuttal testimony.

20          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  So you are going to

21 call Mr. Beck?

22          MR. DERSTINE:  I would like to call Mr. Beck.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.

24          MR. DERSTINE:  And we introduced Mr. Beck and

25 Mr. Warner as a panel previously.  I don't know that
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1 testimony, there will be any prepared or rebuttal

2 testimony questions from me; however, I would like to

3 have Mr. Warner resworn again as well and available, in

4 the event that there are questions from members of the

5 Committee that Mr. Warner is best suited to answer.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I think given the fact that

7 Mr. Warner's name was referred to as being a participant

8 in correspondence or conversations with regard to the

9 BLM exchange, I think that that's appropriate.

10          Mr. Beck and Mr. Warner, you both realize you

11 are still under oath?

12          MR. BECK:  Yes, I do.

13          MR. WARNER:  Yes, I do.

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  And, Counsel, why

15 don't you proceed.  I would like for you also to address

16 the letter that we received this morning from the Santa

17 Cruz Flood Control District.

18          MR. DERSTINE:  I will do so.

19          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Proceed.

20          MR. DERSTINE:  The court reporter has given me

21 directions to snuggle up to this mike.  I don't have the

22 great voice that Mr. Gellman does.  So let me do that.

23

24

25
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1           EDMOND A. BECK and MICHAEL L. WARNER,

2 called as rebuttal witnesses, having been previously

3 duly sworn by the Chairman to speak the truth and

4 nothing but the truth, were examined and testified as

5 follows:

6

7                    DIRECT EXAMINATION

8 BY MR. DERSTINE:

9    Q.    Mr. Beck, the first topic that I would like to

10 have you address is the issues relating to Bureau of

11 Land Management.  Let me first ask you if you can, if

12 you have a laser pointer, and if you don't, I will give

13 you one, if you can identify where BLM land is or is

14 touched upon by this project.

15    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Well, I would like to preface my

16 testimony with the fact that there is a lot of confusion

17 as to what is actually BLM or not BLM land regarding

18 this project.  There are two potential areas that have

19 some BLM involvement, and we are having discussions with

20 BLM regarding them.  One is on the north end at the

21 Nogales tap.  Very specifically on the segment map it is

22 right at the tap itself, right at the substation

23 location.  The other area that is in question is down in

24 the Valencia substation area.

25          Clark, do you have that more detailed map of the
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1 county complex?

2          This is the line on the southern end.  This is

3 the county complex.  If you recall when we went on our

4 field tour, we stopped on top of that hill.  This

5 property surrounding the complex at one time was BLM

6 land.  They ceded that land to the county and the county

7 has control.

8          There is a question as to who has jurisdiction

9 over the right-of-way that UNS Electric has crossing

10 that piece of property.  The TEP or UNS legal counsel

11 are of the opinion that the county has jurisdiction over

12 what would be done on that right-of-way and that BLM

13 would not.  BLM has indicated they tentatively think

14 that they still have some control over that, but they

15 are in the process of reviewing that.

16          Early in the process when we started the

17 project, we had not identified any BLM land as part of

18 the project.  We did our initial public scoping notice

19 to the agencies and did not include the BLM.  Subsequent

20 to that, we realized that there was some land in

21 question that could have some BLM implications, and

22 Transcon, Mr. Warner in particular, did have discussions

23 with both Susan Bernal, of the Tucson office of BLM, as

24 well as the state office up in Phoenix regarding what

25 might be required for our project going forward.  I
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1 think the gist of that conversation was let's wait until

2 this project gets identified, what the alignment will

3 really be, and deal with it at that time.

4          Subsequent to that, it was raised at the BLM

5 that the Nogales tap, there is a question as to whether

6 there is any right-of-way issued for the existing line.

7 And Susan Bernal in particular contacted UNS Electric

8 and said we need talk about this.

9          Last -- this past Monday we actually sat down

10 and actually met with BLM personnel in Tucson and talked

11 about the project.  The one thing that UNS Electric has

12 on the north end of this project is a lease issued by

13 the State Land Department from 1955 that indicates we

14 have a right-of-way granted by the state when that land

15 was under state control that would give us the right to

16 be there.  The land was subsequently, a portion of it,

17 was given back or ceded back to BLM.  BLM now has

18 control of this little parcel adjacent to the

19 substation.

20    Q.    Mr. Beck, how big of an area is that?

21    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I believe it is 200 feet.  And

22 again, it is this, just right adjacent to the

23 substation.  I think we have the other detail map that

24 Clark can probably bring up again.  This is kind of a

25 small scale, but there is the substation right there.
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1 This is the existing line coming up from the south and

2 it turns into that Nogales tap substation.

3          The piece in question is the line exiting from

4 the existing WAPA substation out to where it hits the

5 alignment of Wilmot Road.  There is a question of

6 whether there is even any structures there.  And in fact

7 BLM and UNS personnel are going to meet in the field to

8 go out and review it and try and determine exactly where

9 the pole structures are to see if there is anything

10 sitting on BLM property.

11          The discussion we had with BLM was that, in

12 their opinion, a NEPA process would potentially be

13 required if in fact they have control over those pieces

14 of property.  As I said, UNS' position is they have no

15 control over the property.  And so the lawyers will be

16 working out the respective issues and who has control of

17 what.

18          To the extent it is determined that BLM truly

19 does have some control over a portion of this, some type

20 of NEPA process may be required.  But there is the

21 potential for even a categorical exclusion for portions

22 of this project depending on what is done and what the

23 actions are in the BLM.

24    Q.    Mr. Beck, I winced a little bit when I heard it,

25 but Ms. Beck -- Ms. Beck -- Ms. Webb has indicated at
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1 the conclusion of her rebuttal testimony that you were

2 not forthright, and I take that to be honest, in your

3 testimony about whether or not what sort of BLM approval

4 and what environmental approval was required.

5          Do you want to respond to that?

6    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Sure.  At the time that we got the

7 data request, the position of UNS Electric and Transcon

8 was that, if in fact there were any BLM issues, they

9 were very minor.  There was a possibility it could be

10 done as a categorical exclusion under the BLM handbook

11 of NEPA process but that we would determine what that

12 process would need to be when we went to the BLM once

13 the project was defined.  But at that time that we

14 responded we didn't think there was any extensive NEPA

15 process that would be required.

16          Now, in addition, our application, we have been

17 very specific in the application that all NEPA processes

18 that might be required for any rights-of-way, leases,

19 easements, and so on, would be completed prior to being

20 able to get that right-of-way.

21          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Youle.

22          MEMBER YOULE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

23          Mr. Beck, on your Segment 1, because you have

24 got such a small area of potential BLM involvement, does

25 the alternative alignment as outlined in blue, does that
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1 avoid all BLM --

2          MR. BECK:  Yes, it does.

3          MEMBER YOULE:  -- questions?

4          MR. BECK:  And that was one of the other

5 factors.  And I thought BLM may not have a big part in

6 this project because there is an alternative that avoids

7 BLM on the north end.

8          MEMBER YOULE:  And if you went with that

9 alternative route, then would you basically be giving up

10 the ability to run both interconnections of the Nogales

11 tap and Vail substation?

12          MR. BECK:  Actually we don't intend to have that

13 interconnection once we are complete, so that the only

14 issue is it is a little bit longer and the State Land

15 Department indicated their preference for the northern

16 route.

17          MEMBER YOULE:  Thank you.  Got you, sir.

18 BY MR. DERSTINE:

19    Q.    Mr. Beck, is there anything else you think is

20 important to add so the Committee has a clear and

21 accurate understanding of the issues associated with BLM

22 land and BLM approval?

23    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I will just point out on the map

24 on the left, as you can see we show no BLM land on the

25 southern part of this project.  And, again, the reason
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1 for that is that the land that BLM had at one point was

2 ceded to the county, so they have no jurisdiction over

3 that land currently.

4          The thing that is in question is whether,

5 because they are the ones that assigned a right-of-way

6 or lease to, at the time, Citizens, which transferred to

7 UNS Electric, whether they have some kind of remnant

8 authority over that until the time of the right-of-way

9 expiration.

10          And on the north end you will see that the BLM

11 piece, the reason you can't really see the BLM is it is

12 hidden by the triangle, but it is underneath the

13 triangle.

14          And one other point is that the Nogales tap, to

15 the extent we go along the Wilmot alignment, there would

16 be the opportunity to potentially put the line on the

17 other side of Wilmot if we needed to from a BLM

18 perspective.  So there again it is another avoidance

19 from their decision making process, that there are

20 alternatives that don't require BLM.

21    Q.    Thank you.

22          MEMBER NOLAND:  I think --

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Noland.

24          MEMBER NOLAND:  Mr. Beck, to that point, are you

25 saying that you could locate it on the other side of the
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1 right-of-way and it would be within the 500-foot

2 alignment that was noticed?

3          MR. BECK:  We could put it on the other side of

4 Wilmot Road and it would fall within the 500-foot.

5          MEMBER NOLAND:  Thank you.

6 BY MR. DERSTINE:

7    Q.    Mr. Beck, let me now have you direct your

8 attention to what has been marked as UNS-23, which is

9 titled prefiled rebuttal testimony in response to

10 Committee questions and inquiries with exhibits.  Do you

11 have that before you?

12    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, I do.

13    Q.    Okay.  Was UNS-23 prepared by you or under your

14 direction?

15    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, it was.

16    Q.    If you were asked the questions that are set

17 forth in UNS-23 today, would your answers be the same?

18    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Generally they would, with one

19 correction.

20    Q.    Please give us that.

21    A.    BY MR. BECK:  On page 4, under item number 4, it

22 is on line 17 of the document, I stated in the testimony

23 it states a 100-foot right-of-way placed directly west

24 of the UPRR right-of-way.  That should say a 50-foot

25 path placed directly west of the UPRR right-of-way.
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1 There is a 50-foot strip that falls within the corridor

2 description that would allow construction of the line

3 within that 50-foot strip.

4    Q.    Other than that change, Mr. Beck, is the

5 testimony that is provided in UNS-23 true and accurate

6 to the best of your knowledge?

7    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, it is.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Before we move on, Mr. Beck --

9          MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  -- let me ask you to move on to

11 page 7, line 12 of UNS-23.  My copy sort of ends out

12 there in no man's land.  You say he confirmed that, and

13 then you don't say what he confirmed.  Did something get

14 cut out or --

15          MR. BECK:  I had something, obviously, that got

16 left out of these versions.

17          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Can you fill in the blank?

18          MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Chairman, I think that is

19 a -- might be a function of poor lawyering on our part.

20 I think the substance of the testimony that is

21 referenced at line -- the question that is answered, the

22 question at line 9 that's answered on lines 11 and 12,

23 and the substance of the conversation that took place

24 with Mr. Drummer is set forth in the next question and

25 answer right below it:  One the primary concerns the
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1 U.S. Army Corps of Engineers indicated to the company

2 was how access would occur and be maintained within the

3 Santa Cruz River floodway.  I think it was all one

4 sentence and we broke it out.

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So let me get this right.  In

6 your own office, without any other parties or

7 interruptions present, the lawyer talked over the

8 witness' answer.  Is that what happened?

9          MR. DERSTINE:  The lawyer looked at the witness'

10 answer and said this would be clearer if we broke it

11 out.  And then we apparently confused things even

12 further.

13          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  So if I understand

14 correctly, then, the answer that's left dangling there

15 on line 12 actually continues down here with the answer

16 that begins on line 16, is that -- am I understanding it

17 correctly?

18          MR. BECK:  I believe that he confirmed what was

19 in the previous paragraph as well as then we went on

20 with more detail.  And that's where it got broken out.

21          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.

22          MR. BECK:  So he compared the information in the

23 previous paragraph and then kind of reiterated his

24 points.

25          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So those two questions and
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1 answer would be read together --

2          MR. BECK:  Correct.

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  -- and read together form the

4 answer that you would give here today?

5          MR. BECK:  Yes.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  All right.  Thank you.

7 That helped me.

8 BY MR. DERSTINE:

9    Q.    Mr. Beck, I don't want to have you go through

10 and re-present this testimony.  The purpose of UNS-23

11 was hopefully to streamline the proceedings but still at

12 the same time be responsive to the Committee's

13 questions.  Do you -- or I would like, if possible, one

14 of the questions was to give the Committee a better

15 understanding of kind of this bosque area and the issues

16 associated with the line in this area and the routes in

17 this area.

18          One of the questions was to provide aerial

19 photography.  Is it possible that we can pull that up?

20          It is apparently loading.  While it is loading,

21 let me, Mr. Beck's testimony, move the admission of

22 UNS-23.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Is there any objection?

24          MR. MAGRUDER:  I have no objection.

25          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Hm.  Ms. Webb is no longer with
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1 us or --

2          MR. MAGRUDER:  I think she is ill.

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Oh, I am sorry.  I asked her to

4 let me know if she was getting ill and needed to take a

5 break.  Perhaps we should take a five-minute break and

6 find out what her situation is.  We will take a brief

7 recess.

8          (A recess ensued from 2:49 p.m. to 3:01 p.m.)

9          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Let's see.  We have all of our

10 parties here now.  Mr. Magruder, could I get you to take

11 your seat, please, sir.

12          All right.  We were beginning the redirect

13 examination of Mr. Beck.

14          Counsel, you may proceed.

15 BY MR. DERSTINE:

16    Q.    Mr. Beck, before the short break, we were going

17 to pull up aerial photography.  That was certainly one

18 of the topics or questions that was raised, whether or

19 not there was current aerial photography available of

20 the area that much of the focus and attention has been

21 directed to that is in the area of the bosque of

22 Segment 2.  Do you have aerial photography for that?

23    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes.  Subsequent to the hearings

24 in early June, we had Segment 2 and 3 flown to obtain

25 new aerial photography, specifically to respond to some
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1 of the Committee's questions as to what does the

2 existing right-of-way look like out there today and as

3 well as what does the right-of-way just west of the

4 railroad look like.

5          Clark, if you could, zoom in and give a closer

6 look.

7          This is on the north end where we will cross

8 Pendleton Road.  This is the existing alignment.  You

9 can see that that has been cleared as was discussed in

10 the previous testimony.  This was all cleared within the

11 last year.  This is the railroad alignment generally

12 over here.

13          Clark, if you can, move on down.

14          Again you will see it is cleared, completely

15 cleared up to this point here.  These are the sections,

16 portions of the existing alignment that were not

17 clear-cut at the request of the residents.  And this,

18 you can see we cross some open spaces, but there are

19 still areas that were not clear.

20          There is Cañez substation.  And as you can see

21 from Cañez when we were out there, you could look to the

22 south and see a little bit of the clearing, but

23 obviously that clearing extends all the way down to

24 Pendleton Road, but to the north it is scattered

25 clearing that we did.
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1          As we turn to the southeast and cross back over

2 Pendleton Road, we see it is cleared right on through

3 here behind all the residences along Pendleton Road.

4          Can you back up a little bit, Clark?

5          Just to point out, the existing distribution

6 line is over along the railroad here.  Continue on to

7 the south.  You can see we got clearing all along the

8 back side of these Pendleton properties until we reach

9 this point.  Then we cross a couple of lots where we

10 didn't do clear-cutting.  And then just at this point

11 here you will see we are getting out of trees and back

12 into the higher ground, more brush type vegetation.

13          As we continue south you can see what the line

14 does.  Here is a couple of the properties that we are

15 near with the line where they have houses.

16          Continue on down.  On this ridge top there is

17 some type of a building right in here.  And as you can

18 see, there are a few residences or outbuildings that are

19 right next to or under the line.  But again, it isn't

20 until we get down towards Sonoita that you really start

21 to see the encroachment where we have some issues.  Then

22 here is where the development is pretty extensive.  We

23 don't have any tree issues to speak of in here, but

24 there are other conflicts.  And then we are down into

25 Sonoita sub here.
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1          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Now, Mr. Beck, help me to

2 remember this.  If I remember correctly, the line that

3 you have been showing us in Segment 3 is the present

4 line, and it shows the 500-foot corridor that has been

5 requested.  You have not shown us the preferred line, is

6 that correct?

7          MR. BECK:  That is correct.  This was the

8 existing alignment, just to show vegetation issues and

9 what exists structure-wise under the existing line.

10          Continue south, Clark.

11          That's basically the edge of where we did the

12 aerial photography.

13          Now, if you are interested, we can go back over

14 and look at the railroad alignment.  I am not sure there

15 is much to see that you haven't already seen but this

16 specifically shows the clearing during the last year.

17          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I would very much like to see

18 the railroad alignment from the place where it -- at the

19 north end of the bosque area north of Cañez where you go

20 from the Pendleton, across Pendleton Drive or near

21 Pendleton Drive.

22          MR. BECK:  Okay.  Basically here again is where

23 the existing line crosses Pendleton.  At that point we

24 are going to move down over to the railroad

25 right-of-way.  And then we would parallel the railroad
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1 right-of-way right through here.

2          Maybe stop for a minute, Clark.

3          As you can see, there are trees here that would

4 be affected by construction and clearing activities if

5 we are on the east side of the railroad.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Can you -- there appear to be

7 paralleling lines in the area where your pointer was

8 located.

9          MR. BECK:  I believe the wider portion that's

10 closest to the railroad is the railroad access

11 maintenance road or edge of right-of-way where they have

12 it cleared, and then this smaller narrower swath is the

13 distribution alignment.

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And that's to the east of the

15 railroad?

16          MR. BECK:  Correct.  So to the extent we were

17 building a line along this alignment, it would be

18 approximately from that distribution line somewhere to

19 the east of that, is the intent.  So you would be

20 impacting all of the trees along here.

21          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And it cannot go to the west

22 because --

23          MR. BECK:  To the west of the railroad

24 right-of-way?

25          CHMN. FOREMAN:  No.  To the west of the
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1 distribution line and east of the railroad would be in

2 the railroad right-of-way, is that correct?

3          MR. BECK:  We would be encroaching on the

4 railroad right-of-way, that's correct.

5          MEMBER EBERHART:  Mr. Chairman.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Eberhart.

7          MEMBER EBERHART:  Just one comment, Mr. Beck, if

8 you could verify.  This area we are looking at right now

9 is all one landowner, Rio Rico Properties, where the

10 current alignment goes, more or less bisects the

11 property?

12          MR. BECK:  Yes, that's true.

13          MEMBER EBERHART:  Thank you.

14          MR. BECK:  I am not sure the cutoff point on the

15 south end.  Generally on this area it is all Rio Rico

16 Properties.

17          MEMBER EBERHART:  Thank you.

18          MR. BECK:  Okay, Clark, can we move on.

19          Now, as you can see, there is some clearing,

20 areas that are cleared in here, again, a few more trees

21 a little bit further south.  These trees may actually be

22 within the railroad right-of-way so they may not be

23 impacted through that very much.  We do get back into

24 trees again that would be affected.

25          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Stop it there, please.



UNS / Vail to Valencia 7/8/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 Case No. 144   Vol. IV

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

760

1          Now, you have talked about two different ways of

2 locating the line on the preferred route near that

3 distribution line.  One would be collocating it with the

4 distribution line and another would be using a separate

5 pole, separate set of poles, is that correct?

6          MR. BECK:  The company's position is that we

7 would rather not collocate distribution on transmission

8 lines.  But to the extent the Committee found that a

9 requirement for this project, it could be done, it is

10 feasible.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  If you did not do that,

12 if I understood what you said earlier, you would like to

13 place the new poles for the transmission line to the

14 east of the distribution line, is that correct?

15          MR. BECK:  That is correct.

16          CHMN. FOREMAN:  How far east?

17          MR. BECK:  Generally at 50 feet off of the

18 existing railroad right-of-way.

19          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And the distribution line poles

20 presently are to the edge of the railroad right-of-way?

21          MR. BECK:  They are pretty close to the railroad

22 right-of-way, that's correct.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So roughly speaking, you would

24 be taking 50 more feet in towards the homes that are

25 along here that are on the screen now?



UNS / Vail to Valencia 7/8/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 Case No. 144   Vol. IV

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

761

1          MR. BECK:  If we did our normal right-of-way

2 through there of 100 feet, we would be taking 62 and a

3 half feet of additional right-of-way, but we wouldn't

4 clear that full 62 and a half feet.

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  How much would you clear?

6          MR. BECK:  I believe we have been clearing in

7 the range of 60 foot generally on a 100-foot

8 right-of-way, we can get by with 60 foot of clearing.

9 We cleared 100 feet of the existing line to date.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Could you place the transmission

11 line, new transmission line on separate poles east of

12 the present distribution line without clearing more

13 trees?

14          MR. BECK:  There would be some clearing of

15 trees.  We can work to minimize it, but there would be

16 some clearing of trees.

17          CHMN. FOREMAN:  How much?  Would there be, let's

18 say, 20 feet all the way along, or would it be just a

19 tree here and a tree there?  How much?

20          MR. BECK:  You know, it just depends what trees

21 are out there specifically, where the structures fall

22 relative to the trees.  Part of our design would be to

23 locate the poles to minimize the number of trees we

24 would have to clear.  But I can't really give you a

25 number of percent or number of trees at this point.
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1          CHMN. FOREMAN:  What would be the problem of

2 placing the transmission line closer than 50 feet to the

3 distribution line?

4          MR. BECK:  That's something that we could look

5 at.  We might be able to place the transmission poles

6 somewhat closer than the 50 feet.  The 50 foot was based

7 on a normal 100-foot wide right-of-way which allows us

8 to span up to 900 foot spans with construction.  We can

9 reduce span lengths as needed, and as a result reduce

10 the width of right-of-way required.  So we can narrow

11 the right-of-way that would be required.  Likewise, we

12 can look at where the new poles would go, the

13 transmission poles relative to the distribution poles,

14 and minimize the clearance required.  Offhand I don't

15 know what that minimum is.  I haven't looked at what a

16 distribution to transmission line very minimal clearance

17 would be.

18          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  I am sorry.  Go ahead.

19          MR. DERSTINE:  Okay.

20          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I am sorry, Member Youle.

21          MEMBER YOULE:  Mr. Beck, there looks to me like

22 you have already got some buildings in the distribution

23 line, if I am --

24          MR. BECK:  Up on the northern portion of what

25 you are seeing?
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1          MEMBER YOULE:  Right.

2          MR. BECK:  There are outbuildings in that

3 location.

4          MEMBER YOULE:  And if you were to put the

5 transmission line a little further east of that

6 distribution line, wouldn't you run into even more

7 encroachment?

8          MR. BECK:  I think this is pretty much our worst

9 case right here, these few structures.  So, you know, a

10 little bit further east probably wouldn't present --

11          MEMBER YOULE:  Okay.

12          MR. BECK:  -- a lot greater issue with

13 structures.

14          MEMBER YOULE:  Okay.  Thank you.

15          MR. BECK:  Clark, if you can, continue on.

16          Again, the triangle is Cañez substation.

17          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Eberhart.

18          MEMBER EBERHART:  Just one quick question.  The

19 Chairman was asking some specific questions about either

20 collocating or not collocating to the east of the

21 railroad.  What would be the difference in pole heights

22 if you collocated the distribution line as opposed to

23 having two separate lines?

24          MR. BECK:  There are two issues.  One is there

25 would be additional pole height for clearance purposes.
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1 You are probably talking 15 to 20 feet minimum of

2 additional pole height.  But because the distribution

3 wire is different, our span lengths are typically much

4 shorter on a distribution construction.  So you would

5 probably place more poles on the transmission line in

6 order to accommodate the distribution line.

7          MEMBER EBERHART:  And so from an aesthetic point

8 of view, visibility point of view, to collocate the

9 poles would not only be higher, but there would be more

10 poles in the viewshed as opposed to, well, as opposed to

11 two separate lines?

12          MR. BECK:  Yes, there definitely would be more,

13 taller poles.

14          MEMBER EBERHART:  Thank you.

15          MR. BECK:  Clark, if you continue on.

16          Again, Cañez, the option was to come out to the

17 railroad and again following the along the railroad.

18 And then we get down into the fields where there really

19 is no issue from the bosque or tree perspective.

20          So we wanted to present those to be sure you saw

21 those.  The clearing didn't show up as clearly in the

22 filed testimony as we would have liked, so the larger

23 scale you can see it a little bit better.

24 BY MR. DERSTINE:

25    Q.    Mr. Beck, much of the focus of the questions
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1 from the Committee at the conclusion of our last hearing

2 day revolved around having the company present testimony

3 and analyze the feasibility of moving the line west of

4 the railroad as an alternative route to the preferred

5 route or the existing route at the bottom of Segment 2

6 in the area of the bosque.  As part of that, the

7 direction or encouragement from the Chairman was to meet

8 with Santa Cruz County Flood Control District.  Did you

9 do that?

10    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes.

11    Q.    Okay.  And it is my understanding that as an

12 outcome of that meeting -- well, let me ask you who you

13 met with flood control district.

14    A.    BY MR. BECK:  We met with Mr. John Hays, who is

15 the floodplain coordinator for Santa Cruz County.

16    Q.    And is Mr. Hays the author of the letter that

17 has been marked for identification as Elizabeth Webb 22

18 and admitted into evidence?

19    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, he is.

20    Q.    Okay.  Had you seen Webb 22 before today?

21    A.    BY MR. BECK:  No.  In fact, we just received

22 this letter today.  As I had mentioned in my testimony,

23 we were hoping and expecting to get a letter, and it

24 came in this morning.

25    Q.    Okay.  Does anything in Mr. Hays' letter that is
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1 Webb 22 differ from the information that he provided to

2 you at the time of your meeting?

3    A.    BY MR. BECK:  No, it doesn't differ whatsoever

4 with what he stated in the meeting.  And, in fact, I am

5 surprised he took as strong a position as he did in this

6 letter.

7    Q.    I just want to highlight a couple areas.  In the

8 third bullet he references, or there is a sentence that

9 starts:  In the two noted locations, see return map.

10 The proposed alignments would be within 100 to 200 feet

11 of the channel bank of the Santa Cruz River, which has

12 the potential of moving up to 500 feet in a single

13 event.

14          Do you see that?

15    A.    Yes, I do.

16    Q.    When he says return, see return map, I do see on

17 Exhibit Webb 22 that there is, appears to be two, maybe,

18 aerial photographs, or maybe they are meant to be maps.

19          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Let me stop you here.  Let me

20 ask the court reporter.  The copy of EW-22 that we have,

21 does that contain the maps?  My recollection is it just

22 was the letter without the maps.

23          (An off-the-record discussion ensued.)

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Let's go back on the record.

25 The court reporter does not have EW-22.  Ms. Webb, did
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1 you give her the Exhibit 22 this morning?

2          MS. WEBB:  No.  I had to make a copy.  No, but I

3 can make a copy of it.

4          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Why don't we do this

5 then.  Why don't we have -- my recollection was that the

6 letter, at least the letter that I saw this morning, did

7 not have the maps.  And so why don't we just make EW-22

8 UNS-24.  Would that be the next UNS exhibit in order?

9          MR. DERSTINE:  I think it is UNS-25.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  25?  And that will have both the

11 maps.  Would that be satisfactory, would that be a good

12 fix for everybody?

13          MS. WEBB:  That's fine.  Can I step out for a

14 minute, please?

15          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Yes.  Do you want us to recess?

16          MS. WEBB:  No.  I am fine.

17          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Just show EW-22 is

18 UNS-25.

19          All right.  So as I understand it there is no

20 objection then to UNS-25.  Mr. Magruder, you have no

21 objection?

22          MR. MAGRUDER:  I don't have any objection.  I

23 can't find my copy, but that's all right.

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  We will get you a

25 copy.  So UNS-25 would be admitted.
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1          (Exhibit No. UNS-25 was admitted into evidence.)

2          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And EW-22, because it is the

3 same thing, will be admitted.

4          (Exhibit No. EW-22 was admitted into evidence.)

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Proceed.

6 BY MR. DERSTINE:

7    Q.    Mr. Beck, just my question was directed to the

8 map that is referenced in UNS-25.  Do you see that

9 reference in the letter?

10    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, I do.

11    Q.    Okay.  Do you know what map Mr. Hays is

12 referring to in his letter?

13    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes.  When we met with Mr. Hays,

14 we had a map with us.  It is the portion which is shown

15 on the screen right now and which is attached to the

16 letter.  This map shows proposed structures on this

17 project along the east side of the railroad alignment.

18 This was before we had done any engineering analysis of

19 pole locations on the west side of the railroad.  So

20 when we met with Mr. Hays, we showed him and in fact

21 left a copy of this map showing the proposed area that

22 was being discussed in these hearings.

23    Q.    Okay.  And so if I am looking or reading again

24 in that third bullet, paragraph in UNS-25 where Mr. Hays

25 writes in the two noted locations the proposed
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1 alignments would be within 100 to 200 feet of the

2 channel bank of the Santa Cruz River, which has the

3 potential of moving up to 500 feet in a single event, if

4 I then turn to the map, these two pages of maps, I see

5 that there are some circled areas.  Can you describe

6 what you think is being -- or do you have an

7 understanding of what Mr. Hays circled there on the

8 maps?

9    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, I do.  What he was indicating

10 on these maps, I believe what he did was took a Xerox

11 copy off of a 24-by-36 map we left with him of two

12 areas.  This is one of them that's on the screen.  And

13 he generally put a circle around this area on the left

14 mid side of that map indicating an area where the stream

15 channel or floodway would likely move over towards the

16 railroad alignment and could cause problems if we had

17 the line down the west side of the railroad.  Likewise,

18 he did the same thing on the other sheet that he

19 Xeroxed.

20          What we did was we circled or pointed to his

21 pencil lines, which are very, very light and hard to

22 see, so we tried to at least highlight them with an

23 arrow so you could see where he was pointing to.

24    Q.    So the map, the two maps that are attached to

25 UNS-25 where it has the little box note that says this



UNS / Vail to Valencia 7/8/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 Case No. 144   Vol. IV

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

770

1 is the line delineated my Santa Cruz County, that's

2 something that we imposed on the map that Mr. Hays

3 attached to his letter?

4    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes.  We put the box and the line

5 on here this morning, specifically to try and point out

6 where he had circled the two areas because they are hard

7 to discern.

8    Q.    The next bullet paragraph on UNS-25 starts out

9 verbally the district was made aware of a proposal to

10 place the line to the west of the railroad tracks.  Do

11 you see that?

12    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, I do.

13    Q.    Am I correct in understanding from that first

14 sentence that in your or the company's discussions with

15 Mr. Hays, there was some verbal description of how the

16 line might be placed west of the railroad or how it was

17 being proposed to be placed west of the railroad tracks?

18    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes.  But the whole purpose of our

19 meeting with Mr. Hays was to discuss the fact that some

20 members of the public and the Committee were interested

21 in what the impacts might be of building the line along

22 the west side of the railroad tracks.  And so we pointed

23 out to him that at least from a notice perspective, a

24 likely location would be exactly adjacent to the

25 railroad on the western edge of the railroad alignment,



UNS / Vail to Valencia 7/8/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 Case No. 144   Vol. IV

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

771

1 or generally, you know, trying to discern from him what

2 issues the county would have anywhere west of the

3 railroad.

4    Q.    And when you say from a notice perspective, are

5 you referring to where the line could be placed west of

6 the railroad in Segment 2 and still fall within the

7 500-foot corridor called out by the company's

8 application?

9    A.    BY MR. BECK:  That is correct.

10    Q.    Okay.  And as I read Mr. Hays' letter, UNS-25,

11 in that fourth bullet he goes on to state as this would

12 place the line, comma, in certain locations, comma,

13 within the actual channel of the Santa Cruz River,

14 comma, the district would protest such a decision.  Do

15 you see that?

16    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, I do.

17    Q.    Did he discuss that with you, or is that what he

18 said in the meeting you had with him?

19    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I don't think he was quite as

20 pointed as this language is, but he did say that the

21 county would have issues with construction in the

22 floodway.

23    Q.    And when you are saying construction in the

24 floodway, is putting the line west of the railroad in

25 the floodway?
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1    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Portions of it would be.  And

2 specifically to his point in the previous bullet, he has

3 identified two specific locations that he felt the poles

4 would absolutely fall within the floodway or the stream

5 bed or the channel.

6          The other thing, though, just point out, the

7 other thing he did show us while we were there were a

8 series of aerial photographs that were taken of the

9 Santa Cruz River from as early as, I believe, 1958

10 through various flood stages up until basically today.

11 And he had evidence in some of those aerial photos of

12 where the existing Santa Cruz channel had deviated and

13 taken out portions of Interstate 19, and likewise

14 portions where it had taken out sections of the railroad

15 track to the east.  And I think it was pretty obvious

16 that the channel runs to some extent bounded by I-19 and

17 the railroad tracks.

18    Q.    Mr. Beck, I am also interested in the fourth

19 bullet of Mr. Hays' letter, UNS-25, when he states

20 placement to the west of the railroad tracks would also

21 damage what riparian habitat remains or is

22 reestablishing itself along the west side the tracks

23 between the river and the tracks.  Do you see that?

24    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, I do.

25    Q.    Did he discuss that with you at all?
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1    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, he did.  He raised the point

2 to the extent we did any construction activity, and in

3 particular building a road along the alignment as well

4 as excavation of foundations, plus any tree clearing we

5 would have to do, all of those impacts to the existing

6 vegetation would reduce the vegetation that tends to

7 protect, in fact today protects the railroad to some

8 degree, but protects that whole area from erosion,

9 limits the erosion potential.

10    Q.    Okay.  Let me finally direct your attention to

11 the last bullet on page 2 of Mr. Hays' letter, UNS-25.

12 Could you read that into the record, please.

13    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes.  It says generally speaking,

14 the district sees the existing alignment as the best

15 alternative from the standpoint of protecting the line

16 from flooding and erosion hazards, especially those

17 associated with the Santa Cruz River.

18    Q.    Did Mr. Hays express that view to you at the

19 time you met with him?

20    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, he did.  He indicated that in

21 his opinion the existing alignment was preferable to

22 both our preferred alignment that we had identified as

23 well as anything west of the railroad.

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Could I stop you there and see

25 if you can tell me what he meant by existing alignment.
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1 Existing transmission line alignment or existing

2 distribution line alignment?

3          MR. BECK:  He was referring to the existing

4 transmission alignment.  Basically his position was why

5 not just rebuild where you have an existing 115 line.

6 It is higher ground generally.  It is removed from the

7 river more so than any of the other routes.

8 BY MR. DERSTINE:

9    Q.    There was a question from the Chairman when you

10 were going through the aerial photograph of the property

11 or the land within this bosque area that's owned by Rio

12 Rico Properties.  They are a major landowner in this

13 area, is that correct?

14    A.    BY MR. BECK:  That is correct.

15    Q.    And you were present for Ms. Campana's comment

16 this morning before our hearing commenced in which she

17 indicated the number of landowners in that area had

18 signed a petition in support of moving the route west of

19 the railroad, were you not?  You were here?

20    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, I was.

21    Q.    And I inquired of her whether or not Rio Rico

22 Properties had signed on to that petition.  And I

23 recognize that she is very busy, but her comment was in

24 response to the question that they had not.

25          Do you have an understanding of what Rio Rico
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1 Properties' position is with regard to either the

2 preferred alignment and/or the possibility of moving the

3 line west of the railroad?

4    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, I do.  On June 19th the

5 company met with representatives of Rio Rico Properties,

6 slash, Avatar to talk about their interests and

7 potential for an alignment west of the railroad.  They

8 had indicated that there was a possibility putting a

9 transmission line along the grazing land west of the

10 railroad could potentially be compatible with that

11 grazing land use, but they were very hesitant to commit

12 that they would support that alignment because of issues

13 with the potential state park that they apparently are

14 negotiating on or working with the state on.

15    Q.    Let me ask you, does Rio Rico Properties or

16 Avatar own that grazing land west of the railroad?

17    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, they do.

18    Q.    Okay.  Go ahead.

19    A.    BY MR. BECK:  So this morning, after we heard

20 that there was an indication they may generally support

21 going west of the railroad, we sent an e-mail to Avatar

22 or Rio Rico Properties to find out if they had changed

23 their position since we had talked to them.  They came

24 back with an e-mail to us stating that they still could

25 not commit to supporting the line west of the railroad
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1 because of the future state park.  Well, they haven't

2 said they are against that alignment.  They are also not

3 supporting it at this time.

4    Q.    Did that communication with Rio Rico this

5 morning, did it indicate whether or not they supported

6 either the preferred alignment in Segment 2 or the

7 existing line, Alternative 1, in Segment 2?

8    A.    BY MR. BECK:  They reiterated in the e-mail that

9 they had indicated their preference for the transmission

10 line to be east of the railroad, and they had done that

11 in our June 19th meeting.

12    Q.    And to your knowledge does Rio Rico support the

13 preferred alignment or the existing line for this route

14 in Segment 2?

15    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I believe they can live with

16 either one.  They had some preference early on to go

17 with the railroad alignment, but I think they have

18 indicated either one could work.

19          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Noland.

20          MEMBER NOLAND:  Mr. Chairman, Mr. Beck, so you

21 are telling me that they would prefer to have the line

22 going through their property that they are developing

23 for homes rather than in an area that would be a park?

24          MR. BECK:  I am not sure of the reasons for

25 their concern with the state park issue.  I don't know
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1 if it is an issue with their negotiations with the state

2 as to whether they could make that happen.  But their

3 preference early on was to have the line move down to

4 the railroad so it kind of got away from the developable

5 property.  But they didn't go so far as to say west of

6 the railroad was something they could support or prefer

7 at this time.  They did not rule out the fact that they

8 may sometime in the future support that.  But it depends

9 on the outcome of their work on a state park issue.

10          MEMBER NOLAND:  Okay.  I want to be sure I have

11 this clear.  Originally I believe you moved -- you said

12 the blue alignment, which was the preferred alignment,

13 through that area was put along the east side of the

14 railroad at the behest of, I think, a property owner and

15 the Rio Rico Properties, is that correct?

16          MR. BECK:  That is correct.

17          MEMBER NOLAND:  Now they like either one, either

18 the current alignment or the preferred alignment?

19          MR. BECK:  I can't speak specifically to what

20 their preference is now relative to the existing versus

21 the east of the railroad alignment.  But in our original

22 discussions they did have that preference.

23          MEMBER NOLAND:  The east alignment?

24          MR. BECK:  Just east of the railroad, yes.

25          MEMBER NOLAND:  Okay.  But it is your
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1 understanding that they prefer either the east of the

2 railroad track or the existing alignment over a west of

3 the railroad alignment?

4          MR. BECK:  Well, actually, rereading the e-mail

5 they said their preference is the preferred alignment of

6 UniSource.  So it is the one directly east of the

7 railroad.  So they still have that preference.

8          MEMBER NOLAND:  But they could take or leave

9 either the --

10          MR. BECK:  I believe in our discussions they

11 could work either way.  But they do have that preference

12 to go down by the railroad.

13          MEMBER NOLAND:  Well, they don't have much of a

14 choice, do they?  It is already there.

15          MR. BECK:  This is true.

16          MEMBER NOLAND:  Okay.  Thanks.

17          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Mundell.

18          MEMBER MUNDELL:  Just, and you may have said it

19 and I have forgotten, refresh my memory.  How many acres

20 of property does Rio Rico have?

21          MR. BECK:  I am not sure of the number, and we

22 may or may not have testified to that.  But they do own

23 a lot of property in that area.

24          MEMBER MUNDELL:  And did they indicate to you,

25 even though they are a major landholder in the area, why
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1 they are not participating in this proceeding?

2          MR. BECK:  I believe part of their issue is that

3 their corporate headquarters is in Florida and they

4 can't take any positions without direction from Florida.

5          MEMBER MUNDELL:  Well, didn't you just read into

6 the record some positions?

7          MR. BECK:  Yes, I did, and from the person that

8 likely could be involved in this process but has chosen

9 not to.

10          MEMBER MUNDELL:  Okay.  Thank you.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So what is the company's

12 preferred route now?  Is it the same as before?  Have

13 you changed, has the company changed its position with

14 regard to what its preferred is?

15          MR. BECK:  From a cost standpoint, the

16 preference would be to go with the existing alignment

17 because it is cheaper.  And we have done the clearing

18 that wasn't cleared at the time this project got under

19 way as a result of the change in the NERC and FERC rules

20 on vegetation clearing.

21          As is indicated with the aerial photos, because

22 we have done a lot of clearing out there, in some ways

23 it makes a lot of sense to stay in the existing

24 alignment.  If the Committee chooses to go with the

25 railroad alignment, you know, that's acceptable to the
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1 company.  We originally brought that forward because of

2 the positions of the public comments that we had gotten

3 early on in the process.  But obviously, those comments

4 early on didn't speak for everyone, and we have heard a

5 lot of different positions since then.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Let me try and get a little more

7 precise answer.  From the area at the north end of the

8 bosque area --

9          MR. BECK:  Yes.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  -- to the Sonoita substation,

11 you have provided us with a preferred route that's not

12 the existing route?

13          MR. BECK:  That is correct.

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Do you still prefer what you

15 originally described as your preferred route over the

16 existing route along that stretch?

17          MR. BECK:  If we were developing the application

18 today, we would probably show our preferred route from

19 Kantor down to Cañez as being the existing route.  There

20 are still some valid reasons to move from the existing

21 route over to the railroad in Segment 3.

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  From Cañez to Sonoita?

23          MR. BECK:  Correct.

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.

25          MR. DERSTINE:  So that we need to confirm and



UNS / Vail to Valencia 7/8/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 Case No. 144   Vol. IV

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

781

1 eliminate Mr. Beck as having to be the interpreter for

2 what Rio Rico Properties' position is, I do have a copy

3 of the e-mail, and what I would ask permission to do is

4 to mark that as UNS-26 and distribute it.  I had

5 Mr. Beck read it verbatim into the record, but I would

6 also ask to introduce it.  That's probably the best

7 information we have on what Rio Rico Properties'

8 position is with regard to the alignment in the area of

9 the bosque at the bottom of Segment 2.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Have you shown that to the other

11 parties?

12          MR. DERSTINE:  No, I have not.  And again, we

13 got this right over the noon hour.

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Why don't we -- why don't

15 you do that.  And let's see if there is an objection to

16 the admission of it.  I think also I did not rule on the

17 offer of UNS-23, which was the rebuttal testimony of

18 Mr. Beck.  Is there an objection to --

19          MR. MAGRUDER:  No objection.

20          CHMN. FOREMAN:  -- UNS-23?

21          MS. WEBB:  No objection.

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  UNS-23 then will be admitted.

23          (Exhibit No. UNS-23 was admitted into evidence.)

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  UNS-24 is what?

25          MR. DERSTINE:  UNS-24 simply is a revised pole



UNS / Vail to Valencia 7/8/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 Case No. 144   Vol. IV

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

782

1 condition marked for identification only.  It will be

2 discussed as part of the deliberations of the CEC.

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  UNS-25 is the letter from

4 Mr. Hays dated today.

5          And UNS-26, is there an objection to UNS-26?

6          MS. WEBB:  Can I make a comment?  Is that okay?

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  At the appropriate time, yes.

8 The question now is whether you have an objection to

9 UNS-26 which is the e-mail from --

10          MS. WEBB:  Just on admissibility for relevance,

11 right?

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I am sorry?

13          MS. WEBB:  That's just on relevance?  I don't

14 have to agree what is in the --

15          CHMN. FOREMAN:  This is just on whether the

16 exhibit should be admitted, right, not whether you agree

17 with what is in it.

18          MS. WEBB:  All right.  No objection.

19          CHMN. FOREMAN:  No objection, Mr. Magruder?

20          MR. MAGRUDER:  Actually, Chairman, I don't

21 believe this is the official position of the company.  I

22 think this is just an e-mail from an employee of the

23 company.

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  The question is whether

25 you have an objection to the admission.
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1          MR. MAGRUDER:  I have no objection with that

2 stipulation.

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Well, I am not sure that the

4 stipulation is going to be agreed to by the other side.

5 So I am going to assume that you do not object to the

6 admission of this?

7          MR. MAGRUDER:  I don't object.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  UNS-26 then will be

9 admitted also and you folks can argue about the meaning

10 of it later on.

11          (Exhibit No. UNS-26 was admitted into evidence.)

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Now, Counsel, you may proceed.

13          MR. DERSTINE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

14 BY MR. DERSTINE:

15    Q.    I want to just briefly touch on Ms. Webb's

16 proposal in her testimony that the best route in this

17 area would be along Pendleton Road as an alternative to

18 all the preferred route or the existing route.  Did the

19 company and its environmental consultants consider

20 Pendleton, putting the line along Pendleton Road?

21    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, we did.

22    Q.    And was putting the line on Pendleton Road

23 discussed with the public in any of the open houses?

24    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I know specifically in the

25 December newsletter the Pendleton alignment is
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1 identified.  I know we had it on the maps at the public

2 meetings.  We tried to solicit comments.  I believe we

3 got some negative comments, and we didn't really get

4 anything supporting the Pendleton alignment in that

5 process.

6    Q.    Okay.  Aside from the public's perspective on

7 Pendleton Road, did the company have an opinion or view

8 on whether it made sense to move the transmission line

9 along Pendleton Road?

10    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes.  When we looked at it, there

11 were multiple issues involved, not the least of which

12 was the engineering and construction aspect of building

13 along Pendleton, which has a lot of curves and would

14 require many turning structures, which would drive the

15 cost of the line up, result in additional poles.  We

16 wouldn't be able to use our typical large spans.  It

17 would put the line right in proximity on the line, and

18 that's a narrow right-of-way along Pendleton.

19    Q.    Mr. Beck, I want to now also just touch on

20 another topic that Ms. Webb raised in her testimony.

21 Her position, as I understand it, is that the

22 right-of-way on Segment 1A should be narrowed from the

23 100-foot right-of-way to a 50-foot right-of-way.  Did

24 you hear her testimony on that?

25    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, I did.
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1    Q.    Now, I just heard you testify in response to

2 questions from the Chairman and members of the Committee

3 that the right-of-way in Segment 2 could be narrow, and

4 certain things could be done in order to narrow the

5 right-of-way.  Am I correct in that, that the

6 right-of-way can be narrowed?

7    A.    BY MR. BECK:  That is correct.

8    Q.    Okay.  As you understand it are there reasons to

9 narrow the right-of-way for Segment 1A?

10    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I am not aware of any.  There is

11 no conflicting existing land uses that would cause us to

12 try and narrow the right-of-way in that area.

13    Q.    I mean it seems to me that if you can narrow the

14 right-of-way and you don't have to take up as much area

15 for or obtain as much legal rights to land that it might

16 make sense to narrow the right-of-way.  Why does the

17 company typically seek 100-foot right-of-way as opposed

18 to 50 feet or 75 feet?

19    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Because we have identified the

20 construction associated with a 100-foot right-of-way as

21 being the economical breakpoint for transmission line

22 construction.

23          I included on page 17 of my rebuttal testimony a

24 table that showed span length versus right-of-way width

25 versus height of structure.  In order to narrow the



UNS / Vail to Valencia 7/8/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 Case No. 144   Vol. IV

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

786

1 right-of-way you shorten your spans.  And you can also

2 end up with a little bit shorter structure by doing

3 that.  But kind of, as I said, the economical breakpoint

4 when you do an overall analysis of construction of

5 transmission is 800 to 900 foot spans, which lends

6 itself to a 100-foot right-of-way.

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Noland.

8          MEMBER NOLAND:  Mr. Beck, I am sorry, I don't

9 remember if you testified on this earlier.  What is the

10 current right-of-way in that Segment 1 existing line?

11          MR. BECK:  The existing line is 100-foot

12 right-of-way.

13          MEMBER NOLAND:  So, Mr. Beck, you are not going

14 to be obtaining any additional right-of-way in that

15 area, or are you going to go alongside and then retain

16 the current right-of-way and add 100 feet to it?  Could

17 you clarify that for me?

18          MR. BECK:  Yes, I could.  I believe that the

19 issue and question is from the Nogales tap north and

20 over to Vail or, in the alternative, the southerly route

21 and up to the north kind of along the eastern edge,

22 those two locations we do not have right-of-way today.

23 So I believe that was the part that Ms. Webb was talking

24 about, is to narrow the right-of-way width in those, on

25 the new portion of construction.
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1          MEMBER NOLAND:  Mr. Beck, are there current

2 lines in that northerly west to east segment?

3          MR. BECK:  Yes, there are.

4          MEMBER NOLAND:  And you would be how far from

5 that current right-of-way and other lines?

6          MR. BECK:  You know, maybe part of the issue

7 could be some semantics.  To the extent there is -- we

8 are saying we need 100-foot right-of-way.  Because they

9 are in that east/west portion, there is the adjacent

10 line and we can utilize some of that existing

11 right-of-way for common between the two lines.  From

12 that standpoint, we don't need 100 feet of additional

13 right-of-way necessarily.

14          MEMBER NOLAND:  So you might be actually doing

15 what Ms. Beck is asking for -- Ms. Webb.  I am sorry.  I

16 didn't marry you two during the lunch break.  Thank you,

17 Mr. Chairman.

18          It might actually end up being what Mrs. Webb

19 has pointed out to be optimal in her opinion, is that

20 correct.

21          MR. BECK:  That's correct, yes.

22          MEMBER NOLAND:  Now, I do want to be sure,

23 though, that I am clear on whether you are going to need

24 any additional right-of-way in the existing line for

25 replacement poles.
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1          MR. BECK:  From?

2          MEMBER NOLAND:  Running south, south to

3 southwest.

4          MR. BECK:  The Nogales tap area down to Kantor

5 there will be no additional right-of-way required.

6          MEMBER NOLAND:  Okay.  How about from Kantor

7 down?

8          MR. BECK:  There could be some very limited

9 instances where we need either temporary construction

10 easements or, if we really had to deviate from the

11 existing alignment, could adjust a right-of-way.  We

12 wouldn't go necessarily with wider than 100-foot

13 right-of-way, but when they shift the existing a little

14 bit...

15          MEMBER NOLAND:  And, Mr. Beck, that's why you

16 have the 500-foot corridor, correct?

17          MR. BECK:  Exactly.

18          MEMBER NOLAND:  Thank you.

19          MR. DERSTINE:  I don't have any further

20 questions of Mr. Beck.

21          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Mr. Magruder.

22          MR. MAGRUDER:  Mr. Chairman, I have some

23 questions.

24

25



UNS / Vail to Valencia 7/8/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 Case No. 144   Vol. IV

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

789

1                     CROSS-EXAMINATION

2 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

3    Q.    My questions and primary interest, most of what

4 I will be asking is from the region where the line

5 crosses Pendleton to the southern edge of the bosque --

6 I am not interested in the Sonoita -- and the questions

7 are only in that limited area.

8          In that particular area, would it be reasonable

9 that a condition be put into the CEC for you not to use

10 clear-cut but to use the five-year trim?  Would that be

11 reasonable from your company's view?

12    A.    BY MR. BECK:  That is a condition that could be

13 placed upon the line and we could live with that

14 condition.  We can make it work.  There would be an

15 additional cost for the five-year maintenance cycle that

16 would be required.

17    Q.    But no matter what the alignment in the three we

18 are talking about, that could be reasonable, could be

19 done?

20    A.    BY MR. BECK:  We could limit the amount of

21 vegetation clearing.  We can't eliminate it, but we can

22 limit it.

23    Q.    Okay.

24          MEMBER YOULE:  And that would be insofar as it

25 comports with the federal requirements on vegetation
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1 management?

2          MR. BECK:  Exactly.

3          MEMBER YOULE:  So there may be times when you

4 could not if those changed?

5          MR. BECK:  As those change over in the future,

6 they could come to a very strict it will be clear-cut.

7 At this point they do not have that requirement.

8          MEMBER YOULE:  Thank you.

9 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

10    Q.    In the area you showed us on the maps up at the

11 northern end, you had some clear-cut and then you

12 stopped and then you had the five-year trim.  Did that

13 meet the federal standards for five-year trim in that

14 portion?

15    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, it did.

16    Q.    Okay.  In that northern portion, are you

17 familiar with what those lots are for and who are the

18 potential customers?

19    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I guess the way I would identify

20 them is as high-end lots for high-end housing.

21    Q.    Yes, you are correct.  So did you find that out

22 when you talked to the people at Rio Rico Properties, or

23 did you just -- was that because they are all big lots?

24    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I think size of lots, just driving

25 through looking at the existing structures and some
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1 discussions.

2    Q.    Okay.  And so looking at the map -- and we can

3 see the map right here -- it doesn't look like any of

4 those lots are presently built upon, is that correct?

5    A.    BY MR. BECK:  On the far north end they are not.

6    Q.    Far north end?

7    A.    BY MR. BECK:  No.

8    Q.    And those are all high-end lots?

9    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I believe that's the intent, yes.

10    Q.    Okay.  Do you think it would hurt their property

11 value with the transmission line in the front or their

12 backyard?

13    A.    BY MR. BECK:  The research we have done we can't

14 find a definite correlation that in the long term there

15 is an impact to value of property or homes or

16 businesses.  In the short run there could be a very

17 small impact.

18    Q.    If you were a property owner like Rio Rico

19 Properties, do you think they would appreciate having

20 the line there or another alternative?

21    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Well, I believe that is in fact

22 why they have identified their preference is moving the

23 line over to the railroad alignment.

24    Q.    Okay.  Let me ask another question.  Are you

25 aware that there is a distribution line that runs the
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1 length of Pendleton in this particular area?

2    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I am aware there is a distribution

3 line.  I am not sure the exact extent of it, but it is

4 along Pendleton.

5    Q.    Do you realize that the homes are connected to

6 that line, the residents, and there are no residents

7 that are connected to the distribution line that runs

8 along the railroad?

9    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I was not aware of that, no.

10    Q.    Are you aware that the line that runs along the

11 railroad is an agricultural line for pumping, to give

12 power for pumps used by the agriculture company, which

13 is a very significant load because of the large drainage

14 fields used for the cattle?

15    A.    BY MR. BECK:  That's very possible.

16    Q.    Okay.  Is it possible you could someday check on

17 whether the customers on the east of the railroad

18 distribution line are all agricultural customers and

19 those along the Pendleton Road distribution line are the

20 residences?

21    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, that's easily --

22    Q.    And if that turns out to be true, and this is

23 what I understand is true but you obviously can verify

24 it much better than I can, then the distribution that we

25 are talking about is not used by the residents, it is
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1 used by the agricultural people, and it could maybe go

2 someplace else such as on wood poles in the middle of

3 the agricultural fields?

4          MR. DERSTINE:  Object to the form of the

5 question; calls for speculation by the witness.

6          MR. MAGRUDER:  Okay.

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Do you want me -- you have

8 withdrawn that question?

9          MR. MAGRUDER:  I will withdraw it.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.

11          MEMBER PALMER:  Mr. Chairman.

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Palmer.

13          MEMBER PALMER:  Mr. Magruder, I think you

14 reversed the geography.  You said east, but you meant to

15 say west of the track is agriculture.  East of the track

16 is population.

17          MR. MAGRUDER:  Yes, Mr. Palmer.

18          MEMBER PALMER:  You had that switched.

19          MR. MAGRUDER:  The population, people, are all

20 living on the east side of the track.

21          MEMBER PALMER:  East side.

22          MR. MAGRUDER:  Cows live on the west.  And

23 because of the water rights, there will never be people

24 living on the west.

25          MEMBER PALMER:  Correct.
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1          MR. MAGRUDER:  It is extremely important for

2 that community, or they won't live there, because they

3 have to have the cows.  They are critical.  Most people

4 don't have this constraint.

5          MEMBER MUNDELL:  Thank you for that testimony,

6 Mr. Magruder.

7 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

8    Q.    Okay, Mr. Beck, I am sorry.  You need to have an

9 access road, right, to build your poles?

10    A.    BY MR. BECK:  That is correct.

11    Q.    Are you aware that there is a railroad access

12 line that goes along the length of the railroad?

13    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes.

14    Q.    Are you aware that there is a farmer, I mean a

15 rancher access road that is used to carry cattle trucks

16 which are fairly heavy on the west of the railroad?

17    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I am aware that there is at least

18 a two-track road west of the railroad.

19    Q.    Okay.  And in addition to that you need another

20 road for your distribution line, is that correct?

21    A.    BY MR. BECK:  The existing distribution line

22 does have and requires access, yes.

23    Q.    And did you also look at the railroad and

24 discover that there are roads on both sides of the

25 railroad, too?
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1    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes.

2    Q.    So now we have four roads, is that correct?

3    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Apparently so.

4    Q.    In approximately a 200-foot easement, is that

5 correct?

6    A.    BY MR. BECK:  North of Cañez, that's true, yes.

7    Q.    So with -- and I am not going to count your

8 existing line and another north/south road.  Has your

9 company made any approaches to possibly work out an

10 arrangement with the rancher, with the railroad, or with

11 the railroad to reduce the number of roads that are

12 needed in such a small area?

13    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Well, if we were -- if we end up

14 with an alignment that is west of the railroad, we will

15 work with whoever the property owners are to try and

16 mitigate issues with roads.

17    Q.    Would it be reasonable for you to work with the

18 rancher or have joint use of the road?

19    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Absolutely.

20    Q.    How much, how often after construction does

21 heavy equipment have to visit these structures?

22    A.    BY MR. BECK:  We hope very seldom, if ever.

23    Q.    Is that once a year, once a decade?

24    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Probably on average once every

25 five years.
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1    Q.    Okay.  So and what would you do every five years

2 with your heavy equipment?

3    A.    BY MR. BECK:  It is not that we would do it

4 every five years, but just on average you may be out on

5 any section of line within a five-year period.

6 Typically what we would be doing is some type of

7 maintenance on insulators, replacing an insulator

8 damaged either by gunshot or conductors that get damaged

9 by gunshots.

10    Q.    To examine an insulator, is that just a bucket

11 truck?

12    A.    BY MR. BECK:  No.  Typically our field reviews

13 are done either on our helicopter inspections and/or a

14 ground field inspection, which is having someone driving

15 down the right-of-way in a vehicle and using a spotting

16 scope to look at insulators and other equipment.

17    Q.    Okay.  So your normal maintenance is to look at

18 the power lines, is that correct?

19    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Correct.

20    Q.    And you do that on foot?

21    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes.

22    Q.    And can you do it on horseback?

23    A.    BY MR. BECK:  It has been done on horseback in

24 the past, yes.

25    Q.    Okay.  So for once every five years is what we
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1 are talking about your access road, is that

2 approximately, for heavy duty equipment?

3    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Absent any major damage to the

4 line that requires more access, about average every five

5 years you may be.

6    Q.    So the access road is not a, other than the fact

7 that you need access, the ability -- the once every five

8 years doesn't sound too frequent to me.  Does it to you?

9 Strike that question.  Strike that question.

10          How many poles does TEP have in the floodplain

11 in Tucson?

12    A.    BY MR. BECK:  How many poles?

13    Q.    Transmission line poles.

14    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Transmission line.  Quite a few.

15    Q.    And how many does it have in the floodway in

16 Tucson?

17    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Quite a few.

18    Q.    And how many, and how many years have you worked

19 for Tucson Electric?

20    A.    BY MR. BECK:  30 years.

21    Q.    How many known transmission line poles have

22 failed in a floodplain or floodway in your experience in

23 the last 30 years?

24    A.    BY MR. BECK:  The actual number of structures I

25 don't know offhand, probably 30 to 40.  We have lost
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1 several 138kV lines.  We have lost 345kV lines based on

2 floodway damage.

3    Q.    And were they built to be floodproof, those

4 lines, or were they built with an older standard?

5    A.    BY MR. BECK:  They were built with an older

6 standard that was assumed to be floodproof at the time.

7    Q.    Are there standards now that you could build a

8 floodproof pole?

9    A.    BY MR. BECK:  To the extent we need to, we have

10 built in and can build in the floodway, or wash, or

11 river, whatever you want to call it.  And we do our best

12 to develop and engineer a foundation to withstand

13 flooding.  But our experience has been that you -- well,

14 you just can't fool mother nature, I guess.  And no

15 matter what we do there are times where our methods for

16 engineering and constructing have failed us.

17    Q.    Okay.  Looking at your Exhibit UNS-25, the first

18 map of Mr. Hays' e-mail this morning, how many poles are

19 circled in his area of concern that you have marked with

20 an arrow that says this is the areas delineated as a

21 problem by Santa Cruz county?

22    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Well, he has in particular

23 circled, at least on the one map, three structures fall

24 within his circle.  But I think his intent was just to

25 delineate the general area that he was concerned about.
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1 This was a preliminary layout of the structures, you

2 know.  You may be able to do some things to make it

3 better or worse, and this is only on the east side of

4 the railroad.

5    Q.    But this is three structures.  So if we increase

6 it to five or seven, would that be a reasonable number

7 just for this section of the map?

8    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Just for the section he circled,

9 yes.

10    Q.    Just for this one map.  I don't want to talk

11 about the second one.

12    A.    BY MR. BECK:  For that map if you say five or

13 seven for that particular segment, yes.

14    Q.    So you might have to build five to seven

15 concrete structures?

16    A.    BY MR. BECK:  No.  Those are absolutely prone to

17 being in the floodway.  But any one of these structures

18 built on the west side of the river would need to be

19 designed to that floodway standard.  They would all be

20 on concrete foundations, able to withstand scour to at

21 least the 30 foot depth that Mr. Hays indicated.  And in

22 fact, I really don't believe that 30 foot is the maximum

23 scour.  I think it would be much greater than that.

24    Q.    With respect to concrete foundations, does your

25 company normally build a lot of its poles on concrete
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1 foundation just as a matter of course?

2    A.    BY MR. BECK:  On our typical foundations --

3 well, our typical pole installation is with direct

4 embedment of steel poles.  And we only do concrete

5 foundations that are turning structures for the most

6 part.

7    Q.    Let's look at the second map, the second map,

8 the second map in the UNS Electric --

9    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Just to be sure, the second map

10 you are referring to is the one with no title block on

11 it?

12    Q.    No title on it, but it has a circle, arrow.

13    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Right.

14    Q.    That area is to the south of the bosque.  Do you

15 agree with that?

16    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes.

17    Q.    So then one of the two areas that Mr. Hays had a

18 problem with, you could put the poles to the east or put

19 them someplace else, is that correct?

20    A.    BY MR. BECK:  If that's what we were given as

21 the direction, yes, we could.

22    Q.    Okay.  Now, let's go back and look at Mr. Hays'

23 letter at the beginning.  In the first bullet it says

24 Section 3.7 exempts lines and poles requiring the

25 floodplain permit.  Do you read that?  Do you see that
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1 in the first bullet?

2    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I see his portion that says and

3 exempts the poles and lines but not the road.

4    Q.    Okay.  This is the once every five year road we

5 are talking about, is that correct?

6    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Well, keep in mind that on average

7 we may need to access the line once every five years,

8 but from a customer standpoint, if we can't access those

9 structures when there is a problem, it is a major

10 problem.  And that's not limited to every five years.

11 That's whenever we need to access it.

12    Q.    Does a bucket -- I call it a -- I don't know

13 what you call it, but a truck with a bucket so you lift

14 somebody up there, is that a heavy duty truck or just

15 a -- for these types of poles, how heavy would that

16 truck be in weight?

17    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Actual weight I don't know but

18 they are very heavy vehicles.

19    Q.    But they are not as heavy as some of the

20 construction equipment?

21    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I wouldn't necessarily say that.

22 It depends on what bucket truck is available to do the

23 work.  And for major transmission lines, the higher

24 voltage transmission lines, the bigger, larger bucket

25 trucks are used.
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1    Q.    Okay.  Let's go back to the ordinance from the

2 county at the back end of your testimony in Section 3.7,

3 and let's look on page 15 and in the ordinance 3.7,

4 subparagraph A.  I will -- I could read this or -- I

5 would just like to read it into the record, this part of

6 it:

7          Statutory exemptions.  In accordance with A.R.S.

8 48-360.9(H), unless expressly provided, this and any

9 regulation adopted pursuant to this article do not

10 affect -- and let's look at subparagraph 4 -- facilities

11 constructed or installed pursuant to a certificate of

12 environmental compatibility issued pursuant to Title 40,

13 Chapter 2, Article 6.2.

14          What is your interpretation, without giving a

15 legal interpretation, of that kind of an exemption?

16          MR. DERSTINE:  I am not sure this witness can

17 interpret that without drawing a legal conclusion from

18 it.

19          MR. MAGRUDER:  Okay.

20          MR. DERSTINE:  Object to the form.

21 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

22    Q.    Okay.  I will -- does that sort of imply to you

23 that there is a legal exemption that might apply to this

24 case if there is a CEC written?

25          MR. DERSTINE:  Same objection, calls for a legal
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1 conclusion from the witness.

2          MR. MAGRUDER:  Okay.

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Proceed.

4          MR. MAGRUDER:  Okay.  I will stop.

5 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

6    Q.    Okay.  And then under subsection B, back on the

7 point 7 on the next page at the top, it says that the

8 construction and erection of poles, towers, foundations,

9 support structures, guy wires, and the other facilities

10 related to both power transmission as constructed by any

11 utility whether the public service company of -- whether

12 a public service company of a political subdivision.

13          And what that basically says is that these

14 are -- the following shall not be prohibited and shall

15 not require a floodplain use permit.

16          Do you agree with that interpretation?

17          MR. DERSTINE:  I am going to object to the form;

18 calls for a legal conclusion.  I think the question is

19 also a legal but testimony from the examiner.

20          MR. MAGRUDER:  Okay.

21 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

22    Q.    Well, back to Mr. Hays' letter, it says you

23 would have to have, if you built a road with culverts,

24 you would need to have a floodplain use permit.  Does

25 that seem reasonable with respect to the first bullet?
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1    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I believe his first bullet says

2 that construction of any road will require a floodplain

3 use permit.

4    Q.    Okay.  Is that a big deal?

5    A.    BY MR. BECK:  It is only a big deal if the

6 county won't grant that permit --

7    Q.    Okay.

8    A.    BY MR. BECK:  -- wouldn't allow us to construct.

9    Q.    Now, the next paragraph goes into discussion on

10 the 500-year floodplain.  Ms. Webb has Exhibit EW-19 --

11          Is that K?

12          MS. WEBB:  Yes.

13 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

14    Q.    -- K that goes into standards for critical

15 facilities and critical services by the flood control

16 district and floodplain administration of Santa Cruz

17 County.  And it talks about critical facilities, public

18 power and public utility facilities such as power -- and

19 I will skip the ones that don't pertain -- that are

20 vital to maintaining or restoring normal services to

21 flooded areas before, during, and after a flood.

22          Using that definition, would you consider this

23 distribution line to be a critical facility?

24          MR. DERSTINE:  I am going to object to the form

25 of the question as calling for a legal conclusion.  I am
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1 also -- I am looking for it, but I am certain that the

2 witness does not have before him whatever Mr. Magruder

3 just read, so lack of foundation as well.

4          CHMN. FOREMAN:  It seems to me, Mr. Magruder,

5 that you are asking a series of questions of this

6 witness that have to do with his interpretation of

7 various legal rules.  And that seems to me to be an

8 unfruitful --

9          MR. MAGRUDER:  I can tell it is unfruitful.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  -- path to take.  So why don't

11 you try and focus in on the testimony that he has

12 provided here and see if you have any questions

13 concerning it.

14          MR. MAGRUDER:  Let me ask another floodplain

15 question.

16 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

17    Q.    One part of this project involves the Valencia

18 substation, is that correct?

19    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Correct.

20    Q.    Is the Valencia substation within the 100- or

21 500-year floodplain?

22    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I have not looked at that map

23 recently, so I am not sure.  I know it is at least

24 within the 100-year floodplain; I am not sure it is in

25 the 500.
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1    Q.    It is within the 100-year floodplain.  So you

2 agree it is within the 100-year floodplain, is that

3 correct?

4    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I believe the designations, the

5 delineation I saw some of the FEMA maps, it is within

6 the 100-year floodplain.

7    Q.    So if we lose the Valencia substation, is that

8 more critical than losing a transmission line north or

9 south of Cañez?

10    A.    BY MR. BECK:  The fact that the substation may

11 or may not be within any floodplain doesn't mean it is

12 any more prone to loss than the transmission line.  But

13 loss of the Valencia substation would have a major

14 impact.

15    Q.    And you think it would have more significant

16 impact if you lost Valencia substation than if you lost

17 a transmission line in this bosque area?

18    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, it would.

19    Q.    If we lost -- if we had an outage north of

20 Cañez, could power be generated for Valencia, Sonoita,

21 and Cañez using resources in Nogales?

22    A.    BY MR. BECK:  There are resources in Nogales

23 that can deliver up to about 65 megawatts of power, and

24 so to the extent that load is less than 65 megawatts, it

25 should be able to be served from Valencia.
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1    Q.    And the present peak is 75, is that correct,

2 from your earlier testimony?

3    A.    BY MR. BECK:  That is correct.

4    Q.    So that if we lost power north, if one of the

5 poles failed north of Cañez, the people south of it

6 would have power, is that correct?

7    A.    BY MR. BECK:  We would be able to restore power

8 to people south of that issue.

9    Q.    If there was a failure south of Cañez, could

10 power then continue then from the north?

11    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Down to Cañez, I guess.

12    Q.    So depending, in this particular area we are

13 talking about, if we lost power before Cañez, or an

14 outage north of Cañez or outage south of Cañez on this

15 new line, power could still be provided to customers?

16    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes.  There will be a period where

17 the power is out while the generators are turned on and

18 get up to speed and we get things switched back into

19 service, but yes, power can be served from Valencia.

20    Q.    And is that time limit less than 15 minutes in

21 Valencia?

22    A.    BY MR. BECK:  The time limit, I believe, for the

23 first turbine to be on line and synchronized is

24 15 minutes.

25    Q.    Okay.  Have you looked at Mr. -- actually this
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1 isn't Mr. Hays' letter.  Oh, it is Mr. Hays'.  I was

2 looking at his boss' name at the top, Mr. Altherr.

3          Mr. Hays' letter -- have you looked at Section

4 5.8 and seen what that said in the ordinance?  Because

5 it refers to it in the fourth bullet.

6    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I have not looked very recently,

7 but I have looked at it, yes.

8    Q.    Okay.  Very short.  Floodways located within

9 special -- I will read it to you just to get it in the

10 record.  It is only four lines.

11          Floodways located within areas of special flood

12 hazard established in Section 3.2 or areas designated as

13 floodways.  Since the floodways are extremely hazardous

14 areas due to the velocity of floodwaters that carry

15 debris, potential projectiles, and erosion potential, no

16 structures or fill of any type will be allowed to be

17 constructed or placed.

18          What would that have as an impact on putting

19 foundations in a floodway mean to you?

20          MR. DERSTINE:  Object to the form; calls for a

21 legal conclusion.

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I don't think that does.  You

23 can give your engineering response to that.

24          MR. MAGRUDER:  Engineering response.

25          CHMN. FOREMAN:  It is overruled.
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1          MR. BECK:  Based on that portion of the

2 document, no structures would be allowed within the

3 floodway, period.

4 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

5    Q.    Now, does this -- I realize you can't make a

6 legal conclusion, but some of the material we are

7 looking at, 3.7, would that mean there might be a reason

8 why that this ordinance might not pertain to the

9 foundation?

10          MR. DERSTINE:  Object to the form; calls for

11 speculation, legal conclusion.

12          MR. MAGRUDER:  Okay.  Let me go at it another

13 way.

14 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

15    Q.    Are you familiar with the Santa Cruz County if

16 you want a variance to the floodplain ordinance and the

17 process required?

18    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I am aware that you go in front of

19 the -- it ends up in front of the board of supervisors

20 to seek a variance.

21    Q.    And you realize that this is done in Santa Cruz

22 County with some degree of regularity?

23    A.    BY MR. BECK:  That's what I understand, yes.

24    Q.    I can't ask you about the track record because

25 you probably -- you don't have any idea what their track



UNS / Vail to Valencia 7/8/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 Case No. 144   Vol. IV

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

810

1 record on approving variances is, do you?

2    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I would guess, because you are

3 raising it, it is probably pretty high.

4    Q.    Yes, okay.  It is not hard.

5          Now, you also testified that the railroad

6 tracks, reading from Mr. Hays' letter, that it would

7 damage the riparian habitat.  What would damage the

8 riparian habitat from your viewpoint?

9          MR. DERSTINE:  Objection; calls for speculation.

10 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

11    Q.    Let me put it another way.  Would you put a road

12 in?  Would that damage the riparian habitat?

13    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I believe I already testified to

14 the fact that roadway construction and/or foundation

15 excavation are likely, as well as vegetation clearing,

16 are three sources of impact to the riparian area.

17    Q.    Have you read the version of the restoration and

18 mitigation plan that I proposed for the CEC which I will

19 not go into now?

20    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I have read many versions.  I am

21 not sure if I read the version.

22    Q.    Okay.  The last bullet, generally speaking, the

23 district sees that the existing alignment is the best

24 alternative from the standpoint of protecting the line

25 from flooding.
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1          How much damage does flooding do to the

2 transmission line?

3    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Just the fact that you put water

4 on a pole doesn't cause damage.  I think the intent of

5 his bullet point was that if you build in a floodplain

6 or floodway there is a lot of potential for damage from

7 flooding.  But the fact that you put water on a

8 structure doesn't cause damage to the structure.

9    Q.    Does the county ordinance define the word

10 floodproof?

11    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I am not aware if it does or

12 doesn't.

13    Q.    I would like to read you the definition and see

14 if you concur with the definition.  Floodproofing

15 means -- on page 7 of the ordinance.  Floodproofing

16 means any combination of structural or nonstructural

17 additions, changes, or adjustments to structures which

18 reduce or eliminate flood damage to real estate or

19 improved real property, water, or sanitary facilities,

20 structures, and their contents.

21          Would you agree that that would be a reasonable

22 definition for the word floodproofing?

23          MR. DERSTINE:  Object to the form of the

24 question.  I am not sure Mr. Beck is qualified to

25 determine whether that's a reasonable definition or not.
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1          MR. MAGRUDER:  I can't hear the objection.

2          CHMN. FOREMAN:  He is raising an objection --

3 well, let me ask you this.  Suppose he said yes, what

4 would it mean?

5          MR. MAGRUDER:  What I am saying, can he build a

6 structure that is floodproof.

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Why don't you ask him that

8 question.

9          MR. MAGRUDER:  Okay.

10 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

11    Q.    Mr. Beck can you build a structure that is

12 floodproof?

13          MR. DERSTINE:  I am going to object to the form.

14 I am not sure Mr. Beck -- I don't understand what that

15 means in terms of the context of this project.  If

16 Mr. Beck understands, he can answer.

17          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Objection is overruled.

18          You may answer.

19          MR. BECK:  This is a slippery slope.  There is

20 no guarantee that you can build a facility or a

21 structure that is floodproof and that will withstand any

22 potential and possible flooding.

23          Now, to the extent this definition says you try

24 your best, yes, we can try our best and we will do our

25 best.  If we were directed to put a structure within a
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1 floodway, we will design and engineer that structure to

2 the best of our ability, trying to take into

3 consideration every possibility we can think of that we

4 would have to counteract with the design.  But whether

5 that really means it is truly floodproof, I don't think

6 such a thing exists.

7 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

8    Q.    What about floodproof for a 100-year flood,

9 could you design something for that?

10    A.    BY MR. BECK:  As I stated, we can design to the

11 best of our ability in an attempt to meet whatever is

12 foreseen in an event, which by definition 100-year has

13 certain parameters associated with that.  So we can

14 design a structure to withstand the potential velocity

15 of flow, depth of flow.  We can try and anticipate what

16 tree or building or vehicle may get washed down the

17 river to hit that structure.  But in the end, will that

18 structure really absolutely withstand that impact or

19 that flooding issue remains to be seen.

20          So I think that is the whole issue here, is the

21 reliability aspect of this line and the fact that you

22 potentially put it in the floodway where you are

23 exposing yourself to potential problems that in my

24 opinion you can't 100 percent guarantee the structures

25 will not fail under a worst condition storm.
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1    Q.    And if a structure fails, the outage is about 15

2 minutes per customer, is that correct?

3    A.    BY MR. BECK:  The immediate outage to the

4 customers starts at 15 minutes.  15 minutes is to the

5 first turbine on line and running and operating and

6 synchronized.  So it could be a little bit longer to get

7 the second, third, and fourth turbine.

8          But say even given it is only 15 minutes.  The

9 customers would be out as long as we cannot get to and

10 replace a structure that is damaged.  In a worst case

11 scenario you could lose multiple structures, because

12 each one that fails puts more stresses on the next

13 structure.

14    Q.    But still one outage north or one outage south

15 of Cañez?

16    A.    BY MR. BECK:  It could be one outage north or

17 south, so the customers could be on turbines for an

18 extended period of time.  And assuming that, if it is a

19 storm condition, that the storm hasn't caused problems

20 with either gas delivery or fuel, oil deliveries or so

21 on, yes, you can serve for some amount of time with

22 those turbines.

23    Q.    Okay.  Let me look at your maps that you have

24 been given by various sources.  Do you realize that the

25 Cañez floodplain is in -- the Cañez substation is also
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1 in the 100-year floodplain?

2    A.    BY MR. BECK:  That is probably true.

3    Q.    And the Sonoita substation is also in the

4 100-year floodplain?

5    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes.

6    Q.    So we have two other or three other 100-year

7 floodplain problems besides a power line, is that

8 correct?

9    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Now, there is a very big

10 difference between floodplain issues associated with the

11 floodway as opposed to floodplain issues associated with

12 just the level of water.  And in a given substation we

13 put our equipment high enough that it is going to be out

14 of the 100-year, the 500-year flood level.  The water is

15 not going to reach the electrical equipment.  And as

16 long as you don't have high velocity flows that can wash

17 out structures and so on because it is in a floodplain

18 doesn't mean it is an issue.

19    Q.    Are the Cañez, Sonoita and Valencia substations

20 designed and presently capable of avoiding a flood in

21 100 years?

22    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I believe they are, yes, not --

23 let me take that back -- not avoiding the flood but --

24    Q.    Designed to withstand a flood?

25    A.    -- but withstanding flood conditions, yes.  We
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1 do not place our equipment down at ground level.  It is

2 elevated off the ground, which provides the headroom for

3 the water levels to rise up.

4          In fact, when some of the major flooding in the

5 midwest, pictures at least within the industry that

6 floated around showed isolated substations standing

7 above the water, customers still being served, and

8 access by rowboat to get out to do maintenance or

9 whatever switching on the equipment.  But the equipment

10 is elevated enough that it wasn't affected by the

11 floodwater itself.

12    Q.    Is the new L2500 turbine elevated in Nogales?

13    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, it is.

14    Q.    What about the older three turbines?

15    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I do not recall at what elevation

16 they sit.  They are elevated somewhat, but I don't know

17 how high.

18    Q.    I would like to show you a document.  I only

19 brought one copy, but I have copies that -- the cover I

20 can give to the Committee and to the other people.  I

21 have shown it to Mr. Gellman before we started.  And it

22 is channel change along the Rillito Creek, southern

23 Arizona, 1941 through '83.  And I would like to talk

24 about some pictures on the cover of that document.

25          And I would like to give the cover to the
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1 Committee as Magruder MM-21.

2          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So you are, you are what?

3          MR. MAGRUDER:  I am going to question him about

4 this document, about just the pictures in it.

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And what about the pictures in

6 that would be helpful to what we are doing here today?

7          MR. MAGRUDER:  The cover shows five transmission

8 lines inside a flood so severe that the bridge is washed

9 out.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And where did this flood take

11 place?

12          MR. MAGRUDER:  Tucson, Rialto Creek -- Rillito

13 Creek, excuse me.

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And, again, you believe that

15 this is important to our consideration here?

16          MR. MAGRUDER:  Well, these lines cut across the

17 creek right in the floodway and look like they pretty

18 obviously survived, but the bridge didn't.  I will just

19 pass the book around if you want to see it.

20          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Well, if you are going to show

21 it to the witness, you are going to have it marked and

22 give it to the -- no, you are going to have everything

23 that you show to the witness marked and given to the

24 court reporter.  So we went, we went by this problem

25 once before.  So are you --
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1          MR. MAGRUDER:  I have only done the cover.  I

2 will just talk about the cover.

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  That would be fine, so long as

4 you give a copy to the court reporter and we mark it as

5 your next exhibit, which is exhibit number?

6          MR. MAGRUDER:  21.  20 has been reserved for my

7 closing remark.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.

9          MR. MAGRUDER:  I have already given a copy of

10 that to the reporter and all parties and to the

11 Committee.

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Go ahead if you want to do that,

13 go ahead.

14          Is there any objection to the admission of

15 Magruder Exhibit 21?

16          MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.

17          CHMN. FOREMAN:  The objection is?

18          MR. DERSTINE:  Object to its relevance.  This is

19 the first I have seen it.  I understand Mr. Magruder

20 showed it to Mr. Gellman.  But it appears to be a cover,

21 a photocopy of a cover of some book relating to the

22 Rillito Creek system of southern Arizona, 1941 through

23 1983.  I don't know what relevance it has to this

24 proceeding.

25          Further, it is cumulative.  I think Mr. Beck has
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1 already testified that transmission structures can be

2 built within a floodway, within a floodplain, if

3 necessary.  So I am not sure the purpose or what this

4 would add to the proceeding.  So again, relevance, and

5 it is cumulative.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Well, let's talk about

7 disclosure first.  Mr. Magruder, you have not shown this

8 to --

9          MR. MAGRUDER:  I showed it to Mr. Gellman before

10 Mr. Derstine arrived this morning.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  This morning, okay.  So why wait

12 until this morning to disclose it?

13          MR. MAGRUDER:  Because after the last meeting I

14 went to the Arizona Geological Survey office in Tucson

15 and I found this book and it seemed relevant to the

16 proceeding.  It is only designed, Mr. Chairman, as an

17 example of structures that can survive a pretty severe

18 flood.  That's why I am introducing it.

19          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  I have told you that

20 this is one of the problems that comes when you don't

21 disclose things in advance, that people don't have an

22 opportunity to respond to it.

23          Because this is something that has been raised

24 before, and because it does not appear to be something

25 that is, let's say, I don't think that the applicant is
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1 going to be prejudiced in responding to this, I am going

2 to overrule the objection with regard to disclosure this

3 once.  Don't do this again.

4          MR. MAGRUDER:  Okay.

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And I am going to overrule the

6 other objections and allow you to proceed with this.

7          First of all, you are avowing to me that this is

8 something that you took from the Arizona Bureau of

9 Geology and Mineral Technology, Geological Survey

10 Research Branch?

11          MR. MAGRUDER:  That's correct.

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Based on your avowal I

13 will allow it.

14          (Exhibit No. MM-21 was admitted into evidence.)

15          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Mundell.

16          MEMBER MUNDELL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

17          Mr. Magruder, I think the Chairman was very

18 tolerant in his ruling.  I mean I agree with it, but in

19 the future, you know, the day you got this, you should

20 have sent a copy to the other side.  That's basically

21 what he is saying.  I mean the day you went -- you said

22 after the last hearing you went to some society you

23 said.  Then as soon as you decided you were going to

24 present it here at this proceeding, and you made a copy

25 for yourself, you should have sent it to the other side,
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1 okay, just for future reference.  Got it?

2          MR. MAGRUDER:  I got it.  I got it.

3          MEMBER MUNDELL:  Because she can't take down a

4 head nod.

5          MR. MAGRUDER:  I understand.

6          MEMBER MUNDELL:  Like I said, I thought the

7 Chairman was very fair to you in allowing it in.

8 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

9    Q.    Mr. Beck, can you see the picture of the power

10 lines?  Do you know where these are?

11    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Absolutely.  In fact, I spent a

12 lot of time on that wash after this flooding looking at

13 the damage to our structures.

14    Q.    And did any of those -- did you lose power on

15 any of those structures?  Were they still able to

16 transmit electricity after that flood?

17    A.    BY MR. BECK:  The -- no, they were not, because

18 the lines upstream, actually downstream from this

19 location actually went down into the water during the

20 flood.  This is one of the lines that we lost the 138kV

21 lines on.  In fact, during that flood that year, we came

22 very close to losing the whole city and blacking it out

23 because we lost multiple 138kV lines in the rivers.

24          In fact, on this picture, if you look at the

25 bottom right-hand corner, we almost lost our major 138kV
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1 substation, which is our northeast substation near Dodge

2 Road.  You can see that a major part of the property of

3 the substation was gone.  That was the fence line that

4 is hanging over the river.  The duct banks that serve

5 the distribution across the river were completely washed

6 out.  Cables were washed downstream.  That particular

7 year flooding was very bad for Tucson Electric Power.

8    Q.    But back to the transmission line structures,

9 they at least held in this case, is that correct, as

10 shown in this picture?

11    A.    BY MR. BECK:  This particular photograph shows

12 structures still standing, but as I indicated,

13 downstream from this, we lost three structures in the

14 Rillito River.  We also lost structures in the Santa

15 Cruz River at the same time, and Western Area Power lost

16 a bunch of their structures in the Santa Cruz River.  It

17 is amazing what this flooding, the water velocity,

18 pressure can do.  When a structure goes down, you don't

19 find portions of that structure.  They disappear.  They

20 get buried so deep.

21    Q.    Okay.  I was going to ask --

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Sorry, Mr. Magruder.  We have a

23 question from Member Eberhart.

24          MEMBER EBERHART:  Mr. Chair, Mr. Beck, you may

25 or may not know the answer to this question, but do you
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1 remember what the 1983 floods, what magnitude?  Was that

2 a 100-year flood or 500-year flood or do you remember

3 off the top of your head what that --

4          MR. BECK:  You know, it was one of I think of a

5 couple that were identified as 100-year floods that

6 occurred within a few years of each other.  So we had

7 several years where we had floods, and they were at

8 least 100-year floods.

9          What the final resolution by the, for example,

10 maybe the -- I don't know if it is the Bureau of Geology

11 or who, but what their determination was I don't recall,

12 whether it was 100 or 500, but at least 100-year.

13          MEMBER EBERHART:  Thank you.

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Mr. Magruder, at the beginning

15 of almost every trial techniques class in law school the

16 instructor stands up and says you need to know the

17 answer to the question before you ask it.  I wish I

18 could just bottle what has happened in the last 15

19 minutes.  I could sell it to law school instructors

20 across the country.

21          MR. MAGRUDER:  I understand.  You win some, lose

22 some.  I think I just lost one.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  If you want to move on, now is

24 the time.

25          MR. MAGRUDER:  I will move on.  And in fact, I
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1 can't find anything else to ask questions on.  So

2 that -- what did I --

3 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

4    Q.    How many times have you met with Rio Rico

5 Properties in person?

6    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Personally I have been involved

7 in, I believe, the one meeting in early or middle June.

8    Q.    One meeting, okay.  Did you discuss with them

9 the cost of the easement that Rio Rico Properties now

10 has with UNS Electric?

11    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Well, there had been some

12 discussion early on about possibly swapping existing

13 right-of-way for the right-of-way adjacent to the

14 railroad.  In recent discussions it became clear that

15 there is expectation there will be a cash contribution

16 as part of that swap from UNS Electric to Rio Rico

17 Properties.

18    Q.    Have you --

19    A.    BY MR. BECK:  They are willing to sell us the

20 property in some fashion.

21    Q.    Have you looked over some of the right-of-way

22 easements and the contracts that have been issued

23 previously by Rio Rico to Citizens or to your company to

24 see what the value and the costs were?

25    A.    Not specifically Rio Rico Properties, no.
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1    Q.    When I introduce my final plea, you will see in

2 there how five references, each one of them, is $10.

3 Would that be a reasonable amount of money for a utility

4 easement?

5    A.    BY MR. BECK:  It all depends on the

6 circumstances at the time of the negotiation and what

7 else was involved in the negotiation.

8    Q.    Okay.  But $10 might be a concluding price for

9 some easements?

10    A.    There are some cases where probably a dollar

11 changed hands just for the dollar, the legal

12 requirement.

13          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Actually, Mr. Magruder, you may

14 not be doing that unless those documents to which you

15 refer are in evidence.  Are they?

16          MR. MAGRUDER:  I used them as a reference only

17 in my plea.  And I gave the page number and the -- they

18 are the documents from the records in the county office,

19 and it is in a footnote.

20          CHMN. FOREMAN:  We will cross that tomorrow.  Do

21 you have any other questions this afternoon?

22          MR. MAGRUDER:  That completes my questions.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Noland.

24          MEMBER NOLAND:  Thank you.

25          And thank you, Mr. Beck.  We kind of glossed
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1 over, I think, one important issue in the letter of

2 July 8th from Mr. Hays.  And that is, starting in the

3 second sentence on the second page, it is the opinion of

4 the district that placing the line to the west of the

5 railroad runs the risk in certain sections of increasing

6 the potential for the Santa Cruz River channel to

7 migrate and possibly damage the railroad or the power

8 line.

9          Different from just withstanding the 100-year

10 flood and being in the floodplain or the channel or the

11 floodway is the possibility of the potential for eroding

12 the railroad area further so that the floodways might go

13 onto the adjacent properties and reach the railroad.  Is

14 that your understanding?  Did you discuss that with

15 Mr. Hays at your meeting?

16          MR. BECK:  Well, we had discussed the fact that

17 by removing the riparian, some of the vegetation, that

18 it would increase the erosion potential and the ability

19 of the stream channel to migrate and, in fact, migrate

20 towards the railroad.  As we point out here, it could

21 also have issues with the power line.

22          But his point was that it could take out the

23 railroad, and to the extent it removes that barrier,

24 then it could go beyond that.  And he did in fact, as I

25 mentioned, show some aerial photos of breaches of the
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1 railroad in previous flooding conditions where the water

2 had gone beyond the railroad track.  And in those it

3 hadn't gone way beyond, but it had reached the prism of

4 the railroad from that.

5          MEMBER NOLAND:  And has it been your experience

6 along Rillito where you lost lines in other cases that

7 it is not just the damage done to the structure, but

8 sometimes by the diversion of the water or other items

9 coming down the floodway, that causes damage to other

10 portions of the floodway or the channel?

11          MR. BECK:  Absolutely.  What we found,

12 especially where we had some lattice structures in the

13 wash, the river, that the lattice work itself where, if

14 it was below the water level, tended to be a net or

15 capture debris.  So branches, trees, things coming down

16 the wash would get tangled up onto that steel structure

17 and then start building kind of like a beaver dam

18 effectively.  And to an extent, that diverted water off

19 to the sides and expanded or caused the wash to change

20 course.

21          MEMBER NOLAND:  And I seem to remember, I don't

22 know if you would be aware, that there was also a

23 vehicle that became lodged on a pole in the Rillito for

24 a period of time around that bend just south and west of

25 Dodge Avenue that also may have created some problems
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1 and diverted some of the water over to the banks of the

2 channel.

3          MR. BECK:  That is correct.  In fact, I have

4 some good pictures of that.

5          MEMBER NOLAND: Then my memory serves me well.

6 Thank you.

7          MR. BECK:  Yes.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Let's get redirect out of the

9 way and then we will finish up with Committee questions.

10 Any redirect?

11          MR. DERSTINE:  No.

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.

13          MR. DERSTINE:  I think Ms. Webb --

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Oh, I am sorry, Ms. Webb.

15          MS. WEBB:  Well, I think I have more than 15

16 minutes' worth.  How long are we going to go tonight?

17          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I was hoping to finish testimony

18 this evening.

19          MS. WEBB:  Okay.  I can go pretty fast, I think,

20 as long as the court reporter directs me on how fast I

21 am talking.  I think it was a volume problem today,

22 though.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Let's see what we can do.

24          MS. WEBB:  Okay.  If we can go ahead and start

25 with the map that's up on the board with the green and
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1 yellow lines and the pole placement.

2

3                    CROSS-EXAMINATION

4 BY MS. WEBB:

5    Q.    Can you tell me, I requested that map in color

6 but I didn't receive it, did you send that yesterday,

7 Mr. Beck?

8    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I personally did not send it

9 yesterday.

10    Q.    Was this sent?

11          MR. GELLMAN:  Mr. Chairman, can I briefly

12 address this?  We knew Mrs. Webb was on her way up to

13 the hotel yesterday, so we tried to fax a copy to the

14 hotel.  I don't recall, quite frankly, whether that was

15 in color or not.  We also did e-mail Ms. Webb a color

16 copy of the pole placement map late yesterday afternoon.

17 That's what I can avow to this Committee.

18          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.

19          MS. WEBB:  I have -- I didn't want to pay 12.75

20 to get internet so I have not seen it.  I just wondered,

21 I was trying to understand whether or not this had been

22 sent.

23          MEMBER MUNDELL:  Mr. Chairman.

24          The same point, Mr. Gellman, the same point that

25 I told Mr. Magruder, at what point did you realize you
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1 were going to be utilizing this color document?  And the

2 same thing that I told Mr. Magruder, as soon as you made

3 that decision, you know, you should get it to the other

4 side and to the other parties here.  I mean what is good

5 for the goose is good for the gander.

6          MR. GELLMAN:  In response to Member Mundell, as

7 soon as I received a copy of the pole placement map I

8 disclosed it.  We got it yesterday.  I don't know when

9 precisely Ms. Webb requested it.  It might have been a

10 couple days ago.  I don't have -- I don't remember

11 exactly when she requested it, but as soon as I received

12 it, I disclosed it, same day.

13          MS. WEBB:  Okay.  I probably, I understand that

14 the Chairman --

15 BY MS. WEBB:

16    Q.    Mr. Beck, is this the map that was used when you

17 visited Mr. Hays on June 10th?

18    A.    BY MR. BECK:  This is a portion of that map.  As

19 I had stated, this is a Xerox of a portion of the larger

20 map.  It was a 24-by-36 map.

21    Q.    Is the black and white copy that I was able to

22 get, this, the full portion of that smaller portion?

23    A.    BY MR. BECK:  If it shows the full title block,

24 then that should be the full map.

25    Q.    My Exhibit E Webb C, no, J --
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1          Can I walk around the table?

2          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Sure.  Exhibit 23 C?

3          MS. WEBB:  That's 19.  Maybe it is 23.

4          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I think it is this one over

5 here.

6          MS. WEBB:  Just excuse the flip-flops.  I am

7 sorry.

8          It is 19 L.

9          CHMN. FOREMAN:  19 L?

10          MS. WEBB:  Can I show it?

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Yes.

12          MR. BECK:  That does appear to be the map that

13 was used with Mr. Hays.

14 BY MS. WEBB:

15    Q.    I put my own purple highlighter on it.  But I

16 had specific questions related to your visit at the

17 office.  When you visited with Mr. John Hays, did he say

18 to you that the two sections of railroad track were

19 going to wash out the next time there was a big flood?

20    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I don't recall him saying that,

21 no.

22    Q.    Do you recall him saying something similar to

23 those words?

24    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Well, he said that there has been

25 instances in the past where the railroad track has been
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1 washed out, and there was potential for future.

2    Q.    Okay.  In your opinion as an Arizona registered

3 civil engineer, if those two sections of track were to

4 wash out in the next flood, how would that affect the

5 transmission lines on the east side of the track?

6    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Well, if there is a flood of

7 significant magnitude that we are aware of, we will be

8 out patrolling and watching the line.  And to the extent

9 if we see that the river is approaching the railroad,

10 the fact that the railroad is there gives us the time to

11 react and take preventative measures.

12    Q.    I don't know.  Often people get confused when I

13 talk.  What I was asking was if those two portions of

14 the railroad track are taken out during a storm and the

15 floodwater rushes over to that side of the track, what

16 impact would that water have on the distribution and

17 transmission lines on that side of the track in the

18 floodway, or in the floodplain, excuse me?

19          MR. DERSTINE:  I am going to object; calls for

20 speculation.

21          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Overruled.

22          You may answer.

23          MR. BECK:  I can't answer relative to the

24 distribution because I don't know what the depth is of

25 the poles and so on.  It may have some impact on those.
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1          The transmission line, it would have very little

2 impact, if any, given the scenario where the floodwaters

3 breach the railroad track and go to the other side and

4 it is just in the floodplain.  If the channel itself

5 completely detours and washes through a structure, then

6 there is some potential issues.

7 BY MS. WEBB:

8    Q.    How close would you say the channel is on the

9 northern portion to the railroad tracks in that section

10 where the yellow and purple is sort of near the red?  Or

11 it is the portion, I believe, circled by Mr. Hays.

12          MR. BECK:  Clark, could you actually zoom in and

13 maybe get a rough estimate of the distance.

14          That's to the outside edge of the right-of-way

15 as to opposed to the railroad track.  I believe that was

16 your question, to the railroad?

17 BY MS. WEBB:

18    Q.    Well, if the channel is 220 feet or 200 feet

19 from the railroad tracks and in the next flood or future

20 floods, as Mr. Hays spoke about, that area of the track

21 were to come apart, or an engineering word, and the

22 water were to go to that side, how would that affect the

23 transmission line given that distance of the channel?

24    A.    BY MR. BECK:  It would take a major breach of a

25 long segment of the railroad allowing the channel to
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1 actually redirect itself across the railroad bed before

2 it would really have any impact on the transmission

3 line.

4    Q.    Did Mr. Hays talk to you about the water that

5 comes down from the hills which would be, I believe,

6 east to west and pools along the railroad tracks?

7    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, he did.  That's part of the

8 reason that the east side does fall on the floodplain.

9    Q.    Okay.  So if the railroad tracks were to

10 collapse in a flood and then the pooling would occur

11 during rain, what impact would that have on the

12 transmission lines in the floodway?

13    A.    BY MR. BECK:  The pooling of the water really

14 wouldn't be an issue for the transmission line.  It is

15 only when there is flow around the foundations and can

16 wash them out that would cause a problem.

17    Q.    Would water coming downhill towards the berm

18 have any impact?

19    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Minor impact.  It could have some

20 impact, a little bit of erosion, but the volume of water

21 typically and the speed and the depth of flow isn't that

22 great.  And we would avoid any of the washes, so we

23 typically span those.  So we are not going to be sitting

24 in the bottom of those drainage ditches.

25    Q.    Have you seen my Exhibit 19 J?
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1    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I believe I have seen it, but I

2 don't recall which one it is.

3          MS. WEBB:  Mr. Gellman, it was in the packet

4 offered in the PowerPoint I e-mailed to you.

5          MR. BECK:  Yes, I have seen it.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Proceed.

7 BY MS. WEBB:

8    Q.    Can you identify what is on the picture on the

9 right just under the arrow where it says H structure?

10    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I am not sure I am on the same

11 page as you.  H structure?

12    Q.    It is EW-19 J.

13    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I am sorry, J.  It looks like the

14 remnants of a tree.

15    Q.    More specifically does it look like it could be

16 a pile of debris?

17    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Well, to me it looks like it may

18 have been a tree that's collapsed or fallen down and

19 crumbled around the base of the tree.  It is debris.

20    Q.    Can you identify the round thing a little bit to

21 the left of the picture?

22    A.    BY MR. BECK:  That's I believe you are talking

23 about the culvert.

24    Q.    Correct.  Do you see other items around the

25 culvert?
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1    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I see some bushes, maybe some

2 grasses.

3    Q.    Do you see any sticks?

4    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, there are some sticks there.

5    Q.    Could all of that stuff possibly come from

6 drainage coming down from the hills towards the railroad

7 tracks?

8    A.    It is hard to say.

9          MR. DERSTINE:  Objection; calls for speculation.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Sustained.

11          MS. WEBB:  Okay.  All right.

12 BY MS. WEBB:

13    Q.    The two pictures to the left, can you see the

14 sign where there is a stop sign at the railroad tracks?

15    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I believe so.  I can see a

16 signpost there, yes.

17    Q.    Have you been to the Palo Parado crossing?

18    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, I have.

19    Q.    Would you agree that's the Palo Parado crossing?

20    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Generally looks like it, yes.

21    Q.    Would you agree with these two different

22 perspectives, so that I wouldn't say there is prejudice

23 that the left side or the east side looks lower than the

24 right side?

25    A.    BY MR. BECK:  In the upper picture the left side
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1 appears to be lower than the right side.  In the bottom

2 picture it is hard to tell.

3    Q.    Okay.  Can you see EW-19 K?  Which reminds me,

4 the other one that Mr. Magruder said was EW-19 K, it was

5 EW-19 D.  His printing must have been cut off.

6          Do you see EW-19 K?

7    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, I do.

8    Q.    Do you see the existing transmission H-frame

9 next to a pole?

10    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Beyond the pole, yes, I can see

11 the H-frame in the left-hand picture.

12    Q.    Would you agree that combining those two would

13 reduce visual blight?

14    A.    BY MR. BECK:  You are speaking to the H-frame

15 structure plus the double circuit that is along the

16 roadway?

17    Q.    Correct.

18          MR. DERSTINE:  Object to the form.  It is

19 argumentative.

20          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Well, it calls for an aesthetic

21 conclusion and I am not sure that that's something, I

22 can't say Mr. Beck is unqualified to give an aesthetic

23 opinion, but the problem is that we all are.  And it is

24 just a matter of personal.

25          MS. WEBB:  I will withdraw the question.
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1          CHMN. FOREMAN:  You are free to argue that you

2 think it looks --

3          MS. WEBB:  I think it looks ugly.  Sorry.

4          CHMN. FOREMAN:  During your argument you can

5 make that argument.

6          MS. WEBB:  All right.

7 BY MS. WEBB:

8    Q.    Let's go back to EW-19 H.  Do you see that

9 picture?

10    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I -- there are several pictures,

11 yes.

12    Q.    Okay.  You have pretty color.

13          Would you say that there are guide wires on the

14 pole to the right?

15    A.    On the pole to the right, that appears to be a

16 guy wire.

17    Q.    Or whatever.  I mean, sorry, I thought they were

18 called guide wire.  So those are called guy wires?

19    A.    BY MR. BECK:  G-u-y.

20    Q.    Thank you.

21    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes.

22    Q.    Thank you for correcting me.  I thought because

23 they guided the poles.  That is not correct?  Okay.

24          Would you agree that there are two of them, one

25 is to the right and one to the left?



UNS / Vail to Valencia 7/8/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 Case No. 144   Vol. IV

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

839

1    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I definitely can see one.  I can't

2 really make out a second one.

3    Q.    Can you read the sign to the left of the pole?

4    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Do not enter when flooded.

5    Q.    Can you read the sign to the left of that?

6    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Flash flood area.

7    Q.    And can you see the pole above that one?

8    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes.

9    Q.    And what is that pole imbedded in?

10    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Looks like it is concrete

11 backfill.

12    Q.    Were there any special precautions you took

13 along that stretch of Wilmot Road for the new 1988

14 poles, or that you are aware of, or that Citizens

15 Electric took along that flash flood area?

16    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I would hope that all those poles

17 were placed on ridges as opposed to the bottom of the

18 cross washes that are flooded areas.

19    Q.    Are you aware that that seven-mile stretch, the

20 entire stretch is considered a flash flood area?

21    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Generally a lot of the area around

22 Tucson and southern Arizona is a flash flood area for

23 each and every wash that you cross, that's correct.

24    Q.    Now, are you aware that almost the entire

25 stretch that Wilmot Road is considered a sheet flooding
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1 area?

2    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I wasn't personally aware of that.

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  How much longer do you

4 anticipate your examination will last?

5          MS. WEBB:  Oh, gosh.  Maybe we can finish the

6 flooding part.  I have some BLM stuff.  How about 15

7 minutes?

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Please proceed.

9          MS. WEBB:  This is about encroachment.  I will

10 move to BLM.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.

12 BY MS. WEBB

13    Q.    In Exhibit EW-19 G do you see encroachment on

14 the new 1988 line?

15    A.    BY MR. BECK:  It is very difficult to tell from

16 these pictures whether there are encroachments.  There

17 likely are encroachments, though.

18    Q.    Does your company have a policy in effect, your

19 company UNS Electric, in this case have a policy in

20 effect now for encroachment in your right-of-ways?

21    A.    BY MR. BECK:  That's part of our annual

22 inspection cycle, is to look for any potential

23 encroachments, identify them, and at least alert the

24 land department to the issues.

25    Q.    Do you have a written policy from your company?
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1    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I am not aware if there is an

2 actual written policy written, no.

3    Q.    All right.  This one is related to access and

4 construction roads, Exhibit 19 F.  Is there a reason why

5 there needs to be three access or construction roads

6 along after construction is done?

7    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Well, I have no answer as to why

8 there are three roads.  Typically we would only require

9 a single access road for our line construction.  Now, if

10 there are other lines in the area, there could be other

11 roads and other companies that have access.

12    Q.    So would you say that nowadays, with the new

13 environmental regulations, do you have a different way

14 of assuring that there are no longer three access or

15 construction roads left open to the public?

16    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Well, again, we will use a single

17 access road.  We will keep our contractors on that road,

18 and then for maintenance purposes we will identify to

19 our construction personnel where they should be

20 accessing the line.  A lot of these areas are open to

21 hunting and so on, and people with hunting licenses are

22 able to go out and go across country.  So it is hard to

23 control wildcats.

24    Q.    Do you believe hunting is allowed in this

25 proximity to the Wilmot prison?
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1    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I don't know what the limits are

2 on state land around the prison.

3    Q.    Okay.  My last question in regard to the

4 H-frames.  Okay?  We will move on to BLM.

5          Are you aware that a categorical exclusion

6 cannot be used if there are cumulative impacts on a

7 project?

8    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I am aware that just in general

9 what the NEPA handbook, that they have identified

10 categorical exclusion as a possibility where you are

11 dealing with right-of-way for an existing use that

12 remains with that same existing use.

13    Q.    Is there an existing right-of-way from where the

14 line in the preferred alignment would interconnect at

15 Wilmot and Old Vail connection down to the existing line

16 from -- down to Kantor or just south of the Wilmot

17 substation?

18    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Well, I believe if you are

19 speaking specifically to the BLM issue, as I have

20 testified, there is a question in BLM's mind as to the

21 piece of right-of-way between the Nogales tap and the

22 existing line that goes down to Kantor.  They think that

23 there is no valid right-of-way.  UNS does have a lease

24 document from the state.  And as I stated, we are

25 working with BLM trying to determine whether that state
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1 lease preceded transfer back to BLM or in fact if we

2 have been incorrectly paying the state for all these

3 years for a lease that they gave us.

4    Q.    But that wasn't my question.  My question was

5 where the new line would interconnect into Wilmot from

6 Old Vail connection in the preferred alignment and you

7 would continue south to interconnect to your existing

8 line through BLM land, do you have a right-of-way of any

9 sort?

10    A.    BY MR. BECK:  On the state land.

11    Q.    In the portion that is up in the air about

12 whether or not it is BLM land on the 36 acres.

13    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Our position is yes, we do have.

14    Q.    The position whether the portion where there is

15 no existing line north of the Nogales tap you have a

16 right-of-way?

17    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I don't believe north of the

18 Nogales tap is BLM land.

19    Q.    Do you recall the picture that Clark had up on

20 the screen, the yellow rectangle?

21    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes.

22          No, okay, on north of that point we do not have

23 a right-of-way.

24    Q.    So to ask my question back, are you aware that

25 the categorical exclusion cannot be considered if there
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1 are cumulative impacts associated with the project?

2    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I believe that is a determination

3 for the NEPA coordinator project manager at BLM to make.

4 And as they have indicated to us, once we make

5 application for whatever right-of-way is required, they

6 will make a determination of what is required from a

7 NEPA standpoint.

8          And to the extent one of the things that we

9 would file with that application is probably the whole

10 application document and all the environmental work done

11 for the application, they will then make a determination

12 what they can do.  And I don't know that at this point

13 anyone can say whether it can be categorical exclusions

14 or not.  I told you one thing.

15    Q.    So is your answer no, that you are not aware

16 that a categorical exclusion cannot be considered if

17 there are cumulative impacts?

18    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I am not qualified to answer

19 questions of categorical exclusions for BLM.

20    Q.    Okay.  Are you aware that WAPA is the one that

21 applied for the NEPA process for the switch that

22 UNS Electric currently uses at the Nogales substation?

23    A.    BY MR. BECK:  That would make sense to me

24 because that was their project.

25    Q.    Okay.   Does WAPA pay State Land Department for
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1 that portion on BLM land?

2    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I have no idea what WAPA does or

3 what their rights are.

4    Q.    So if WAPA is the one that applied for the

5 switch that UNS Electric uses, would you assume that

6 somebody thinks that that piece of land is owned by BLM?

7          MR. DERSTINE:  Objection; calls for speculation.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Sustained.

9          MS. WEBB:  Okay, withdraw the question.

10 BY MS. WEBB:

11    Q.    Do you currently have more than four steel

12 lattice structures in the Santa Cruz River?

13    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, we do.

14    Q.    Are they in use?

15    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, they are.

16    Q.    And what voltage are they?

17    A.    BY MR. BECK:  138kV.

18    Q.    Did you rebuild those after the 1983 flood?

19    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Those that were rebuilt were built

20 with steel monopoles.

21    Q.    Okay.  So you can build to a standard to

22 withstand a 100-year flood?

23    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I believe as I testified we can

24 make our best attempt to design and engineer a structure

25 that will withstand as much flooding as we think we
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1 possibly can design.  But it is not a guarantee it will

2 withstand any given flood.

3    Q.    But you can build to the regulations?

4    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes.

5    Q.    Okay.  This speaks to Member Noland's

6 observation about the right-of-way width in the northern

7 portion.  What is the right-of-way you will apply to for

8 state land for the northern portion in Segment 1A then,

9 so that I am clear on the amount of right-of-way that

10 you will be applying for given that you have other

11 right-of-way associated with that area?

12    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I am not prepared to answer that

13 right now.  We will apply for the right-of-way required

14 to accommodate the line based on where the line gets

15 sited.  And to the extent we have the ability to utilize

16 overlapping right-of-way, we will.  We will not buy

17 100-foot right-of-way just for the sake of having an

18 adjacent 100-foot right-of-way.

19    Q.    Okay.  I believe you just testified that you

20 have had 30 or 40 pole failures in a floodway or a

21 floodplain.  How many H-frames have you had fail in the

22 line from -- or on this UNS line?

23    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Over what period?

24    Q.    What was in Mr. Magruder's data request?

25    A.    BY MR. BECK:  We have had a few.  I don't know
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1 the exact number.

2    Q.    Do you remember what the pole failures were due

3 to?

4    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Typically it is damage to the pole

5 either during a storm, they blow over, it could have

6 been struck by something.

7    Q.    Do you know how many?

8    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I do not recall.

9    Q.    Okay.  You mentioned that there was a

10 possibility of moving the transmission line to the west

11 side at Wilmot Road, which would circumvent the BLM land

12 if it turns out to be BLM land.  Have you spoken with

13 Priscilla Storm of Diamond Ventures in your public

14 comment in 2007 in the application about this

15 alternative?

16    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I believe my reference was to the

17 fact that the west of Wilmot Road alignment is a

18 possibility that could enter into any decision by BLM as

19 to their action that is required.

20    Q.    I would like to read for the record what

21 Ms. Storm wrote about that particular alignment if

22 that's possible.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  You say you are reading?  I am

24 sorry.

25          MS. WEBB:  I was testifying.  That would be
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1 testimony if I asked a question?

2          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Maybe.  Where are you reading

3 from?

4          MS. WEBB:  This is out of the application.  It

5 was a meeting that they had with the Verano community

6 that is directly west of the portion that doesn't

7 currently have a transmission line.  And Mr. Beck just

8 referenced that they --

9          CHMN. FOREMAN:  It is in the application?

10          MS. WEBB:  Correct.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  The appendix number, what

12 appendix?

13          MS. WEBB:  Oh, I am sorry.  It is, it is, I

14 think it is in the Js, in the -- it is kind of hard to

15 sometimes figure this.  It is in the J-4 open house

16 materials and exhibits.  Wait, maybe it is not there.

17 Here, hold on.

18          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Yes, the answer to

19 your question -- do you have a question you are going to

20 ask?

21          MS. WEBB:  Yes.

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  You may read a brief

23 portion of it and ask your question.

24          MS. WEBB:  It is Exhibit J-8, public responses.

25          Thank you for encouraging TEP to meet with us
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1 and share the proposed alignment for the power line

2 south of our Sycamore Park subdivision.  Of specific

3 concern is the fact that the proposed preferred

4 alignment also runs south along Wilmot Road adjacent to

5 Section 12 of our Verano master planned community.  It

6 is imperative that this easement be set back a

7 sufficient distance east of the ultimate Wilmot Road

8 configuration.

9          And that was written August 6, 2007.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  What is your question?

11 BY MS. WEBB:

12    Q.    My question is:  Have you discussed this

13 potential option to move the alignment to the west side

14 of Wilmot Road with Ms. Storm?

15    A.    BY MR. BECK:  No, because at this point it is

16 not our intent to move it to the west side of Wilmot

17 Road.  But when the BLM takes into consideration what

18 there actually would be on an application, one of their

19 considerations is whether or not there are options

20 available that would preclude the need for BLM action.

21    Q.    Now, when the ACC, or when the Committee and

22 then the Commission grants your CEC, isn't that your

23 alternative other than the no action alternative?

24    A.    BY MR. BECK:  That would be an alternative that

25 could be considered by BLM when they make their decision
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1 on what NEPA action to take.

2    Q.    But what I am asking, wouldn't the alternative

3 chosen by the Committee be the alternative that you

4 would have to present to the BLM as well as the no

5 action alternative?

6    A.    BY MR. BECK:  If the Committee grants a 500-foot

7 corridor, we have the ability to work anywhere within

8 the 500-foot corridor.  To the extent there is a

9 specific condition or restriction or wording in the CEC

10 that says we will be on the east side of Wilmot, then

11 that is the only option we would have and that's what we

12 would present.

13    Q.    Are you aware I wrote that into my CEC?

14    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I don't dispute that you probably

15 did.

16    Q.    Okay.  See if there is any more questions.

17          In your agency outreach letters are you aware

18 that the company wrote a letter to Mr. Huckelberry,

19 Mr. Valadez, the Supervisor of District 2, and Mr. Ray

20 Carroll of District 4.

21    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes.

22    Q.    Do they have any regulatory authority over this

23 transmission line by statute?

24    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Probably not regulatory, but

25 that's really a legal question.
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1    Q.    Okay.  If the alternative, preferred alternative

2 is chosen, will BLM, after the legal stuff is done, have

3 regulatory authority over the preferred alignment?

4          MR. DERSTINE:  I missed that.  I will have to

5 object; calls for a legal conclusion.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Sustained.

7 BY MS. WEBB:

8    Q.    When doing scoping do you often send letters out

9 to parties that might have some sort of interest in the

10 case?

11    A.    BY MR. BECK:  To the extent we have identified

12 parties that would have potential interests, we try and

13 include them in our notification process, yes.

14    Q.    And the WAPA substation is -- WAPA is a federal

15 agency, correct?

16    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, they are.

17    Q.    Are you aware that WAPA did the environmental

18 paperwork with the BLM for the switch?

19    A.    BY MR. BECK:  On behalf of Citizens Utilities,

20 yes, Western did make the application with BLM.

21    Q.    And were you aware of that?

22    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Well, I was aware that Western on

23 behalf of their customer was doing what they needed to

24 do to create a substation connection.

25    Q.    So as a part of public outreach would it have
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1 been not illogical to send a public agency outreach

2 letter to the BLM?

3    A.    BY MR. BECK:  If we thought that we were going

4 to be on BLM property, yes, it would.  At the time we

5 did not think we would be.

6    Q.    On any of your newsletters or your agency

7 outreach letters is that parcel identified as BLM land?

8    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I believe we have identified it in

9 some cases as BLM, at least portions of it.

10          MS. WEBB:  Okay.  Thank you.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Now is there any redirect?

12          MR. DERSTINE:  None.

13          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Very good.  That concludes the

14 testimony, I think.

15          MEMBER MUNDELL:  Mr. Chairman, are the Committee

16 members going to have an opportunity?

17          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Oh, I am sorry.  Yes, they will

18 have an opportunity to ask questions.  Member Mundell.

19          MEMBER MUNDELL:  Because you said it concluded

20 the testimony, I wanted to -- I know it is late and we

21 are all -- I just have a few just to follow up.

22

23                        EXAMINATION

24 BY MEMBER MUNDELL:

25    Q.    Mr. Beck, just clear this up for me.  When did
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1 you first become aware there is a BLM issue?

2    A.    BY MR. BECK:  The BLM issue with the

3 right-of-way, approximately a year ago.

4    Q.    And on Segment 1 near the Nogales tap, there is

5 how many acres in dispute?  Do you understand my

6 question?

7    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Not --

8    Q.    Well, okay, then let me rephrase it.  Tell me

9 where on the route there are issues with BLM, potential

10 issues.

11          MR. BECK:  Can you bring that map up, Clark?

12          Here again, the Western line runs generally from

13 the northwest to the southeast along that faint line you

14 can maybe see.  The old Nogales tap station is right

15 there.  It is the larger one.  Directly south adjacent

16 to that original station is, as some parties have called

17 it, the switch.  It is the interconnection point.  It is

18 the breaker and a half scheme to improve reliability

19 down to Nogales.  That was built by Western.  And the

20 piece in question is the piece of line that comes out of

21 that station down to where it joins in with the

22 north/south alignment that runs north and south.

23    Q.    And approximately how many, how many acres is

24 involved?

25    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I am not sure on the acreage.  I
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1 believe it is about 200 feet, I believe.

2    Q.    200 feet?

3    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Of linear distance times 100 foot

4 wide right-of-way, so whatsoever that converts to in

5 acres.

6    Q.    And then there is another issue down at the end

7 of the proposed line and the Valencia substation, is

8 that correct?

9    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Around the county complex down in

10 Nogales there is a section, an area of land that was

11 ceded by BLM over to the county and given -- it was

12 given to the county or transferred in some fashion.

13          The issue that remains is that Citizens Utility,

14 slash, UNS Electric has a right-of-way that was granted

15 by the BLM across what was originally their land.  The

16 question is who has jurisdiction over that right-of-way

17 today.  Our legal interpretation is that any changes to

18 the right-of-way are not under the jurisdiction of BLM

19 but would be under the jurisdiction of Santa Cruz

20 County.  BLM has indicated they think they still have

21 some authority over the right-of-way, and that's one

22 issue we are trying to sort through.

23    Q.    Did they indicate to you when they will make a

24 decision on their jurisdiction?

25    A.    BY MR. BECK:  They -- the process that they have
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1 identified is that we make application to them.  They

2 will review the project, and as part of that review they

3 will make a determination on what needed to be done on

4 both segments of right-of-way and/or if any NEPA process

5 would need to be done.

6          MEMBER MUNDELL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Any other questions from any

8 other members of the Committee?

9          (No response.)

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Very good.  And I

11 apologize for speeding along.  It is late.  We will

12 recess for the evening unless there are other

13 housekeeping matters that need to be addressed.

14          We will start promptly tomorrow morning at 9:30.

15 The applicant will have one hour for closing and

16 rebuttal, so you may use your time as you wish.  Each

17 intervenor will have 30 minutes.  You will be held to

18 your time limit.  You do not need to feel that you have

19 to take all of it.  My feeling is that you will be more

20 than able to express your position within the generous

21 time limit that I have given you.  And we will, at the

22 end of the closing arguments, then have an opportunity

23 for questions from the Committee members and then we

24 will go into deliberations.

25          I would anticipate deliberations will roughly be
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1 in the afternoon.  I assume that we will have available

2 a person with the requisite technical skills to put the

3 proposed CEC up and make any line-by-line, word-by-word

4 changes that we may come upon.

5          Is that everything?

6          MR. DERSTINE:  Yes, we will.

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Are there other

8 items we need to address?

9          I am sorry.  Mr. Eberhart.

10          MEMBER EBERHART:  Thank you.  Just one thought,

11 that in the closing statements, the more clear, concise

12 and to the point everyone is, the more effective your

13 closing statement and more influence and impact it will

14 have, I believe, on the Committee.

15          CHMN. FOREMAN:  May we leave materials in the

16 room this evening?  Will there be some sort of security?

17 All right.  Those of you who wish to leave your stuff

18 here.

19          Mr. Magruder.

20          MR. MAGRUDER:  Mr. Chairman, two questions.

21 Will the applicant be so kind as to possibly display our

22 CEC material on your board?

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  You can discuss that with the

24 applicant.  If they are able to, fine; if they are not,

25 then we will deal with that.
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1          MR. GELLMAN:  We have it.  We can put it up if

2 needed.

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.

4          MR. MAGRUDER:  Second, I have to leave at 1100,

5 11:00, for surgery.  So I have to go tomorrow and I

6 would appreciate if I could have my, no matter what

7 happens to the schedule, I would at least get to my

8 closing statement before I have to leave.

9          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  And I would suggest

10 you talk to counsel and maybe they will allow you to go

11 first tomorrow.

12          MR. MAGRUDER:  If they talk 9:30 to 10:30 I will

13 go from 10:30 to 11:00, that's fine.

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  That's --

15          MR. MAGRUDER:  It is tight.

16          CHMN. FOREMAN:  If that works for you guys,

17 that's fine, too.  But if you want to talk about going

18 first, I have no problem with you making that agreement.

19          MS. WEBB:  He just -- Mr. Magruder just

20 mentioned that he had his closing as an exhibit.  Are

21 you requiring a brief for closing?

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  No.

23          MS. WEBB:  Thank you.

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  It is fine if you want to do

25 that.  But it is fine if you just talk.  But it will be
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1 within the amount of time.
2          Very good.  See you tomorrow at 9:30.
3          (The hearing recessed at 5:26 p.m.)
4
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